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Chairman’s
Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company” or “Zhouheiya”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2021.

AABRRARBERZRARAR (R AT K BERE])
NEFS((ESBE]) MAEZBARFNEMBAR([XE
BDBEE T —F+-_A=1+—HILFENFR-



Chairman’s Statement
FFERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”
or “Zhou Hei Ya”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended December
31, 2021.

In 2021, people’s livelihood and economy in China and even the world
were continuously affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Especially in
the second half of the year, the pandemic situation was intensified,
where the more infectious “Delta” and “Omicron” variants resurged
in multiple cities across the country. As a result, the pandemic control
policies continued to escalate, people’s travel was blocked, and offline
consumption was continuously impacted. The process of global economic
recovery slowed down due to the repetitive COVID-19 outbreaks, as
well as the impact of multiple factors such as supply chain crisis, energy
shortage and high inflation. In the face of multiple challenges such as
the complex and severe international environment and the sporadic
occurrence of domestic confirmed cases, China continued to consolidate
its achievements in pandemic prevention and control and economic
recovery. Therefore, China’s high-quality development reached a new
level, but the long-tailed influence of the pandemic still had a great
impact on residents’ consumption willingness and confidence, weakened
the momentum of consumption growth, and slowed down the market
recovery process. In the post-pandemic era, how to adapt to the new
market environment, find countermeasures to break the difficult situation
and enhance consumers’ purchase intention will be a long-term challenge
for consumer goods retail enterprises in the future.

2021 is a year of growth and harvest for Zhou Hei Ya. Over the past
year, despite the repeated outbreaks of COVID-19, the macroeconomic
and market situation have become more complex and volatile. In the
face of challenges, we have always forged ahead to strengthen our core
capabilities based on the established strategic goals. We accelerated the
integration of online and offline operations, strengthened product appeal
and improved operational efficiency to firmly stabilize the basic market
and sustain the development with solid efforts and a solid foundation.
The Group has finally achieved substantial growth and win-win results. In
order to build a more valuable, responsible and international enterprise,
we set sail with the mission of “making life delicious” and the vision of
“being a delicious food creator to the world”, and look forward to going
faster and further in the future.
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Chairman’s Statement = [E3R&E

In the post-pandemic era, reconstruction power is the key capability
for corporate transformation. Facing such a challenging environment,
enterprises need to re-explore the future development trends and
achieve innovations and reforms in many aspects such as business model,
consumer access, product structure and supply chain capability. In 2021,
we promoted the “self-operation + franchise” business model effectively,
and recorded a total of more than 2,700 stores. In terms of store
structure, we made strategic changes based on the principle of sustainable
development, and gradually developed communities and lower-tier
markets to disperse the risk of the long-tailed pandemic. At present, non-
transportation hub stores have accounted for 90% of the total stores.
In terms of channels, we achieved omni-channel coverage in line with
the market trend, continued to consolidate the advantages of traditional
channels, increased the penetration into emerging channels, and realized
all-round and diversified access to consumers through digitization. Based
on the supply chain strategy of cost reduction and efficiency increase,
we have established the OCM cost control tower to conduct refined
management on production procurement and warehousing logistics,
comprehensively coordinate to guarantee the speed and quality of omni-
channel supply, and flexibly control the whole chain cost. Under the
background of economic downturn and weak consumer spending, the
Group still maintained steady growth in 2021, demonstrating strong
anti-risk capability and resilience. Through business model upgrading,
diversified access to consumers and supply chain optimization, the Group
has achieved significant breakthroughs in Internet O&0O, communities and
other channels, and achieved phased results in transformation and reform,
highlighting its excellent reconstruction power.

Innovation is always an essential approach for an enterprise to survive
and the key to achieving high-quality development. In terms of products,
we followed the market trends to form an efficient data-centric
mechanism for rapid response, improved the key processes of product
launch, iteration and promotion, constantly optimized the product
structure, cultivated a new generation of “key products matrix”, and
strove to develop key popular products, so as to lay a solid foundation
for strengthening product appeal and brand power. In terms of stores,
in line with the changes in consumption scenarios and habits under the
pandemic, we launched the new small and beautiful Zhou Hei Ya Little
Yellow Store to cope with the impact of the pandemic in a more flexible
and effective way. In terms of brand marketing, based on the concept
of ecological marketing and the marketing strategy of “product-driven
branding”, we have comprehensively developed the new media channels,
explored cross-industry cooperation with high-potential brands to enhance
the penetration rate of Zhou Hei Ya duck products, and facilitate the rapid
growth of emerging channels. In the future, we will continue to integrate
channel resources and accurately match product characteristics to help
scale up new products, strengthen consumer stickiness and achieve high-
quality growth of the Group.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

BEBRR  ERHIRLXEFNRMEES - MEE
FEBRAKBNRE  CEFEEFTRIRKERE
B UHEERR  HEEEE EaaBRME
WEENEZHHAIFEE - —T——F  RPUFE
ZBHEBE+THRE IMERRN - PIEABERK
2,700% - PUEAB L - HPAAATHERR BT
HERS M - B E DR R TMISAD BRI
RECHRER - BAT - JEBEMPIECIE@PIES
90% - REBELE - HAEETSBBEREREEE -
SEZEEEMRENED  RSRITTERENZE
K PHFERNTF 2756 STLEEHES -
EREAIE ) RS BRE - R EERAERE
BRANERSILE - S EREERBEAREYR 27
UBRAREEREHEREEEE  BEEE2RIE
AR - LB  HBERBHASRT » AEER
T -FNRFEBRIEE - BRERANTERE
AFEN - WEBHFREATR - ST iEEA R
fESEEL - EEMMOKO HEFRBER TER
ZRH - WRVBSRUSRERIER - ELEENER
5 o

BIF KERGEAFLIAINFE  wRERS
BERRNBERME -GEEML  HAICETSEE

g DBERTOKRER BN - THE
b ER HERFERARE  TEHERLERS
B BEN—RIKERER | BTENER B
ZEEMNDRBENT TREEN - EFIEL - B
IEfEZIE TR ES S MBENEL - 2HHEL/ME
BERBIENEE - UEMEEARH T AEERIER
- -EmEEEL BARALREHEE  BEE
fm iR R RS - REBE KR BePat
miEEREE - BARARBREKSEEX - BAFER
BRERE - A BAISHEBRARBERLIBE
TCRCEE MR IE - BY DR mARRAE ~ INSRE B EREE -

EREESHEHE -



Chairman’s Statement = [E3R&E

A company will not succeed without an efficient organizational system.
As a driving force for an enterprise, organizational capacity refers to
the ability to achieve goals, and more importantly the premise and
guarantee of performance growth. The successful realization of Zhou Hei
Ya's strategic goals in various stages is inseparable from the Company’s
excellent organizational capacity. We are committed to building a
management echelon that can support corporate transformation and
sustainable growth, and introduce highly professional top-level talents
to constantly empower the grass-roots staff with agile leadership.
Meanwhile, we try our best to develop the internal talent improvement
plan, and build a dynamic talent team subject to “ appropriate promotion
or demotion and flexible employment or dismissal” through the dual
career development channels and the continual mechanism of “talent
hunting, recruit, cultivation, competition and dismissal”. In 2021, we will
comprehensively provide targeted capability solutions such as employee
training and leadership development to activate core assets and empower
the Company’s ecological competitiveness. We will continue to expand
the Restricted Share Unit Scheme shareholding scope of employees,
enabling more employees to be a community of interests with the Group,
which shares the same vision vertically and cooperate horizontally to
further activate the organizational motivation and create sustainable
organizational capacity. It is our belief that only with a powerful and solid
organizational system can we break through the bottlenecks, improve
our business performance, take the lead in the market and build a lasting
good business.

A brand new year means a promising start. 2021 is a year of milestone
significance, and we will continue to pursue our dreams in the new year.
In 2022, we will continue to steadily implement the six major development
strategies, and further expand the in-depth integration of franchise
business and self-operation business based on the principle of cost
reduction and efficiency increase. We will accelerate product innovation,
strengthen the digital and intelligent construction, constantly monitor
the market demand trends, adjust the market strategy accordingly and
maintain our core advantages. In the meantime, we will continue to
maintain diversified access to consumers, fully enhance our organizational
motivation and comprehensive strength, and upgrade our brand image to
stand firmly in the fiercely competitive industry.
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Looking forward to 2022, under the new pattern of coordinated
development dominated by the domestic cycle and mutually promoted
by the domestic and international dual cycles, China’s economy will start
a new round of comprehensive optimization of demand structure and
maintain high-quality and stable growth under the guidance of the long-
term strategies of dual cycles, the goal of “CO, emissions peak and carbon
neutrality” and common prosperity. As China gradually controls the
spread of the pandemic, the foundation of consumption remains solid in
China, and the gradual recovery of the economy has laid the cornerstone
for the steady recovery of the consumer goods industry. Braised products
are not only a traditional cuisine in China, but also an important integral
part of the consumer goods industry. With the upgrading of consumption,
the increase of urbanization rate, the gradual optimization of supporting
industries and the rapid development of new retail models in the future,
the braised products industry will continue to maintain rapid growth, and
its market size is expected to expand continually.

A promising future is foreseeable after overcoming the difficulties. Over
the past year, we have successfully achieved our strategic goals, which is
inseparable from the diligence of all employees of the Group, the trust
of consumers and the long-term support of our business partners and
shareholders. Today, under the background of the new era, all the staff
of the Group will face the vast trend of the times with greater resilience
and a stronger sense of mission, continue to make concerted efforts and
stay true to their original intention. They will strive to bring well-known
products to consumers, create rich returns for shareholders, and enable
the Group's business to develop steadily, achieve new brilliance and live
up to expectations. With the values of “being open-minded, pragmatic,
honest and trustworthy”, we will be determined to build the Group into
a century-old enterprise favored by consumers, praised by partners and
trusted by shareholders step by step. Finally, on behalf of the Board, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude for your consistent support
and help to Zhou Hei Ya. In 2022, we will move forward with our dreams
from a new starting point, forge ahead on a new journey and continue to
create a bright future.

ZHOU Fuyu
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 30, 2022
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Business Review and Outlook

EFEENRE

2021 is a much challenging year for the consumer goods industry. Due to the cross influence of the global
economic impact and the prolonged pandemic in multiple locations, the fast-moving consumer goods
industry concluded with sluggish growth, and offline consumption was seriously impaired, resulting in
significant pressure on enterprises.In the post-pandemic era, how to adapt to the new market environment
and find out countermeasures to break the deadlock will be a long-term challenge for consumer goods
retail enterprises.
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Business Review and Outlook

EFREKRRE

MARKET OVERVIEW

Looking back to 2021, the COVID-19 continued to spread across
the world, and there have been a number of more contagious and
transmissible variants. Current situation remains pessimistic. China also
has been facing similar challenging environment, in particular, in the
second half of 2021, the pandemic resurged in multiple cities across
the country, regional anti-pandemic measures continued to accelerate,
causing restrictions on human mobility and traveling. Meanwhile, the
process of economic recovery slowed down due to the impact of multiple
factors such as supply chain crisis, energy shortage and high inflation.
The outbreak of the pandemic in many regions of China had a great
impact on the offline consumer goods industry, and the Group’s business
performance in the second half of the year was also affected.

2021 is a much challenging year for the consumer goods industry. Due
to the cross influence of the global economic impact and the prolonged
pandemic in multiple locations, the fast-moving consumer goods industry
concluded with sluggish growth, and offline consumption was seriously
impaired, resulting in significant pressure on enterprises. On the one
hand, the repetitive spread of the pandemic led to the tightened supply
chain, the sharp rise in the price of raw materials, and the significant
pressure on the operating costs of enterprises. On the other hand, the
lack of consumer confidence, the transfer of consumption venues and
social isolation resulted in continuous fluctuations of passenger traffic and
lower-than-expected recovery. In the post-pandemic era, how to adapt
to the new market environment and find out countermeasures to break
the deadlock will be a long-term challenge for consumer goods retail
enterprises.

In the post-pandemic era, the consumption structure is undergoing
profound changes, where new products, new business formats and new
models are emerging, and more enterprises are beginning to deploy
more resilient and risk-resistant business operation systems. In the
future, enterprises, which focus on consumers, bring changes in business
operation logic through innovation, improve the capability to quickly and
flexibly respond to market changes, improve customer experience, realize
supply chain collaboration and build a complete user delivery system, are
expected to win more opportunities and achieve high-quality profitability
and sustainable development.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Store Network Development and Optimization

The Group continued to embrace the idea of consumer-centricity in 2021.
Under the continuous influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
actively explored the omni-channel and diversified access to consumers,
satisfied the diversified consumer needs, and strengthened expansion
of offline stores in new markets and further development of mature
markets. As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 2,781 retail
stores, including 1,246 self-operated stores and 1,535 franchised stores,
and now covering 267 cities in 26 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities in China.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the number of self-operated
and franchised retail stores by geographic location and the revenue

contribution for the year indicated:

Number of Retail Stores
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Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—f ZETF
# % # %
#H EgE]
Central China® FEho 1,231 44.3 734 41.8
Southern China®@ PR 522 18.8 414 23.6
Eastern China® FEHO 366 13.2 288 16.4
Northern China® FEt@ 401 14.4 172 9.8
Western China® FEPHO) 261 9.3 147 8.4
Total #aEt 2,781 100.0 1,755 100.0
BERBEREZERERAR
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Revenue &=
Year Ended December 31,
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

AR¥T R AREF T
Central China® FEh 1,242,096 55.6 850,160 52.5
Southern China® @ 403,319 18.0 316,465 19.5
Eastern China® FEHO 235,507 10.5 191,625 11.8
Northern China® @ 212,984 9.5 169,975 10.5
Western China® FEPRG) 140,953 6.4 92,567 5.7
Total #ET 2,234,859 100.0 1,620,792 100.0

(1) Comprises Hubei Province, Hunan Province, Henan Province, Jiangxi Province,
Anhui Province and Shanxi Province.

(2)  Comprises Guangdong Province, Fujian Province and Hainan Province.
(3)  Comprises Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province.

(4)  Comprises Beijing, Tianjin, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Liaoning
Province, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Gansu Province and lJilin
Province.

(5)  Comprises Chongging, Sichuan Province, Shaanxi Province, Guizhou Province,
Yunnan Province and Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region.

Innovation of Business Model, Staying Closer to Consumers
In 2021, the Group closely followed the changing market trends,
continued to promote the upgrade of its “self-operation + franchise”
business model by combining the changes in people’s consumption habits
in the post-pandemic era, and continuously improved the coverage of
offline stores for different consumption scenarios. Despite the repeated
influence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group still made great progress
in its business model upgrade in 2021, and its franchise business also
developed beyond expectations. The scale of retail stores increased
rapidly, and the total number of stores under the Group reached 2,781;
Meanwhile, relying on the single-store franchise + multi-store franchise
model, the Group's offline store structure has undergone fundamental
changes, and the proportion of stores in transportation hubs nationwide
has been significantly reduced, and the geographic structure of offline
stores has been more balanced, making it possible to cope with the
challenges of complex environment more flexibly; In addition, anticipating
more indoor scenarios during the pandemic outbreak, the Group
gradually explored the community market to disperse the risks arising
from the prolonged pandemic. As the community store model achieved
good results in Wuhan, the Group begun to launch pilot projects in some
cities of Central China and Southern China.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Confronted with the continuous adverse effects and challenges of the
pandemic, continuing to consolidate and facilitate the recovery of self-
operation business while fully developing the franchise business is an
important support for the Group to maintain stable development. In
2021, in response to the post-pandemic consumption scenarios, as well
as the evolving consumption habits and changing consumer traffic,
the Group actively modified its strategies for self-operated business,
conducted prudent assessments of new stores and implemented
measures to improve efficiency for mature stores, so as to cope with
the regional resurgence risk of COVID-19. It also optimized those stores
with low efficiency, so as to ensure the stable growth of self-operated
business. From the perspective of operation, thanks to the operation of
the experienced teams, the Group actively carried out business objectives
PK and competition to drive the improvement of store efficiency and
promote the recovery of single store sales through decomposition and
realization tracking of business objectives, new store expansion and
goods management, improvement of salesperson skills, marketing, online
ordering and delivery and other approaches. The Group also expected
to build brand benchmark through self-operated stores, improve brand
influence, and gain more market share.

The Group has always adhered to the tenet of helping franchisees
succeed and achieve the development and prosperity of the Zhou Hei
Ya brand. It escorted the franchised partners 360 degrees from site
selection and assessment, personnel training, engineering construction,
system support, supply chain, marketing, policy support, opening, regular
operation analysis, etc. In 2021, the Group promoted the transformation
of operation management talents into regional management talents,
segmented the market, and allocated project managers to be responsible
for the business success of franchisees. On the other hand, the Group
integrated the resources of marketing, finance and other functional
centers to build an online operation platform for franchisees, strengthened
the construction of retail academies, extended its tentacles to franchisees,
better empowered the franchisees, and strove to build a more competitive
retail system. In the meantime, the Group continued to promote the
“community of common future” policy, provided special improvement
plans for franchisees impaired by the pandemic, and helped maintain a
win-win result between franchised partners and Zhou Hei Ya. In 2021, the
Group had received nearly 16,000 additional franchisee applications, with
a total number of 400 franchisees and there were 1,535 franchised stores
as of December 31, 2021 across the country.
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Diversified Access to Consumers

In the post-pandemic era, the shift in consumption scenarios and the
constant changes in consumer demands have catalyzed consumer goods
enterprises to continuously integrate their omni-channel structures and
increase the purchase convenience of consumers, so as to resist the
risks arising from single-channel sales under the pandemic. In 2021,
the Group continued to implement the online and offline omni-channel
coverage model, covering various consumption scenarios in multiple
dimensions, and accelerating the construction of overall and precise
access to consumers, while rapidly strengthening its consumer operation
capabilities, improving the cling of core customers, and enhancing brand
visibility.

The Group continued to consolidate the online ordering and delivery
business integrating online and offline channels. In terms of online
business, the Group increased resource acquisition through the platforms,
expanded the scope of information push and deepened brand penetration.
In the meantime, the Group actively explored combined brand marketing,
jointly initiated the braised food festival with the platforms on the online
ordering and delivery platform, led the growth of product categories,
enriched consumption scenarios and enhanced brand exposure. In terms
of offline business, it strengthened product advertising and promotion,
and fully drew consumers’ attention through multi-scenario advertising
such as elevators and bus stops. In terms of management of the online
ordering and delivery business, the Group abandoned the extensive
operation of “one size fits all” across the country, and effectively achieved
rapid growth in online ordering and delivery sales through refined
operations by region, city, scenario and time. In 2021, revenue by online
ordering and delivery business contributed RMB370.7 million.

To better accommodate to the ever-changing consumption scenarios and
models, the Group continued to improve its online e-commerce system,
and explored and deepened various new e-commerce models based on
traditional platforms. On the one hand, the Group actively optimized
the layout of near-field retail and established its presence on multiple
fresh grocery e-commerce platforms such as Dingdong Maicai (7] I$ &
%), Pupu Supermarket (BEA£i8), Hema Supermarket (855 ). As
of now, the community fresh grocery channel has covered more than 80
cities and over 3000 front warehouses. On the other hand, the Group
continued to explore the operation of short-form video and live streaming
content channels, increased investment in live streaming e-commerce
platforms such as Tik Tok (£}%&) and Kuaishou (&), and built the dual
live streaming models of KOL and self-operated online stores. In 2021,
the Group participated in over 3,000 live streaming sessions which in
aggregate attracted more than 150 million online visitors.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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The Group achieved good results in comprehensively implementing
the strategy of omni-channel and diversified access to consumers. For
the year ended December 31, 2021, there was a year-on-year growth
of approximately 23.5% in the revenue contributions of the Group’s
Internet O&O business, i.e. the online and self-operated ordering and
delivery businesses, and the revenue derived from Internet O&O business
accounted for approximately 32.0% of total revenue in 2021.

Continual Product Innovation and Brand Marketing
Product innovation has been a significant driver for the Group's
development. The Group intends to comprehensively strengthen its
brand image and consumer awareness through focusing on meeting the
customers’ needs, developing a full range product series and combining
the data-centered integrated marketing system.

In terms of product innovation, the Group adopted the strategy of “brand
marketing with key products” by virtue of its experience and market
insights in the casual braised food industry in 2021. While consolidating
the original star products, the Group also continued to expand the more
popular product flavors, and has launched “Multi-spiced” (L&), “Treasure
Lindera Glauca” (Z# LL#EAM) and other new flavors. Among others,
monthly gross sales of duck necks in “Multi-spiced” flavor had exceed
over RMB10 million. The Group also expanded its price ranges to cover
low-end ranging from RMB9.9 to RMB25, further appealing to additional
consumption needs. Meanwhile, it developed popular products such as
Spicy Shrimp Balls (F#RIEEK) and Marinated Chicken Feet (FZf7[BlJTV) that
are welcomed among young consumers and become the new signature
products, achieving high market recognition.

In terms of product marketing, the Group continued its brand marketing
strategy and accelerated the renewal of its brand image. The “Little
Yellow Store” new image stores have been launched nationwide, leaving
young consumers with a trendy and fashionable brand impression,
accelerating the rejuvenation of the brand. The Group further integrated
the omni-channel media resources, made full use of various social
media, long and short-form videos, live streaming platforms and other
resources increased advertising intensity, improved the breadth and
depth of advertising content on each platform, and formed high-quality,
high-frequency and multi-dimensional communication with consumers.
Meanwhile, the Group actively launched close-to-store media promotional
and marketing events, and strengthened advertising in regions where
offline stores are located, intensified store display and tasting, and
carried out all kinds of promotional activities to increase store exposure.
Moreover, in order to enhance brand exposure and awareness, the Group
has also actively explored cross-industry cooperation, launched a series
of co-branded braised duck products with KFC, including Lu La La (FI3%k
#) and Lu Ya Ya (K #888), that are more in line with consumer needs and
more favored by young consumers. In 2021, the Group was selected as
the exclusive partner for meat products of the main theme movie “The
Chinese Doctor”, which effectively enhanced its main brand image.
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Supply Chain Optimization

In 2021, facing with various pressure from the repeated spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic, in particular, the increased raw material costs
resulting from the high inflation in the second half of 2021, in order to
respond to the complicated and evolving market environment, the Group
is committed to optimizing the supply chain capacity and focusing more
attention on the construction of an efficient, agile and flexible supply
chain system that can achieve all-round coordination and sustainable
optimization and development.

In 2021, the Group established an “end-to-end” full-link supply chain
system from farmers to consumers, laying a foundation for realizing the
goals of improving quality, ensuring supply, reducing cost and increasing
efficiency. The Group is committed to building a complete supply chain
collaboration system, covering: agile logistics system (optimizing the
dynamic warehouse and distribution route planning and transportation
models), lean production system (product research and development,
process design, raw material planning and automated production), total
cost optimal procurement system (establishing a price estimation module
from the perspective of suppliers to achieve accurate pricing), and the
whole-process quality assurance system (the whole-process quality
assurance from farmers, production, warehouse and distribution to
customer feedback).

In view of this, the Group established an integrated supply chain center
in January 2021 to be responsible for the lean operation management
of the entire supply chain process. We have introduced the lean
management system of OCM (operating cost management) cost
control to further optimize the production cost per ton with a higher
degree of standardization and automation. On the one hand, the
Group has continued to optimize the whole life cycle management of
suppliers, upgraded procurement strategies, built market price analysis
and prediction models, predicted price trends and formulated precise
procurement strategies to effectively reduce procurement costs. On
the other hand, through the refined accounting of the total cost items
and the monthly review, improvement and optimization, we can not
only realize the monitoring of the whole production process, but also
complete the dynamic inspection analysis, training and improvement.
The implementation of lean management and control has improved the
yield of each process, continuously reduced the production cost and
increased the efficiency. In addition, the Group has also accommodated
to the differentiated needs of consumers, maintained the front-end and
back-end linkage and carried out all-round coordination to continuously
empower the supply chain management level.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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In terms of production capacity, the overall production arrangement of the
Group is still focused on the five major processing facilities in China. The
Group has now established four processing facilities at a room cleanliness
standard of 100,000-class with high automation in northern, central,
southern and eastern China. The processing facility in Eastern China
has commenced operation in January 2021. By leveraging the dynamic
logistics network management it can shorten the distribution radius in
Eastern China by approximately 500 to 600 kilometers and improve the
delivery efficiency of stores. The processing facility in Western China under
construction is expected to be put into operation in 2022. The production
capacity of each processing facility can be flexibly deployed and efficiently
coordinated to cope with regional market risk.

Organizational Capacity Enhancement

The Group always believes that talents are the core competitiveness
for business development, regards employees as an important strategic
resource for its development, and improves the overall competitiveness of
employees and their sense of belonging to the Group.

In 2021, the Group aimed to build a management team that can support
corporate transformation and sustainable growth. On the one hand, the
Group continued to improve its organizational structure, strengthened
talent transformation and reserve, attracted outstanding management
personnel with a strong sense of mission to join in, completed
construction of the top-level organization for the third entrepreneurship,
and steadily promoted talent diversification. On the other hand, to fully
empower its ecological competitiveness, the Group has actively carried
out a number of talent development trainings at different levels, including
trainings for franchisees, and provided targeted capability solutions such as
performance improvement and leadership development. In addition, the
Group has also organized corporate culture workshop and entrepreneur
conference, to further enhance its corporate culture and increase
organizational cohesion.
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In addition, the Group has adopted diversified incentive plans to motivate
the employees. The Group implemented the employee incentive plan in
2020 and expanded the scope of equity incentives in 2021, awarding
an aggregate of 15,147,285 ordinary shares of the Company to 153
selected persons of the Group as the incentive-based shares, where the
actual number of shares awarded was subject to adjustments based
on the Group's and the employees’ performance. This year, the Group
repurchased shares to expand the equity incentive pool, broadened the
scope of incentives, applied the equity incentive plan to more outstanding
employees, and drove the sustainable development of the organization.
In addition, the Group has also continued to optimize both the
organizational and individual performance management and assessment
system, and motivated employees through a transparent and fair incentive
mechanism. Meanwhile, the Group increased the scope of internal and
external awards, and offered multiple honorary awards, including the
“Best Business Partner Award”, “Outstanding Performance Contribution
Award” and “Excellent Market Rookie Award"” as well as various initiatives
such as sales competition among junior employees internally, as well as
the “Annual Franchise Operation Award” externally. Through effectively
enhancing organizational motivation, the Group has achieved harmonious
development with internal and external ecological partners and created
brilliance together.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The pandemic has not ended in 2022. In the first quarter, the highly
contagious Omicron variant spreads widely and there was a resurgence
in different areas. The anti-pandemic measures have accelerated, and
the situation becomes critical. In the future, the pandemic outbreak and
its prevention policies are still the key factors in determining the pace of
economic recovery. The pace of global economic recovery is accelerating
to a varying degree, the inflation trend and industrial chain supply and
demand are still under pressure, and the uncertainty of the pandemic
continues to affect the recovery of consumer traffic. Consumption pattern
becomes more diversified and further tends to be online, which will have
a far-reaching impact on consumers’ consumption habits. Consumer
goods retail enterprises will face long-term pressure and challenges in the
future.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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The Group estimates that the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic will have
an adverse impact on its business operation and financial performance
in the short run. However, the Group is still optimistic about the
development prospect of the industry in the mid and long run. While
continuing to adhere to the consumer-centric and product-oriented
principle and comprehensively promotes the Internet O&0O multi-channel
operation strategy, the Group will accelerate the expansion of retail
stores, continuously improve supply chain management capabilities and
strengthen the construction of organizational capacity to comprehensively
enhance the Group's ability to resist the risk arising from the pandemic
normalization and achieve sustainable development.

The Group has the confidence to overcome the short-term impact brought
about by the adverse business environment and seize the development
opportunities to achieve longer-term and more solid development in the
future. In 2022, the Group plans to continuously implement the following
strategic measures:

o Accelerate the expansion of high-quality stores and further promote
the layout of community scenarios nationwide;

e  Consolidate the strategy of omni-channel access to consumers and
continue to lead the growth of the industry;

o Rejuvenate and upgrade the brand to create a new generation of
key popular products;

o Focus on lean supply chain management and improve cost control
flexibility; and

o Improve the match between talents and strategies, stimulate
organizational motivation and enhance efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B mE T

The Group’s total revenue increased by 31.6% from RMB2,181.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB2,870.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, which was primarily due to the overall control of the
COVID-19 pandemic in China in 2021 with repeated surges in exceptional regions,
the Group’s continued favorable overall operations and sales against the backdrop
of the gradual recovery of consumer demand in the first half of the year, the
strong momentum of franchise business, and significant increase in online and
offline omni-channel revenues compared to 2020. Revenue from self-operated
store channels increased by 11.0% year-on-year as of December 31, 2021, and
revenue from franchise channels amounted to RMB591.6 million, representing an
increase by 322.4% year-on-year as of December 31, 2021.
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The following table sets forth the Group’s consolidated statements of

TREIIAEENGZAER

MEMEEKER - EF

profits or loss and other comprehensive income in absolute amounts and £ 51| ffr 7= Ef Fﬁ;ziﬁ CHRMMEAEFRERENES
as a percentage of the Group's total revenue for the periods indicated, AN -E-_EFEZ T - —FHNEFH(AED LT
together with the change from 2020 and 2021 (expressed in percentages). /) °
Year Ended December 31, Year-
BEt-A=t+-HLEFE on-year
2021 2020 Change
—E--F —Z-EE BAtEs
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARETR ARETT
Revenue g 2,869,963 100.0 2,181,502 100.0 316
Cost of sales HEMR (1,211,570) (42.2) (971,346) (44.5) 247
Gross profit el 1,658,393 57.8 1,210,156 55.5 37.0
Other income and gains, net H AR 8 219,627 1.7 147,689 6.8 48.7
Finance cost Eﬁ%ﬁ}ﬂ (60,073) (2.1 (39,556) (1.8) 519
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERY (1,084,919) (37.8) (916,737) (42.0) 183
Administrative expenses IBFEY (309,610) (10.9) (228,147 (10.5) 35.7
Share of profits and losses of associates PMEEE AR RTIREE 21,572 1.0 26,653 12 34
Profit before tax BB ATRR 450,990 15.7 200,058 9.2 1254
Income tax expense FERAY (108,566) (3.8) (48,837) 2.2) 1223
Profit for the year B 342,424 19 151,221 70 126.4
Other comprehensive income RSB
that may be redlassified to ENDE ZBEN
profit or loss in subsequent periods: HibZEBA
Exchange differences on translation of foreign M EFHERE N 25
operations 6,635 0.2 14,898 0.7 (55.5)
Net other comprehensive income that i B kit
may be reclassified to profit or loss P ZEENEMY
in subsequent periods PEBAEE: 6,635 0.2 14,898 0.7 (55.5)
Other comprehensive loss that will not BRERGERE
be reclassified to profit or loss EfnEZER
in subsequent periods: MEM2HEE
Translation from functional currency to AN ERREZ2IEY
presentation currency EEVERZES (29,351) (1.0) (75,677) (3.5) 61.2)
Net other comprehensive loss that will not BREnRESHE
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent ENNBZEEN
periods AthZEEEFE (29,351) (1.0) (75,677) (3.5) (612)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE FREMZESE
YEAR (22,716) (0.8) (60,779) (2.8) (62.6)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE ERZARALE
YEAR 319,708 111 90,442 42 2535
Basic and diluted earnings per share SREAK EERF N/A N/A
(RMB) (AR¥T) 0.15 TEA 0.07 TER 1143
BRBERERERAT
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Revenue

The Group's total revenue increased by 31.6% from RMB2,181.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB2,870.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, which was primarily due to the overall
control of the COVID-19 pandemic in China in 2021 with repeated surges
in exceptional regions, the Group’s continued favorable overall operations
and sales against the backdrop of the gradual recovery of consumer
demand in the first half of the year, the strong momentum of franchise
business, and significant increase in online and offline omni-channel
revenues compared to 2020. Revenue from self-operated store channels
increased by 11.0% year-on-year as of December 31, 2021, and revenue
from franchise channels amounted to RMB591.6 million, representing an
increase by 322.4% year-on-year as of December 31, 2021.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased by 24.7% from RMB971.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to RMB1,211.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, which was attributable to the increase in overall
sales, the increases in depreciation after the commencement of operation
of the new processing facility and the overall increase in labor cost.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing as well as due to continuous improvement of
the Group's supply chain management, the Group's gross profit increased
by 37.0% from RMB1,210.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to RMB1,658.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, and
the Group's gross profit margin increased from 55.5% in the year ended
December 31, 2020 to 57.8% in the year ended December 31, 2021.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group’s other income and gains, net increased by 48.7% from
RMB147.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB219.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily
due to (i) an increase of RMB15.7 million in interest income from bank
deposits; (ii) a gain of RMB31.3 million from disposal of subsidiaries; (iii)
an increase of RMB49.9 million in the gain from disposal of property and
plant; (iv) an increase of RMB9.8 million in interest income from wealth
management products, (v) a decrease of RMB12.6 million in donation
expense and (vi) an increase of RMB18.3 million in the gain arising on
changes in the fair value of convertible bonds, partially offset by an
increase of RMB22.6 million in impairment of right-of-use assets and a
decrease of RMB36.0 million from foreign exchange gains.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Finance Cost

Finance expense increased by 51.8% from RMB39.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB60.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, which was mainly attributable to an increase in
interest expense in connection with the lease liabilities and the increase in
convertible bonds.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by 18.3% from
RMB916.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB1,084.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in rental expenses in connection with the Group's
offline stores, an increase in salary and welfare for selling personnel and
an increase in advertising and marketing expenses, which was generally
in relation to the acceleration of the business operation of the Group as a
result of the gradual recovery of consumer demand due to the control of
the COVID-19 pandemic during the year.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by 35.7% from RMB228.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB309.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021, mainly due to (i) the processing
facility in Jiangsu being put into operation by the Group in the first half of
2021 and (i) an increase in salary and welfare for administrative personnel
primarily due to the further implementation of the employee incentive
plan and the discontinuity of social insurance related preferential policies
during the COVID-19 outbreak in 2020.

Share of Profits and Losses of Associates

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group incurred share of
profits and losses of associates of RMB27.6 million mainly in connection
with the 25% equity interest (29.46% prior to February 2021, diluted
to 27.28% from March to August 2021, and further diluted to 25% in
September 2021) in Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (the “Tiantu Partnership”), which was jointly
established by the Group and two subsidiaries of Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd.,
resulting from fair value gains on the associate’s investees and partially
net off by the administration expenses. The change in the Group’s equity
interest in Tiantu Partnership was due to the new capital paid-in from
other partners in February and August 2021.
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Profit Before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded profit before tax of
RMB451.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, increased by
125.4% from RMB200.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 122.5% from RMB48.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB108.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in the Group's taxable
income.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit increased by 126.5%
from RMB151.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
RMB342.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Group’s
net profit margin increased from 6.9% in the year ended December 31,
2020 to 11.9% in the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily because
the Group experienced increases in revenue and gross profit, resulting in
an increase in net profit.

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign
Operations

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations changed
from other comprehensive loss of RMB60.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to other comprehensive loss of RMB22.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily resulting from the
translation of foreign currency statements of overseas entities of which
reporting currencies are Hong Kong dollars.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s total comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by 253.7% to RMB319.7
million from RMB90.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group financed its operations
through cash generated from its business operations and the net proceeds
received from its Initial Public Offering and the exercise of the over-
allotment options on November 30, 2016 (the “IPO"). The Group intends
to finance its expansion and business operation by internal resources
and through organic and sustainable growth, as well as to use the net
proceeds received from its IPO.

In addition, in November 2020, the Company completed and executed its
offering of convertible bonds due 2025 in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$1,550.0 million, bearing interest at the rate of 1% per annum (the
“2025 Bonds"”). The estimated net proceeds from the issuance of the
2025 Bonds, after deducting the relevant commissions and other estimated
expenses payable, are approximately HK$1,519.8 million. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Bonds will be used (i) to further
penetrate in existing markets and explore new business opportunities,
especially in overseas markets; (ii) to enhance product innovation, research
and development capabilities; and (iii) for working capital and for general
corporate purposes.

Capital Structure

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had net assets of approximately
RMB4,210.3 million, as compared to RMB4,100.9 million as of December
31, 2020, primarily comprising current assets of RMB3,788.0 million, non-
current assets of approximately RMB2,850.0 million, current liabilities of
RMB866.9 million and non-current liabilities of approximately RMB1,560.8
million.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) and U.S dollars
("USD"), with part denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and small
amount in Euro.
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Cash and Bank Balances

As compared with RMB1,583.8 million as of December 31, 2020, the
Group had cash and bank deposits of approximately RMB2,101.3 million
as of December 31, 2021, which was consisted of unrestricted cash and
bank balances of approximately RMB271.5 million and term deposits of
approximately RMB1,829.8 million.

Financial Risks

The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, which
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk. The Group does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to foreign exchange
risk. The management manages its currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and will take prudent measures
to minimize the currency translation risk.

Use of Proceeds from the IPO

Net proceeds from the IPO (including the exercise of the over-allotment
options on November 30, 2016), after deducting the underwriting
commission and other estimated expenses in connection with the Global
Offering which the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$2,792.3 million, comprising HK$2,428.1 million raised from the
Global Offering and HK$364.2 million from the issuance of shares
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment options, respectively. The
remaining balance of the proceeds from the IPO as of December 31, 2021
was RMB469.2 million.
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The table below sets forth the use of proceeds by the Group as of
December 31, 2021:

TRV AEEHEE T —F+-_A=+—HBMA
BREME

Amount that Amount that
had been was used Remaining
utilized as of intheyearended  balance as of Expected
December 31, December 31, December 31, timeline of
Budget 2020 2021 2021 utilization®
Bz BE Bz
- S 3:3 —E--F —B--F
+=ZA=+-B +=A=t-B +=RA=t+-H RHBA
#E CEBASE LFEFRNESE N SIS
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR¥EER ARBEERL ARBEER ARBEER
Construction and improvement of BRRAENTIRE 1,258.3 965.3 1932 99.8  Expected to be used
processing facilities up in two years
BRI EFRAT
Development of retail network PR 167.8 131.0 29.9 69  Expected to be used
up in one year
BRI EFAT
Branding image campaigns, Mg 5ES) - B3 3943 2454 50.9 98.0  Expected to be used
including the e-commerce EHEHED up in two years
marketing campaigns B RREFAR
Improvement of research and DR 452 25.2 20.0 - N/A
development TER
Acquisition and strategic alliances UeBE I B mR R B 145.2 179 - 1273 N/A
@R
Upgrades of information technology AR E BRI Z4: - 96.2 62.8 5.4 280  Expected to be used
systems, including the enterprise BECELR up in one year
resource planning system BEZs BRI ERAT
General replenishment of working ARER—HEELS 3452 236.0 - 109.2  Expected to be used
capital up in three years
FARISEFRAT
Total At 2,452.2 1,683.6 299.4 469.2
Notes: IE

(1) Based on the Group's current estimates of its business plans and market
conditions, and subject to change and adjustment.

(2)  The Group expects that the remaining balance will be used in accordance
with the intended usage in the coming years as indicated but it is not able to
reasonably estimate a detailed timeline of utilization at current stage.

As of December 31, 2021, net proceeds not utilized had been deposited
into short-term deposits and money market instruments, including
structured deposits.

(1) BEASEENRAEHH B RIS RRET 01
i MARBREE -

(2) AEBEBEFRBERBIZITRREFIRREE &
/A - BERERR TS EGADANFARREE

RZB-—F+-A=+—RH  RBAREFIRERE
EFARRERRERTSTA  BE&EBIETN
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Use of Proceeds from the 2025 Bonds
The Company completed the offering of the 2025 Bonds in November
2020 and the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Bonds, after
deducting the relevant commissions and other estimated expenses
payable, are approximately HK$1,519.8 million.

The table below sets forth the use of proceeds by the Group as of
December 31, 2021:

—ERCHFESFMEHRRRAE

ARBRR_Z_EF+ AR _ZT-_AFEFE
17 AR - RFEFBEITAFREFRE(HEA
BAReREMERENERR)OR,519.888ET -

TREFAEFHRE S -_—F+_-_A=1+—8BHm
SFIEAR

Amount that Amount that

had been was used Remaining
utilized as of in the year ended balance as of Expected
December 31, December 31, December 31, timeline of

Budget 2020 2021 2021 utilization®

Bz Bz 8z

St 23 “E--F “E--F
+ZB=t-B +ZA=+-B t+ZA=1+-H REEA

BE EBALE LEEGRNEE N B

RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

AR¥EER ARBEER ARKEER ARKEETR
Further penetration in existing E—SRARE 1,133.4 - 2675 865.9  Expected to be used
markets and explore new mHEFENR up in four years
business opportunities KR TR ARIER R T
Enhancement of product innovation, — 1RFHEREIH & 60.0 - - 60.0  Expected to be used
research and development e up in four years
capabilities AR RIFF BT
Working capital and for general EEEE N 50.0 - - 50.0  Expected to be used
corporate purposes ARIA®% up in four years
T ARIER R T

Total B3 1,243.4 - 267.5 975.9

Note: e

(1) Based on the Group's current estimates of its business plans and market
conditions, and subject to change and adjustment.

As of December 31, 2021, net proceeds not utilized had been deposited
into short-term deposits and money market instruments, including
structured deposits.
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Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had an aggregate bank borrowings
of RMB50.0 million, all of which will be due within one year. Such
outstanding bank borrowings were bearing fix interest rates and
denominated in Renminbi.

The Group uses the gearing ratio (gearing ratio = total liabilities/total assets)
to monitor its capital structure. As of December 31, 2021 the Group’s
gearing ratio decreased from 40.7% as of December 31, 2020 to 36.6%
as of December 31, 2021, which was primarily due to repayment of
borrowings of RMB400.8 million in 2021.

Pledged Assets
As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not pledge any of its assets.

Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash generated from
operating activities increased to approximately RMB539.8 million from
RMB534.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was
mainly attributable to profit before tax of RMB451.0 million, adjusted for
certain non-cash items and profit before tax from non-operating activities
such as depreciation of fixed assets, depreciation and amortization
of right-of-use assets and land use rights, interest income from bank
deposits and interest income from structured deposits. Additional factors
that affected net cash generated from operating activities included: (i)
an increase in profit before tax of RMB250.9 million and an increase
in income tax paid of RMB26.8 million; (ii) an increase in inventory of
RMB66.7 million mainly due to the increased production activities; (iii) a
decrease in other payables and accruals of RMB1.1 million; (iv) an increase
in trade payables of RMB8.5 million due to increased procurement in the
relevant period; and (v) an increase in trade receivables of RMB8.7 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash used in investing
activities was approximately RMB57.6 million, while the net cash used in
investing activities was approximately RMB1,544.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020, which was mainly attributable to (i) purchases
of structured deposits and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss in the aggregate amount of RMB3,669.3 million, (i) an increase of
term deposits of maturity over three months of RMB550.9 million; and
(iii) purchase of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets in the aggregate amount of RMB193.2 million, partially offset by
(i) redemption of structured deposits and financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss in the aggregate amount of RMB4,390.4
million; and (i) interest from structured deposits and other financial assets
measured as fair value through profit or loss of RMB46.0 million.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash used in financing
activities was approximately RMB470.1 million, while the cash used in
financing activities was RMB1,101.2 million for the year ended December
31, 2020, which was mainly attributable to (i) dividends paid in the
amount of RMB154.7 million in 2021; (ii) payment of repurchase of
treasury shares of RMB83.3 million; and (iii) lease rental payments of
RMB265.4 million.

Structured Deposits and Other Financial Assets Measured
at FVTPL

The Group from time to time invests in asset management products,
primarily structured deposits and financial assets measured at FVTPL, in
order to better facilitate its cash management. Structured deposits were
principal-protected products which typically had a fixed short term and
may be redeemed upon had their respective expiry dates. The Group’s
financial assets measured at FVTPL were mainly investments in equity
funds, which generally are not principal-protected nor return-guaranteed.
Such investments also typically have a fixed short term and are relatively
low risk in nature. As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a balance of
structured deposits and financial assets measured at FVTPL in the amount
of approximately RMB1,237.3 million. Up to the date of this report,
approximately RMB120.5 million out of the RMB1,237.3 million had been
settled and redeemed upon their maturity with the remaining not yet
fallen due. The underlying investments of the structured deposits were
primarily short-term sovereign bonds, financial bonds and central bank
bills, and other investment products issued by commercial banks in the
inter-bank market in China, which were very liquid with a relatively short
term of maturity, and which were considered akin to placing deposits
with banks whilst enabling the Group to earn a relatively higher rate
of return. In the year ended December 31, 2021, interest income from
structured deposits amounted to RMB46.0 million (December 31, 2020:
approximately RMB27.8 million).

The Group has implemented capital and investment policies to monitor
and control the risks relating to its investment activities. The Group may
only make investments in asset management products when it has surplus
cash. The Group is only entitled to invest low-risk products issued by
qualified commercial banks or other financial institutions, and investments
should be non-speculative in nature. The Group’s capital and investment
policies also specify the criteria for selecting investments to be considered
and the detailed review procedures each proposed investment shall go
through.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE BEETDH
BELSFEANARBAIONEE T MBE T
ZFE+ZA=+—HLFE  mETHAABRSAA
R¥1,101 288 ' TEBRARNONZZ=—FE[FK
BEARBIS47EET  (NVBREFERODINFARE
833BEL : KiiHEHSNRARK 265458 T °

EEMEERRBEAFEFAEBRITENEMD
THREE

AEETHEEEETEER  T2ABBHEERK
NAFEFABENEREE  UEBHERSE
o BHUEGTERARAER  BYAETEEERR
AREZgEmBHER - REBMUAFET AR
TNEREETEAESRKRE BEAERE - IR
Wzt - BAEETEMEHER BRRAYRE - #2
“E-—F+-A=+—0 AEBEAEEEER
RARTFE A BN REESRNARE,23738
B BEAREHE RARM1,237388LE
o AREI120588 TE R RS ERER -
Mg T SRR - BEABETRNREZTER
FERHRE  SRERTRBITEEUREEETR
FRERITREMSEITNEMBEER - SEERR
B - ERBIRRE - WHRABEUNERITER
HRNFEAEEESHERSMNERE - HE-ZT
T4+ AZ+RALLEE SRUETEZROFE
WABARK 46 08 EL(ZEEF+A=+—
B:HARB278FET) °

AEECEREARREBRERRRMNREES
BRMER - AEERREEERTBHNBEN TR
BENEEEEER  EAFRERAAEBBERRT
FEMERMEBETHERRER  BREEBRIKR
HHE - "EENEARREBRITIHERRERE
ZEHREA R SEFRRE BN NFEEMNET



Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5 5@ E2 2 1

In view of an upside of earning a relatively higher return than current
saving or fixed deposit rate under the low interest rate trend, as well as
the principal-protected nature and a relatively short term of maturity of
the structured deposits, the Directors are of the view that the structured
deposits pose little risk to the Group and the terms and conditions of each
of the structured deposits are fair and reasonable and are in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Capital Expenditure

The Group's capital expenditures amounted to RMB193.2 million as of
December 31, 2021, mainly in connection with the establishment of
processing facilities and the improvement of their processing facilities.
The Group financed its capital expenditures primarily with cash generated
from operations and the proceeds from the IPO and the issuance of the
2025 Bonds.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any significant
unrecorded contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against it.

Major Investment

In September 2021, one of the Group’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
entered into a partnership agreement with Shenzhen Tiantu Capital
Management Centre (Limited Partnership) (&I XBIE A EEH L (BIR
4%)) and Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd. (RYITF K EIRE SR AR A )
to jointly establish Changsha Tiantu Xingzhou Venture Capital Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (RAXEHELIXKREARTE (ARARK)) (the
“Partnership”) with a size of RMB3 billion in Changsha in the PRC,
of which the Group subscribed for RMB500 million. As of the date of
this report, the Group had made the full payment for its initial capital
contribution of RMB250.0 million, which were funded by proceeds from
the bonds of the Group. The Partnership is expected to serve a platform
to invest in high-quality Chinese consumer brands of the new generation.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated September 9,
2021 for more details.

Other than the Partnership, the Group did not conduct any material
investments, acquisitions or disposals in 2021 and in the period
subsequent to December 31, 2021 and up to March 30, 2022, being the
date of this report.

In addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated November 1, 2016 (the “Prospectus”),
the Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for
major assets or other business. However, the Group will continue to
identify new opportunities for business development.
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RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME

The Company adopted its Restricted Share Unit Scheme (the "RSU
Scheme”) on July 25, 2018. The purpose of the RSU Scheme is to
incentivize Directors, senior management and employees of the Group for
their contribution to the Group, to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel to strive for the future development and expansion
of the Group by providing them with the opportunity to own equity
interests of the Company. The Board has the power to administer the
RSU Scheme. The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion,
select any eligible person, as defined in the RSU Scheme, to participate in
the RSU Scheme and determine the number of Shares to be granted and
the terms and conditions of the grant.

As of the date of this report, pursuant to the RSU Scheme, the RSUs
representing 15,147,285 shares of the Company with par value of
US$0.000001 each were granted to 153 selected persons, of which (i)
RSUs representing 4,159,680 shares were granted to two selected persons
who are directors of the Company; and (ii) RSUs representing 10,987,605
shares were granted to 151 selected persons who are employees of
the Group. The underlying shares concerned represented 0.6% of the
Company'’s issued shares.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated July 25, 2018, July
31, 2018, October 24, 2018 and July 5, 2021 for a detailed summary of
its RSU Scheme and the announcements dated April 20, 2020, February 1,
2021 and March 25, 2021 for the details in connection with the grants of
the RSUs.

TURNOVER RATIOS

Average inventory turnover days decreased from 114.1 days in the year
ended December 31, 2020 to 86.9 days in 2021, mainly due to faster
turnover of raw materials and finished goods with the acceleration
of increasing production and sales resulting from the control of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Average trade receivables turnover days increased from 8.4 days in the
year ended December 31, 2020 to 8.9 days in the year ended December
31, 2021, primarily due to slowed down payment settlement with certain
third parties who collected payments on behalf of the Group as well as
the slightly longer credit terms granted to certain e-commerce platforms
when the Group changes its cooperation with them in 2021.

Average trade payables turnover days decreased from 38.6 days in the
year ended December 31, 2020 to 24.8 days in the year ended December
31, 2021, primarily due to increase in sales volume, quickly depleting
inventory reserve and relatively shortened credit terms granted to the
Group.
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EMPLOYEE AND LABOR COST

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 4,387 employees,
among which 54.4% were retail store operations and sales staff and
25.6% were manufacturing staff at its processing facilities.

The Group has developed a performance evaluation system to assess
the performance of its employees annually, which forms the basis for
determining the salary levels, bonuses and promotions an employee may
receive. Sales and marketing personnel may also receive bonuses based on
the sales targets they accomplish, by taking into account the overall sales
performance of the stores in the same regional market in the relevant
period.

In the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group incurred total labor
costs of RMB507.9 million, representing 17.7% of total revenue of the
Group.

TOP SUPPLIERS AND TOP CUSTOMERS

In the year ended December 31, 2021, purchases from the Group's
largest duck supplier in terms of RMB amount accounted for 4.2% of
total purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five duck
suppliers in aggregate accounted for 17.5% of total purchase cost.

Due to the nature of the Group's business, in the year ended December
31, 2021, revenue derived from its top five customers accounted for less
than 30% of total revenue.

RESERVES

As of December 31, 2021, the Group's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,588.0 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to December 31, 2021 and up to March 30, 2022 (being the
date of this report), no material events were undertaken by the Group.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

EENGREEEERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu (B E#), aged 47, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Zhou founded our business with his wife, Ms. Tang Jianfang,
in 2002 and established our previous holding company, Zhou Hei Ya
Foods Joint Stock Limited Company (B2 E @& B2 7)) (“Wuhan
ZHY Holdco"), on June 13, 2006. He was appointed as our executive
Director on June 8, 2016 and is primarily responsible for formulating the
overall Group's strategies and leading the product development. With
approximately 20 years of experience in casual braised food industry, he
is the key driver of our business strategies and achievements to date and
continues to oversee the management of our operations, business, and
the Group's sales network.

Mr. ZHANG Yuchen (3R 8), aged 46, is an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director
on November 15, 2019 and the Chief Executive Officer on August 27,
2019. He has over 21 years of operational and management experience in
the consumer goods sector, and has served several leading multinational
consumer goods enterprises in management position. From 1997 to
2003, Mr. Zhang served at Procter & Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd. (“"P&G"),
as a distributor channel unit manager, after which Mr. Zhang served in
the WalMart team of P&G from 2003 to 2005 and in the Greater China
market Strategy & Planning of haircare division of P&G from 2005 to
2006. Mr. Zhang then served as distributor channel market director at
P&G from 2006 to 2009, and Mr. Zhang's last held position was National
Trade Marketing Director of Pampers from 2009 to 2011. Later on, Mr.
Zhang served as National Sales Director at L'OREAL (China) Co., Ltd.'s
active cosmetic division from 2011 to 2013. From 2013 to 2016, Mr.
Zhang served as Sales Director (China) at Mattel Barbie (Shanghai) Trading
Co., Ltd., a children’s products trading company. Mr. Zhang then served
as the Country Manager (China) at Hasbro Trading (China) Co., Ltd., a toy
trading company, from 2016 to 2019. In May 2019, Mr. Zhang joined the
Group, serving as Executive Vice President of Hubei Zhouheiya Enterprises
Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang, received his bachelor’s degree in
electrical engineering from Southeast University in June 1997.

Mr. WEN Yong (X B), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on June 8, 2016 and is primarily responsible for the supply
chain management of the Group. He was the deputy general manager
of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from March 2015 to July 2015 and is a deputy
general manager of Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Wen was the manager of procurement and supply department and the
manager of supply chain center of Wuhan ZHY Holdco from June 2006
to April 2011 and from April 2011 to August 2011, respectively, where
he was primarily responsible for the overall operation of the respective
departments. Mr. Wen was also the general manager of Shenzhen Zhou
Hei Ya Foods Co., Ltd. (I ERIER AR A7) from August 2011 to
March 2015.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. PAN Pan (&#), aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on June 8, 2016. He has been the non-executive director of Wuhan
ZHY Holdco from March 25, 2014 to November 24, 2017 and a director
representative of Shenzhen Tiantu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (&3
MREREEIE B R F]) (currently known as Tian Tu Capital Co., Ltd. (%
Y RKBEIEE BEIER LD BRAA)), a shareholder of Wuhan ZHY Holdco
at the same time. He is primarily responsible for giving strategic advice
and making recommendation on the operation of the Group. He was the
managing director of Tiantu Capital Management Center LLP (; JII X
BAREREBL(EREE)) from February 2014 to January 2016 and has
been the partner since February 2016. Mr. Pan also worked at Guoxin
Hongsheng Venture Investment Co., Ltd. (BI{F5ABEIZIREFR 2 F]), an
investment company.

Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in currency banking from Hunan
University (8 A2) in July 2003 and a master’s degree in finance from
Hunan University in December 2004.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul (FR$%%2), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on October 24, 2016. He is the
proprietor of Chan Paul K.C. & Partners, and is now practicing laws in
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive director of
PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 850), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, from October 21, 2002 to September 11, 2015.

He obtained his Juris Doctor Degree from University of Toronto in June
1979. He was admitted to practice as a barrister and solicitor in Ontario,
Canada in April 1981, and as a solicitor in Hong Kong in January 1984
and in England and Wales in July 1988, and as a barrister and solicitor
of the Australian Capital Territory in October 1991, and an advocate and
solicitor of Singapore in February 1995. He is currently a China Appointed
Attesting Officer, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a
Member of Hong Kong Society of Notaries, HKIAC Accredited Mediator, a
Civil Celebrant of Marriages and Certified Tax Adviser.
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Mr. LU Weidong (E##3), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on October 24, 2016. He has been the managing
director of Shenzhen Junfu Investment Co., Ltd. (RIITTHEHREEBR A
7)) (“Shenzhen Junfu”), an investment company, since January 2015.
Prior to joining Shenzhen Junfu, Mr. Lu was the non-auditing business
partner of Grant Thornton Accounting Firm (BRI & 5TEM =4 FT) (formerly
known as Jingdu Tianhua Accountant Firm (REBRIES AT ETEFN)) from
January 2010 to August 2011. From January 2008 to January 2010, he
worked at Shanghai Junfu Panchenzhangjiahua Accounting Firm (_E)&
HEEBERREESFTAIEFT) and successively held positions as Junfu
PRC partner and secretary-general of the partners’ meeting, managing
partner of Shenzhen Branch. Mr. Lu worked as the managing partner
from March 1997 to January 2008 and the legal representative from May
1994 to March 1997 of Shenzhen Licheng Accounting Firm (ZYIIT1 7738
@A FT) (formerly known as Shenzhen Licheng Accounting Firm (&
NSLE & 5HEREFEAT)). From July 1991 to March 1994, he served as the
assistant to the head, the manager of the audit department of Shenzhen
Guangming Accounting Firm ORI BA & ETRIEH5FT). From December
1987 to July 1991, he successively held the positions as auditor assistant,
assistant to the manager and manager of Shekou Zhonghua Accounting
Firm (3¢ O R ES RIS FT). From September 1985 to December 1987,
he held positions as accounting assistant and accounting manager of
China Electronic System Project Co., Ltd. (PEIEFRATIZ4EAF)), an
electronic construction company.

Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Hangzhou Dianzi
University (17741 B FRHZ A E2) (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Electronic Engineering (MMM & F L 23)) in July 1985. He is a Chinese
Certified Public Accountant (FEIFEf&51AM) certified by The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (fF B sEf & 5HEIHE) in May
1990.

Mr. CHEN Chen (Ff/2), aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on December 10, 2021 and is the chairman of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Chen has been the
chief financial officer of ATRenew Inc., a company listed on the NASDAQ
stock market (“NASDAQ") (ticker symbol: RERE), since January 2021 and
is responsible for finance, legal and investment related matters as well as
investor relations, and he has been its director since May 2021. He has
also been an independent director of Q&K International Group Limited, a
company listed on NASDAQ (ticker symbol: QK), since November 2019.
From May 2018 to December 2020, Mr. Chen was the chief financial
officer of Yuniji Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ (ticker symbol: YJ).
Prior to joining Yunji Inc., he was a partner at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
CPA LLP, where he had served and had held various positions since July
2002.
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Mr. Chen received his bachelor’'s degree in naval engineering from
Shanghai Jiaotong University in China in June 2002. He is also a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

Senior Management

Mr. GUO Rong (58%8), aged 54, is the chief financial officer of our
Group. He was the board secretary at Hunan Hoping Seeds Technology
Co., Ltd. (Hir A LB ERERH BRAF]) from October 2015 to May
2019 before joining the Company. Prior to that, he had held senior
financial positions at various multinational or public companies for around
20 years. From October 2010 to September 2015, he served as the chief
financial officer at LBX Pharmacy Co., Ltd. (¥ B REEBHEBH AR A
7)) (Shanghai Stock Exchange: 603883). From September 2004 to August
2010, he was the chief financial officer and chief information officer of
Yuan Longping High-tech Agriculture Co., Ltd. (R&F 2 S RIERD
BBRA7F]) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000998). From December 2002
to September 2004, he was the chief financial officer of Guangdong
Creawor Technology Development Co., Ltd. (BRAIFEHZER AR AF),
a company that provides big data technology solutions. From July 2001 to
December 2002, he was the financial accounting manager for the China
region at Perfetti Van Melle (China) Limited (T AL#5ei8#ER (FRE)
BBRZAR]). From January 2000 to July 2001, he was the credit controller
for the Europe region at Lenovo Group Limited (B#8EEBR A A)
(stock code: 0992). From January 1996 to November 1998, he served
as a financial manager for Hong Kong and overseas regions at Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd. GEAFITARAR]).

Mr. Guo obtained a master of business administration at the Maastricht
School of Management in 1999 and a master of economics at Jinan
University in 1996. He obtained a bachelor degree in economics and an
accounting professional certificate from Hunan University in 1991. Since
2012, he has been a fellow (FFA) of the institute of Financial Accountants
and a fellow (FIPA) of the institute of Public Accountants.
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Mr. XIE Jun (#E), aged 50, is the chief retail business development
centre officer of our Group. He has over 20 years of experience in chain
management and franchise industry. Prior to joining our Group in June
2019, Mr. Xie was a senior director of operations and brand development
of McDonald’s (China) Co., Ltd. &% (FRE) AR A 7)) from February
1996 to April 2016, and he also served at Chongging Nenlv Tea Etiquettes
Co., Ltd. (EEMEFZEHBBR A 7)) and Beijing Road Group (1L 7S &£ ME).
Mr. Xie has extensive experience in operation of chain stores, franchise
and overall management, and specializes in construction of franchise
system and brand development. He previously worked at the founding
franchise team of McDonald’s (China) Co., Ltd., which was responsible
for the national franchise business of McDonald'’s restaurant. Mr. Xie
obtained a bachelor’s degree in foreign economic management from
Wuhan Radio and TV University (BUE M EHEEEAE) in July 1996.

Mr. KANG Peng (EEHE), aged 42, is the chief supply chain officer of
our Group. He has over 20 years of management experience in Fortune
Global 500 multinational companies and companies in the Asia Pacific
region. Prior to joining our Group in August 2020, he served at Mattel
Toy Technology Consulting (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (EZFEIE BT
(&YI) BBE/AT)) as a supplier operations manager from 2002 to 2008,
Lenovo Information Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (B#8 & s EmR ORI
BR/AF]) as a supply chain optimization manager from 2008 to 2010,
Wrigley Confectionery (China) Limited G5 KETHERER (R E) AR AR)) as
a purchasing, logistics and planning manager from July 2010 to December
2013, Carlsberg A/S (stock symbol: CARL B, a company listed on Nasdaq)
as a supply chain project director of Asia region from January 2014 to
July 2020. Mr. Kang has extensive experience in enterprise supply chain
management, including supply chain network optimization, investment
strategic planning, sales and operation planning, warehousing and
transportation, procurement, import and export trade, logistics network
design and implementation, as well as investment and construction of
new factories. He is also experienced in managing omni-channel supply
chain in the food and beverage fast consuming industry.

Mr. Kang obtained a master’s degree in business administration and
postgraduate certificate from Xi'an Jiaotong University (F8 %% i@ K E2)
in July 2010. He is also a certified supply chain professional certified by
American Production and Inventory Control Society (APICS) (currently
known as Association for Supply Chain Management) in April 2017.
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Directors’ Report

EFEWE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activity of
the Group is to produce and retail casual braised food.

BUSINESS REVIEW

General

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement, Business Review and Outlook as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 8, pages 9 to 19 and pages 20
to 33, respectively, of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 20 to 33 of
this annual report. Subsequent to December 31, 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group has not undertaken any material events.

Principal risks and uncertainties the Group faces include (i) uncertainty
as to the opening and profitable operation of new retail stores; (ii)
uncertainty as to the expansion into new geographical markets; (iii)
uncertainty as to the performance of the Group’s current retail stores;
(iv) risks related to site selection for new stores; (v) risks related to quality
control and food safety; and (vi) risks related to increasing food price,
labor costs and commercial real estate rent.

The financial risks of the Group include foreign currency risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. These financial risks, and the related risk management
policies and practices used by the Group are discussed in note 42 headed
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group strictly complies with the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations in the places where it operates, focuses on
environmental protection in the manufacturing process, and promotes
green and low-carbon office practices to reduce the environmental impact
of production and operation activities. During the year ended December
31, 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), we continued to enhance our
environmental management system, incorporated energy and resource
consumption targets into key performance assessments, and improved
the efficiency of energy and resource consumption. We also continued to
strengthen the management of production processes and promote the
efficient use of packaging materials. Meanwhile, we also carried out waste
sorting and recycling management to promote a circular economy and
reduce waste generation and to improve the Company’s environmental
performance and economic benefits.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group continued to obtain updates on applicable PRC laws and
regulations to ensure full compliance in the course of production and
operation activities. We have applied for and obtained all major licenses,
approvals and permits required by relevant regulatory agencies. As of
December 31, 2021, the Group has not experienced any material impact
due to the violation of any relevant laws and regulations. During the
Relevant Period, the Board and senior management carried out work
and exercised their authorities in accordance with the relevant applicable
PRC laws and regulations, relevant applicable laws and regulations in
relation to a company established in the Cayman Islands, the articles of
association of the Company, the Board charter, the internal policies of
committees and internal control systems, and the decision-making process
was legal and valid. Meanwhile, the Company performed its disclosure
obligations in a timely manner to meet its compliance requirements, in
strict compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Relationship with Employees

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment laws and
regulations, constantly optimizes its human resource management
system, and fully respects and protects its employees’ legitimate rights
and interests. The Group provides its employees with a healthy and safe
working environment and offers them competitive remuneration and
benefits, fair promotion opportunities, and a sound training system.
During the Reporting Period, we launched a talent development project
to help employees formulate a reasonable and personalized development
path. We expect that the project will continuously improve organizational
performance analysis and performance system, establish a scientific
incentive mechanism for employees, strengthen employee training and
development systems, increase team cohesion as well as attract, retain
and motivate employees.

For further details on the Group’s employees and employee costs and
remuneration policies, please refer to the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Labor Cost” and “Director’s
Report — Employees and Remuneration Policies”.

Important Relationships with Stakeholders

The Group regards shareholders/investors, government departments,
suppliers, employees, the media and consumers as its important
stakeholders. To ensure the establishment of a set of sustainable
development strategies that effectively manages environmental and social
regulatory risks and to provide the appropriate corresponding disclosures,
we continue to improve our long-term communications mechanism with
various stakeholders. At the same time, a multi-dimensional risk analysis
was conducted to identify environmental, social and governance issues
that are of interest to the Group’s development and stakeholders, and an
independent Environmental, Social and Governance Report was issued.

During the Reporting Period, the Group carried out stakeholder
communications and reviews of substantive issues as well as analyzed
environmental, social, and governance issues that the Group’s key
influential stakeholders are focusing on. The Group is committed to
continuously improve its level of corporate sustainable development
management.

For further details regarding our major suppliers and customers, please
refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and
Suppliers”.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group's financial affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 87.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.12 per
share (adopting an exchange rate of HK$1 = RMB0.81218, equivalent
to RMBO0.10 per share) and payable in Hong Kong dollars, amounting to
approximately a total of RMB238,314,000 for the year ended December
31, 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend"), representing approximately
70% of our net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021. The 2021
Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on
Tuesday, May 31, 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy adopted by the Company with effect
from January 1, 2020, distributions of dividends are determined at the
discretion of the Board. In determining whether any distribution shall be
made and the amount of dividends, the Board shall take into account
the Company’s results of operations, cash flow, financial conditions,
statutory and regulatory restrictions, capital, future business plans and
prospects, and any other conditions which the Board deems relevant.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will be
subject to compliance with the Company’s constitutional documents and
companies law of the Cayman Islands.

The Company will evaluate its dividend policy and distributions made from
time to time.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determination of eligibility to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, May 26, 2022 to Tuesday, May 31, 2022 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Tuesday, May 31, 2022, all transfer of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, May 25, 2022.

Subject to the approval of the declaration of the 2021 Final Dividend at
the forthcoming AGM, the register of members of the Company will also
be closed from Tuesday, June 7, 2022 to Thursday, June 9, 2022 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed 2021 Final Dividend,
all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, June 6, 2022. The
2021 Final Dividend, if approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM, will be paid on or about Thursday, June 30, 2022.

RESERVES
Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December
31, 2021 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB1,588.0 million (2020: RMB1,755.8 million).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2021 are set
out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had an aggregate bank borrowings
of RMB50 million, all of which will be due within one year. As at the date
of this annual report, no bank borrowings are due and no repayment has
been made.

In addition, the Company completed the offering of the 2025 Bonds
in November 2020, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021
amounted to approximately RMBO0.4 million (2020: RMB12.6 million).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 196 of this annual
report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Other than the purchase of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
through a designated trustee which will be used as awards under the
Company’s RSU Scheme, the Company and its subsidiaries did not
purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended December 31, 2021. The Company adopted its RSU
Scheme on July 25, 2018, please refer to “Directors’ Report — Restricted
Share Unit Scheme” for more details.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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SHARES ISSUED

Details of the Shares issued as at December 31, 2021 are disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statement.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:
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Name Position

®E B

Mr. ZHOU Fuyu Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

AEW L EERIERWTES

Mr. ZHANG Yuchen Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

RFREE MITE FRITEER

Mr. WEN Yong Executive Director

XEBEEE WMITES

Mr. PAN Pan Non-executive Director

EEEE FNTES

Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul Independent Non-executive Director

PREBIZ I AE BUIEMITES

Mr. LU Weidong Independent Non-executive Director

ERRSE WIFITESR

Mr. CHEN Chen Independent Non-executive Director (appointed on December 10, 2021)
BRI=SEE BN INTEE(R_F-——F+_H+HEZT)

Mr. WU Chi Keung Independent Non-executive Director (passed away on October 12, 2021)
AEREE BYIINTEE(R=F=-—F+A+=HEH)

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. ZHOU
Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, Mr. WEN Yong and Mr. CHEN Chen shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and they being
eligible and offer themselves for re-election.

None of Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, Mr. WEN Yong and Mr.
CHEN Chen has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions
as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

EEAERS RSN HES

B aMEHMRMEIMEENER T XS NAES
EWREFERS | —AMEENRERSIN - KAAF
S E A B R RAEF RIAFEAEMER - W&
FINEAERR S  REFRAHNMEEEERLMHE
BHE A o

EERESTRAERAQASHEBB X
BERD - HERONEER 2 BE R K
B

BHE_Z-_—F+-A=+—0 EZRXAREE=
TRABEARARSEEBEZB (TR RLEFLFNBE
&I ([BHREGKRM ) EXVIB) ik - BERD
SEREPHREREES KPS EAEIS21EREA
BEARRBZELMAER  SREETMBITAZES
EITEFR ZMIZESTRI([ZEESA ) ENEg AR
MEBBERZIARA([BRAT) MR kAR
LUNNE

Name of Group Number of Approximate
Name of Director/ member/associated Capacity/ underlying  percentage of
Chief Executive corporation Nature of interest Shares™ shareholding
TEEKE 51/ B RE
EE BeTHABER HECEEER EEME HERGHEO Bok
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu The Company Interest of spouse® 1,352,417,440? 56.75%
AEH L Z/N| [iiErE Fall)
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen The Company Beneficial owner 2,685,078% 0.11%
RFEREE RAT] BmEAA
Mr. WEN Yong The Company Beneficial owner 556,091® 0.02%
NEEE ZAN EmfEaA
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Notes:

(1

(©)

(4)

5)

All interests stated are long positions.

These 1,352,417,440 Shares represent 5,571,500 Shares held by Ms.
Tang Jianfang, 1,191,838,500 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings
Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited are held by ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited
("ZHY X") which in turn is 100% held by Cantrust (Far East) Limited being
the trustee of Fuyu Family Trust (the “Trust”). Ms. Tang Jianfang is the
settlor of the Trust. Therefore, Ms. Tang Jianfang is deemed to be interested
in 1,191,838,500 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy Origin
Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively. Since Ms.
Tang Jianfang owns 100% of ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited, Ms. Tang
Jianfang is also deemed to be interested in 122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY
Holdings IV Company Limited.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Tang lianfang and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares which are interested by Ms. Tang Jianfang under the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Yuchen is interested in restricted share units adopted by the
Company (“RSUs"), representing 2,685,078 Shares held on trust on
his behalf by Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited (the “RSU
Trustee”). For details of the grant of RSUs to Mr. Zhang, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated April 20, 2020 and March 25, 2021.

Mr. Wen Yong is interested in RSUs representing 556,091 Shares held on
trust on his behalf by the RSU Trustee. For details of the grant of RSUs to Mr.
Wen, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated April 20,
2020 and March 25, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, none of the Directors

nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

G
(1)

@)

(5)

Br X EEESN

PRI BRI RIFR -

1A7%1,352,417 A40RR AR (3 -+ RIS 22 +4%5755,571,500
REA - RIERA R A RIE1,191,838,500/% A% 15 -
ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited#% /& 32,480,300 f% i%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN e
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors A —
or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FER

ER R ARE

Number of Shares

REAMA LRI RATBE R AT AY

T-—F+-A=+—H UWTFTAL(ESZHAK
ARAEBITHABBRIN RARRA R BRG% 8 R G5 +
BB ERIBEE S RS GO E336 & E LR ARA
AIEENREAMA T AERSAR

Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest or securities held(? interest
BRRME EmME RGOSR ESEHBEO BAREES L
Ms. TANG Jianfang® Interests in a controlled corporation 122,527,140 (L) 5.14%
BEFN T+ RIS AR E R
Settlor of a family trust 1,224,318,800 (L) 51.37%
RIREFEZTEA
Beneficial owner 5,571,500 (L) 0.24%
EnlEAA
1,352,417,440 (L) 56.75%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited® Trustee 1,224,318,800 (L) 51.37%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited® ZEEA
ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited® Interest in a controlled corporation 1,224,318,800 (L) 51.37%
ZHY X Holdings Co., Limited® Syl EEE R
Healthy Origin Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1,191,838,500 (L) 50.01%
fRIZER B R A A EnEEA
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited Beneficial owner 122,527,140 (L) 5.14%
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited EmEA A
Credit Suisse Group AG Interest in a controlled corporation 142,565,348 (L) 5.98%
Credit Suisse Group AG SVYEHEE R 125,706,909 (S) 5.27%
Investment manager 407,000 (L) 0.02%
BREKE
142,972,348 (L) 6.00%
125,706,909 (S) 5.27%
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Notes:

(1

)

(©)

The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in such Shares. The letter “L"
denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

These 1,352,417,440 Shares represent 5,571,500 Shares held by Ms.
Tang Jianfang, 1,191,838,500 Shares held by Healthy Origin Holdings
Limited, 32,480,300 Shares held by ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
122,527,140 Shares held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Healthy Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY
Holdings Il Company Limited are held by ZHY X which in turn is 100% held by
Cantrust (Far East) Limited being the trustee of the Trust. Ms. Tang Jianfang
is the settlor of the Trust. Therefore, Ms. Tang lJianfang is deemed to be
interested in 1,191,838,500 Shares and 32,480,300 Shares held by Healthy
Origin Holdings Limited and ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited, respectively.
Since Ms. Tang Jianfang owns 100% of ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited,
Ms. Tang Jianfang is also deemed to be interested in 122,527,140 Shares
held by ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited.

Cantrust (Far East) Limited is the trustee of Fuyu Family Trust established by Ms.
Tang Jianfang. The Trustee through indirect interest in each of ZHY Holdings
Il Company Limited and Healthy Origin Holdings Limited holds 32,480,300
Shares and 1,191,838,500 Shares, respectively. ZHY X, which is wholly-owned
by the Trustee, through direct interest in each of ZHY Holdings Il Company
Limited and Healthy Origin Holdings Limited holds 32,480,300 Shares and
1,191,838,500 Shares respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, the Directors and chief

executive of the Company are not aware of any other persons/entities, not

being a Director or chief executive of the Company, who has an interest

or short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2021, purchases from the Group's largest duck supplier in terms of
dollar amount accounted for approximately 4.2% of total purchase cost
and the aggregate purchases from its top five duck suppliers in terms of
dollar amount in aggregate accounted for approximately 17.5% of total
purchase cost.

None of our Directors, any of their close associates or any shareholders
that, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of the issued
Shares had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

In 2021, due to the nature of the Group's business, revenue derived from
its top five customers accounted for less than 30% of total revenue.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
discussed the Group's risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters with the management. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their respective holding of the Company’s
securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at December 31, 2021, the Group employed a total of 4,387 full-time
employees (December 31, 2020: 3,939). The increase in the number of
employees was mainly due to the increase in the scale of the Group’s
business.

We currently recruit our employees primarily through on-campus recurring
programs and posting advertisements on recruitment websites. Our
success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, including
research and development personal, sales personal and management.
Therefore, we place strong emphasis on providing training to our
employees in order to enhance their professional skills and we design and
offer different training programs for employees at various positions.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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We enter into labor contracts with all of our employees. We have
developed a performance evaluation system to assess the performance of
our employees annually, which forms the basis for determining the salary
levels, bonuses and promotions employees may receive. Our sales and
marketing personnel may also receive bonuses based on the sales targets
they accomplish, by taking into account the overall sales performance of
the stores in the same regional market in the relevant period. Under the
applicable PRC laws and regulations, we are subject to social insurance
contribution plans.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. There is no change in the auditor since
the Company'’s listing date.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES

AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, nor did the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and directors
of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates, had interests
in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report, there has been no change
in the Directors’ biographical details which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2021
interim report of the Company.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, our
controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Fuyu, Ms. Tang Jianfang,
Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, ZHY Holdings Il Company Limited and
ZHY Holdings IV Company Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”),
entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the Company on
October 24, 2016 (the “Deed"”). Pursuant to the Deed, the Controlling
Shareholders have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the
business of the Group, and details of the Deed are set out in the sub-
section headed “Non-competition Undertaking” in the section headed
"Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the
Company dated November 1, 2016.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation
to the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the
Deed (the “Undertakings”) during the year ended December 31, 2021
(the “Relevant Period”).

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as part
of the annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholder had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant
Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-executive
Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they
had fully complied with the Undertakings in the Relevant Period; (b) no
new competing business was reported by the Controlling Shareholders
during the Relevant Period; and (c) there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings being questionable. In
view of the above, the independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that, as far as they can ascertain, all of the Undertakings were complied
with by the Controlling Shareholders in the Relevant Period.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. Such provisions were in force
throughout the year ended December 31, 2021 and are currently in force.
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE GLOBAL OFFERING

On November 11, 2016, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. A total of 488,140,500 ordinary shares
with nominal value of US$0.000001 each of the Company were issued
at HK$5.88 per Share for a total of approximately HK$2,870.3 million
under the global offering of the Company. The net proceeds raised by
the Company from the abovementioned global offering, after deducting
the underwriting commission and related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$2,792.3 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group had utilized
approximately RMB299.4 million of the proceed from the IPO,
comprising RMB193.2 million in the construction and improvement of
processing facilities, logistics and storage centers, RMB29.9 million in the
development of retail store network, RMB50.9 million in brand image
campaigns, including the e-commerce marketing campaigns, RMB20.0
million in research activities and RMB5.4 million in upgrading its ERP
system. As of December 31, 2021, net proceeds of RMB469.2 million
(December 31, 2020: RMB768.6 million) not utilized had been deposited
into short-term deposits and money market instruments, including
structured deposits. The unutilized portion of the net proceeds from the
global offering is intended to be applied in the manner as disclosed in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds
from the IPO" in this annual report.
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THE 2025 BONDS

On October 28, 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Credit Suisse (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Manager”), pursuant to which the Manager has
conditionally agreed to subscribe and pay for, or to procure subscribers
to subscribe and pay for, the 2025 Bonds due 2025 to be issued by
the Company in an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,550 million,
bearing interest at the rate of 1% per annum, which entitle the Manager
to convert a maximum of 149,038,461 conversion shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$10.40 per conversion share. The 2025 Bonds
were issued to the Manager in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Subscription Agreement on November 5, 2020. Immediately after
completion of the subscription and assuming no conversion of the 2025
Bonds, there were 2,383,140,500 Shares in issue, and as at December 31,
2021, the number of issued Shares remained the same.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Bonds, after deducting
the relevant commissions and other estimated expenses payable, are
approximately HK$1,519.8 million. The net proceeds from the issuance of
the 2025 Bonds will be used as follow: (i) approximately 55.0% to further
penetrate in existing markets and explore new business opportunities;
(i) approximately 20.0% to enhance product innovation, research and
development capabilities; and (iii) approximately 25.0% for working
capital and for general corporate purposes. Please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for details about the 2025 Bonds. As of December 31, 2021,
the Group had not utilized any net proceeds which had been deposited
into short-term deposits and money market instruments, including
structured deposits.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Zhou Fuyu, being our executive Director and controlling shareholder,
and Ms. Tang Jianfang, being our controlling shareholder, are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a master property lease agreement with
Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) on October 24, 2016 to lease five commercial properties
owned by Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (the “Original Five
Properties”). The lease of the five properties successively expired
between June 2019 and January 2021. The Company entered into the
renewed master property lease agreement with Mr. Zhou Fuyu and
Ms. Tang Jianfang (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) on April
1, 2019. Based on the renewed master property lease agreement, the
Company continued to lease the Original Five Properties after the expiry
of the lease of the Original Five Properties, for a lease term ending on
March 31, 2022, and the lease of one of the properties was renewed on
July 1, 2019. Meanwhile, based on the renewed master property lease
agreement, the Company leased two new commercial properties on April
1, 2019, with the lease term ending on March 31, 2022. However, the
leases of the two properties with Ms. Tang Jianfang were terminated early
in January 2020 and December 2020 respectively, due to the operational
adjustment of the Company. Located in Wuhan City, Hubei Province,
China, the aforesaid properties with a total area of approximately 1,150
square meters were used as retail stores and offices.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated April 1, 2019
in relation to continuing connected transactions, as HKFRS 16 “Lease”
has taken effect from January 1, 2019 and be applicable to financial
years starting on or after January 1, 2019, pursuant to the requirements
of the Stock Exchange, the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions under the master property lease agreement with the Group as
the lessee for the years ended December 31, 2019, 2020 and 2021 was
set based on the total value of right-of-use assets relating to the leases
to be entered into by the Group, and are respectively RMB5,000,000,
RMBS5,250,000 and RMB5,512,500, including annual rents payable or
paid to Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang prior to the renewal upon
the expiry of the lease of the Original Five Properties.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the actual transaction amount
under the master property lease agreement was RMB1,975,000. The
transaction contemplated under the master property lease agreement
is classified as a continuing connected transaction pursuant to Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and is only subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. The transaction contemplated under the master
property lease agreement also constitutes a related party transaction of
the Company under HKFRS. For details, see note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, our independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, and were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

Based on work performed, the independent auditor has confirmed in a
letter to the Board to the effect that nothing has come to its attention
that causes it to believe that the above transactions:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(c) have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.
The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the connected transactions set out above.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as disclosed
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute

connected transactions required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board

ZHOU Fuyu
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 30, 2022

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company has
developed and implemented sound governance policies and measures,
and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, except the deviation from code provision A.5.1 of
the Code (currently known as Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules) as further
explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for
the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The day-
to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the structure and composition of the
Board from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy to set out the approach adopted by the
Board regarding diversity of Board members.

No Board member has relationship with the other Board members and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 34 to 38 of this annual report.

Except for Mr. Zhang Yuchen, who entered the service contract with the
Company on November 15, 2019, each of the other executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company on October 24,
2019, and the Company has issued letters of appointment to each of the
non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors. The
principal particulars of these service contracts and letters of appointment
are (a) for a term of 3 years commencing from the date the service
contract or letter of appointment is entered and (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective terms. The term of the service
contracts and the letters of appointment may be renewed in accordance
with our articles of association of the Company and the applicable Listing
Rules.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2021 was
approximately RMB16.9 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and performance of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management for 2021 are set out in note
8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
code provision E.1.5 in Part 2 of the Code, the annual remuneration
of members of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is set out below:
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Number of
Remuneration to the senior management by band senior management
REBDPENSREERETH EREEEAK
Nil — HK$1,000,000 T 051,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,00187C£1,500,0007% 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001;%7C22,000,0007% 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,000,001/ 724,000,000/ 7T 3
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From January 1, 2021 to October 11, 2021, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of
the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive directors
must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than
three.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated October 18,
2021, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, who was an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee, passed away on October 12, 2021. Following
the passing away of Mr. Wu Chi Keung, (i) the number of independent
non-executive Directors was two and fell below the minimum number of
three as required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (ii) the number
of independent non-executive Directors accounted for less than one-third
of the Board as required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules; (iii) the
number of Audit Committee members fell below the minimum number
of three and there is a vacancy for the chairman of the Audit Committee
as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; and (iv) the composition
of the Nomination Committee deviated from code provision A.5.1 of the
Code (currently known as Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules) which requires
the Nomination Committee to comprise a majority of independent non-
executive Directors as members.

On December 10, 2021, Mr. Chen Chen was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee. Following the appointment
of Mr. Chen Chen, the Company has fully complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.21 of the Listing Rules, and code
provision A.5.1 of the Code (currently known as Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules).

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the company secretary of the Company was Mr. Cheung Kai
Cheong Willie (“Mr. Cheung”). Mr. Cheung is a senior manager of
SWCS Corporate Service Group (Hong Kong) Limited, and has more than
20 years of professional experience in company secretarial, accounting
and finance matters. His primary corporate contact person was Mr. Zhou
Fuyu, the executive Director of the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Cheung has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended December 31, 2021.

B %—A—RAE-_T-_—Ft+A+—H &K
REVE=MBIENITES - A EMRAERAE
HERTEFABELEFEEL =D 2 — KTEER
ZRNREAZBSRTE

MARR—E-_—F+ A+ \BHNAEHEE B
HPTEE BERLZEQIRRREZEGHKENS
BERAEN T -—F+ A+ BBt - RIATREE
BEtEIE - (VB IERTEETNHE AME - ERLEM
RANE3I0MNERE 2 HIEEE =4 ; ()BT
EEMEEGELER EMRAEII0AKEENES
gREN =22 (INBZZEEKNEMNHEER L
TRAEI 2R Er REBE — R EEZZE ST
IR RWIRBZE B emMAEKIRE A/ <P Al
B EASMGCRIB ETMARRIE327A1) - HIRTER
HZEESHRAZEIB N IENTETHMN -

RZZE_—F+-_A+H BRLLEZTAERE
BEEXF FWZESEXTERIELZESNKE - K
MELEEZAE ARG E2EET EMRASE
310N « 3. 10A &R 321G A K5 RIAY 57 B
NEASVECGEB EMRAIEI 27AB)BIETE ©

ARBEWEIRBIIFNITERRIE LTRANFE3.13
GZBIMRERE  YRA/BREBULNARF -

EXNESARAMENRYE  UBREBESSH
RB-HBE"Z-—F+-"A=+—HILFE  AQ7
HRARIWMEBRRESLE([RELE]D - RELERFTE
TEREEBR(EB)BRATNDREE - ERAMW
2 gk BEE I AMNBER - TFENEEL
B HRARRNEZRRBEABAARNITES
BAEHtE BE_E-_—€+-_A=+—RHIL&E

[ - SRCECET EMARAIE3.200% - #XRPRIS5
ANGE:OPELEEE Sl
BEBERZRERAT

2021 &4

59



60

Corporate Governance Report {3 E R3S

Each of the Directors (being Mr. Zhou Fuyu, Mr. Zhang Yuchen, Mr. Wen
Yong, Mr. Pan Pan, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr. Chan Kam Ching, Paul, Mr.
Lu Weidong and Mr. Chen Chen) attended various trainings in 2021,
including the trainings for connected transactions, for the amendment of
the Listing Rules, for the directors’ duties, responsibilities and continuous
obligations, for the Model Code, etc. The Company will arrange suitable
training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as part of their continuous professional development.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board held ten meetings,
at which the Board discussed and approved the proposals of Company’s
overall strategy and connected transaction issue, considered and approved
the proposals of Company’s 2020 annual report, 2020 annual results
announcement, the payment of 2020 final dividend, 2021 interim report,
2021 interim results announcement and 2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance report.

The table below sets out the details of Board meetings attendance of each
Director during the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Number of Board

meetings requiring Number of Board

attendance meetings attended
AHEESS BREHEESS
Director S BERE BRRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu (Chairman) H?.EEWEE(I/*) 10 10
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen (Chief Executive Officer) RAE(TTBAEE) 10 10
Mr. WEN Yong X%f‘ﬁi 10 9
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. PAN Pan E Vi 10 8
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul PREFIZSTAE 10 10
Mr. LU Weidong EERLE 10 10
Mr. CHEN Chen ﬁ%%‘ﬁi
(Appointed on December 10, 2021) (R=F=—F+= A+HEZ(F) 0 0
Mr. WU Chi Keung tARERR S A
(Passed away on October 12, 2021) (R—ZF——&F+ A+ HEEH) 10 8
In 2021, the Company convened and held one general meeting, beingthe HR=ZE=—4F - ARG BHAREBT—ABREAS - §)
2020 annual general meeting held on June 2, 2021. All of the Directors RZ-ZZT_—F XA _HRTH_ZE_ZERFFFAKX
by then namely Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. ZHANG Yuchen, Mr. WEN Yong, Mr. & - ERFMEEEE(BEABHRELE RTFEELLE -
PAN Pan, Mr. WU Chi Keung, Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul and Mr. LU X B%4 - FE %4 - AR EL: - RIEREERE

Weidong, attended the general meeting.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board continuously seeks to enhance its effectiveness and to maintain
the highest standards of corporate governance and recognizes diversity at
Board level as an essential element in maintaining competitive advantage
and sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director. The
Company will also take into account factors relating to its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board, having due regard to the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect. The Board will take opportunities to increase
the proportion of female members from time to time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for appointments
of directors. The Board targets to appoint a female director no later than
31 December 2024, with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity.
The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of directors
who have different industry backgrounds, such as legal, financial and
investment professionals.

The Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to support
the execution of its business strategies and in order for the Board to be
effective.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will report annually on
the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
policy’s revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 in Part 2 of the Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and written employee
guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has four principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Strategic Development Committee. Each of the Board committees
operates under its terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are available on the website of the Company and that of the
Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. From January 1, 2021 to
October 11, 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely Mr. WU Chi Keung, Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul and Mr. LU
Weidong, our independent non-executive Directors; in which Mr. WU
Chi Keung was the chairman of the Audit Committee who possessed the
appropriate professional qualifications. On October 12, 2021, Mr. WU
Chi Keung passed away. From October 12, 2021 to December 9, 2021,
the Audit Committee consisted of two members, namely Mr. CHAN Kam
Ching, Paul and Mr. LU Weidong. On December 10, 2021, Mr. CHEN
Chen was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and is
our independent non-executive Director possessing the appropriate
professional qualifications. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the effectiveness of the Group's financial and accounting policies,
to review the financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee held
three meetings, at which the Audit Committee considered and approved
the proposals of Company’s 2020 annual report, 2020 annual results
announcement, 2021 interim report, 2021 interim results announcement
and the report on audit plan for the year of 2021 by Ernst & Young, the
external auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee also assessed
the risk management and internal control measures, as well as the
effectiveness of the internal audit function, of the Company.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee during the year ended December 31,
2021.
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Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director == EHEERRE SHEERRH
Mr. CHEN Chen REEE
(Appointed on December 10, 2021) (R=—F——F+ = F+HEZE) 0 0
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul PREBIZSCAE 3 3
Mr. LU Weidong EEHRLE 3 3
Mr. WU Chi Keung BRI E
(Passed away on October 12, 2021) (R=-ZFE=—1F+ A+ = HE#) 3 3
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. From January 1, 2021 to October 11, 2021, the
Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. WU Chi Keung and Mr. LU Weidong, and one
executive Director, being Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, who is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. On October 12, 2021, Mr. WU Chi Keung passed
away. From October 12, 2021 to December 9, 2021, the Nomination
Committee consisted of one independent non-executive Director, being
Mr. LU Weidong, and one executive Director, being Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, who
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. On December 10, 2021,
Mr. CHEN Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our Board on
the appointment and removal of Directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings, at which the Nomination Committee reviewed
the proposals of the Board structure, the diversity policy of the
Board members, the independence of the non-executive Directors,
the recommendation of re-election of the retiring Directors and the
recommendation of appointment of Mr. CHEN Chen as an independent
non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing
the composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment and removal of Directors. In recommending candidates
for appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regards
to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Company has adopted
a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”), which sets out the
approach to guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment, and diversification of the Directors.
Diversity of the Board will be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional skills and/
or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted
as a director. The Company will also take into account factors relating
to its own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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Mr. CHEN Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on December 10, 2021. Mr. Chen was nominated to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director by the Nomination Committee at
the meeting held on December 10, 2021. The Nomination Committee
considered his skills and extensive financial experience, as well as the
diversity aspects set out in the Company'’s board diversity policy (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
industry experience, technical and professional skills and/or qualifications,
knowledge, length of services and time to be devoted as a director). His
appointment was approved by the Board on December 10, 2021. Mr.
Chen has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from December 10, 2021. He will be
entitled to an annual director’s fee of HK$200,000, which was determined
with reference to his duties, responsibilities and experience, and the
prevailing market conditions. Notwithstanding the above, according to
the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Chen will hold office until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible
for re-election, and thereafter Mr. Chen will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years in accordance with
the Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated December 10, 2021.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended December
31, 2021.
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Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director BE EHEERRE EHESRLRHE
Mr. ZHOU Fuyu BEZHEE 2 2
Mr. LU Weidong ERREE 2 2
Mr. CHEN Chen REEE
(Appointed on December 10, 2021) (R=ZF-——F+—H+HEZE) 0 0
Mr. WU Chi Keung FARsR A
(Passed away on October 12, 2021) (R=ZZF=—F+ [+ = HE) 2 2

NOMINATION POLICY

This nomination policy adopted by the Company that has become
effective on January 1, 2019 aims to set out the approach to guide the
Nomination Committee in relation to the election, appointment and
re-appointment of the Directors. It aims to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
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NOMINATION PROCESS
The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the

appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

(a

The Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search
effort on suitable candidates;

The Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertisements, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from shareholders
of the Company with due consideration given to the criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
conducting interviews, background checks, presentations and third-
party reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the
Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation
to the Board in relation to the proposed appointment and the
proposed remuneration package; and

The Board will have the final authority on determining the selection
of nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be).
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. From January 1, 2021
to December 9, 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, being two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHAN Kam Ching, Paul and Mr. LU Weidong, and one executive Director,
namely Mr. ZHANG Yuchen; in which Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul was the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. With effect from December
10, 2021, (i) Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul has resigned to be the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and (ii) Mr. CHEN Chen has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations on employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in code
provision E.1.2(c)(ii) in Part 2 of the Code in its terms of reference.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Remuneration Committee

FNEES
RAAREKLFMEES  HEAREHEFTA LD
RANE3.2506 Kk EmAR R M s+ HATEA Rl - 5=
T F—-A—RAEZTE=—F+ZANA  FWZE
Beh=-RKEBEK  HIMBRBIIERITES
(BB A REFRELE) R—Z ANITES (A
FREL) BBREEAFWNZESEF -6
To—F+_AtHE (RBELERTIHFHZE
CEFERINEREECEZTABYIIERTESE RS
WZESERFE - FNEZECNETER T AT NEH
EHESREREEENTMBCRMERE - WHEE
BT HHEMEBER

/\ﬁﬁ%ﬁiéalqﬂ% ST RIE — B DT
(OGiVEFrift &9 <p 8l o

EE ?E\@
BIfESCEEE.

RE-T-—F+-A=+—AILFE FHEAS

held one meeting, at which the Remuneration Committee reviewed and 17—k &% ERHFHNEEeEZH T BEE T ABE
approved the proposals of remuneration of the Directors and senior ZERSHREEAEHTH =TS REEAEFHH

management, the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management, etc.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
December 31, 2021.
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Number of meetings Number of
requiring attendance meetings attended
Director = BHEEHRE BHEEBERE
Mr. CHEN Chen BRESEE
(Appointed on December 10, 2021) (R=ZF=——F+ = F+HEZT) 0 0
Mr. LU Weidong EREREE 1 1
Mr. ZHANG Yuchen FREE 1 1
Mr. CHAN Kam Ching, Paul PREFIZSTAE

Resigned on December 10, 2021)

(R = FE——F+—F+HEE)
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Strategic Development Committee

The Company also established a Strategic Development Committee
and the Board has adopted the terms of reference for the Strategic
Development Committee. The Strategic Development Committee has
three members, namely Mr. ZHOU Fuyu, Mr. WEN Yong and Mr. ZHANG
Yuchen, our executive Directors, in which Mr. ZHOU Fuyu has been
appointed as the chairman of the Strategic Development Committee. The
primary duties of the Strategic Development Committee are to review and
advise on the mid to long term Strategic positioning, development plans
and investment decisions of the Company and make recommendations to
the Board, to monitor and review the implementations of strategic plans,
to advise on major investment projects, merger and acquisitions, brand
strategies or any other material matters which will affect the Company’s
long term development.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Strategic Development
Committee held one meeting, at which the Strategic Development
Committee considered proposals for mid to long term strategic
positioning, development plans and investment decisions of the Company,
brand strategies, etc.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Strategic Development Committee during the year ended
December 31, 2021.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code during the
year ended December 31, 2021.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the remuneration paid to Ernst
& Young in respect of audit services and non-audit services amounted
to RMB2,400,000 and RMB194,000, respectively. The main non-audit
services provided by the external auditors include advisory service related
to environment, social and governance.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during
the reporting period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out on
pages 77 to 79 of this annual report. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group's
assets and its shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The internal control and risk management systems
are implemented to manage, rather than eliminate, the risks to which
the Group is exposed. The systems therefore serve to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses. The
Company also has an internal audit function which primarily carries out
the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the issuer’s risk management and internal control systems, and reports
their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Board has reviewed
once on the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures
and standards. The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions. The review was made by discussions with the management
of the Company, its external and internal auditors and the assessment
conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing
internal control and risk management systems are adequate and effective,
in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner. Briefing session is held regularly for officers to facilitate their
understanding and compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call general meetings. Pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company, general meetings shall also be convened
on the written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company
of any one or more members of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene the general meeting in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.
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The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director is available on the Company’s website (www.zhouheiya.cn).
Shareholders may lodge written proposal to the company secretary of the
Company at 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such written notice is given, shall be at least seven
days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting. In order to ensure that other Shareholders would
have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the person
proposed for election as a Director, Shareholders are urged to lodge
their written notice of his intention to propose a person for election as a
Director as early as practicable in advance of the relevant general meeting
and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as defined in the Listing
Rules, i.e. day(s) on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of
dealing in securities) before the date scheduled for holding the relevant
general meeting, so that the Company can complete the verification
procedure with the Company’s share registrar, and procure the publication
of an announcement and/or the dispatch of a supplementary circular to
Shareholders in compliance with the applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules. In the event that any such written notice is received by the
Company later than the 12th business day before the date of holding the
relevant general meeting, the Company will need to consider whether
to adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give Shareholders a notice of
at least 10 business days of the proposal in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining transparent,
accurate and open communication with its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has adopted the Shareholders Communication Policy
to streamline policies and procedures for provision of appropriate and
timely information about the Company to the shareholders, as well
as for them to engage actively with the Company and to exercise
their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. According to the
Shareholders Communication Policy, information of the Company shall be
communicated to its shareholders mainly through annual reports, interim
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be
convened, as well as other publications and corporate communications on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. The
Shareholders Communication Policy is available on the Company’s website
(www.zhouheiya.cn).
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Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting the
Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general meeting
or extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The contact details of
the Company are set out in the Company’s website (www.zhouheiya.cn).
Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. These
channels allow the Company to receive feedback from its shareholders
and investment community.

The Board regularly reviews the Shareholders Communication Policy to
ensure its implementation and effectiveness and to reflect current best
practices in communications with the shareholders and the investment
community. The most recent review was conducted in March 2022
and the effectiveness of the Shareholders Communication Policy was
confirmed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, there is no any change in the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association. The Company’s memorandum and
articles of association are available on the website of the Company
(www.zhouheiya.cn) and that of the Stock Exchange.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY::

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings
Company Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhou Hei
Ya International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 80 to 195, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 3 #% Bl &

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BERERSBE EERBERRNMAEEBRREZSR

Revenue recognition

Wz TR

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale
of casual braised food. The timing of revenue recognition of
the sale of goods is when the performance obligation of the
sale and delivery of goods is satisfied at a point in time. There
is around risk inherently revenue recorded based on the fact
that the Group earns revenue primarily through an extensively
self-operated and franchised retail store network. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s consolidated revenue
amounted to RMB2,869,963,000. Revenue recognition was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year.
EEETENFEEREHEARBRREM ° i@?fa%ﬁﬂﬁz i
B miHE RN EENBITNE R BRERESER - ER
ﬁ%@i%@ﬁ%imEM&%ﬁmﬁg%E%%ﬁﬁw

2E EGNERTAESRAR HE—T——F+_H
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The accounting policy relating to revenue recognition is
disclosed in note 2.4 to the financial statements and the details
of revenue is disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

Wt R M AERE @ T BURN B IS IR M i 2. 4 EE - et w0t
BN IR SR -

We reviewed and assessed the Group's revenue recognition
policy across various sales channels, including franchise, based
on review of customer contracts.

EERBBESEPENENRTHE lﬁ%Xﬁ%%%%

(BIERAFE ) BRI e AR R
We also obtained an understanding of the transaction process
of revenue recognition and tested the relevant controls
relating to the process to substantiate our reliance of internal
controls for revenue recognition.
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We performed analytical procedures on the Group’s revenue
by different channels, by types of retailing stores, by major
categories of products and by months, as well as by re-
calculation of franchise fees recognised during the year.
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We performed revenue cut-off procedures as well as tests of
details across various sales channels, including franchise, on a
sampling basis, as part of our substantive audit procedures.

EREFEE *Fﬁm*%ﬁ'igﬂﬁ%Aﬁiﬁﬁ'
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We have sent confirmations to franchisees on a sampling basis
to check the revenue from goods sold to the franchisees.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LAM Wai Ming, Ada.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-ZT——

HftZEaER

FH-A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
FfaE ARET T ARETFT
REVENUE Wz 5 2,869,963 2,181,502
Cost of sales SHE AN (1,211,570) (971,346)
Gross profit EA 1,658,393 1,210,156
Other income and gains, net HE A Rz 558 5 219,627 147,689
Finance costs W& 6 (60,073) (39,556)
Selling and distribution expenses HELSHEEY (1,084,919) (916,737)
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (309,610) (228,147)
Share of profits and losses of associates 3 Hk 4 A &% M B &8 27,572 26,653
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AT 2 Rl 7 450,990 200,058
Income tax expense Fisfim > 10 (108,566) (48,837)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 342,424 151,221
Attributable to: VAR FEMG -
Owners of the parent NRER A 342,424 151,221
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &R B EERIFAA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ME{t&EREF
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted (RMB) EAREE(ARE) 0.15 0.07
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRA 342,424 151,221
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib2mEWA
Other comprehensive income that may — RABEREIERIsEEF D IESE
be reclassified to profit or loss in B EMEEKA
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: PE 2R
Exchange differences on translation of &GN EFSHIE 3 =58
foreign operations 6,635 14,898
Net other comprehensive income REEE B EEN D EE
that may be reclassified to profit B EMmEERAFRE
or loss in subsequent periods 6,635 14,898
Other comprehensive loss that BrenErlREnsER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss B EMEEESE
in subsequent periods:
Translation from functional currency to  HINEEEMHEE 25| &
presentation currency (29,351) (75,677)
Net other comprehensive loss that B rERERBARESHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BB EM 2 M EE 55
in subsequent periods (29,351) (75,677)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMZEER
FOR THE YEAR (22,716) (60,779)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBABE
FOR THE YEAR 319,708 90,442
Attributable to: AR B -
Owners of the parent ISYNGIETZ=PN 319,708 90,442

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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31 December 2021 R=—ZE-—&F+—-A=+—H

2021 2020
ZB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b AR®T T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - = MK 13 1,438,185 1,407,646
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 481,026 568,581
Prepayments TR IR 15 37,530 15,328
Rental deposits HEZS 94,575 90,453
Other intangible assets HinEmpEE 16 25,282 30,719
Investment in associates REEE N FIRE 17 569,271 277,069
Other financial assets at fair value RAFEFT ABmAEM
through profit or loss, non-current TREE - IR 21 120,000 120,000
Deferred tax assets BIETIREE 29 84,145 80,880
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 2,850,014 2,590,676
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 18 321,937 255,191
Trade receivables B S WA 19 73,571 66,250
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE - HAthREYRIE K
other assets HtEE 20 172,860 175,460
Structured deposits EBMETR 21 454,499 232,204
Other financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRAHA A
through profit or loss, current SREE  RH 21 662,809 1,607,798
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 22 - 19,417
Restricted cash SRR 23 - 384,066
Cash in transit EBrEE 23 1,092 68
Cash and bank balances W& RBITHEREH 24 2,101,253 1,583,761
Total current assets REBEELE 3,788,021 4,324,215
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERRITER 25 50,000 400,765
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 26 34,278 50,184
Trade payables B S ERFIE 27 77,933 86,393
Other payables and accruals Hib R E R ETE A 28 466,432 459,353
Government grants, current BUSHER) - RE 30 2,372 2,372
Lease liabilities, current HEAE R 14(b) 189,551 224,414
Income tax payable FER RS 46,346 38,002
Total current liabilities REREAE 866,912 1,261,483
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,921,109 3,062,732
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 5,771,123 5,653,408
ARBERERERAT

2021 &4



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4R & B &R 3=
31 December 2021 R=ZFE=—&+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b AR¥F T AREETTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 26 1,233,353 1,240,150
Other payables and accruals, HEMFIERETER -
non-current FEED 28 36,105 16,868
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 29 55,409 40,562
Government grants, non-current RATHEEN - FETRED 30 51,298 53,670
Lease liabilities, non-current HEAE  ERD 14(b) 184,650 201,305
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERRE 1,560,815 1,552,555
NET ASSETS EERE 4,210,308 4,100,853
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BAREE AELER
the parent
Share capital [N 31 16 16
Treasury shares EFRGS 31 (341,445) (263,525)
Reserves B4 33 4,551,737 4,364,362
TOTAL EQUITY RS 4,210,308 4,100,853
Director Director
EFE EE
Zhou Fuyu Zhang Yuchen
BAE® RFR

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT——F+-A=+—RHIEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAEL
Share-based  Exchange
Share  Treasury Share Merger ~ Statutory  payment fluctuation  Retained Total
capital shares  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* profits* equity
HRHEH
Bz ERR®
Bx  ERRG ROEE  AlRR  LeRE e R REEA s
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR AR¥TR ARET:R
At 1 January 2021 W-E--£-f-H 16 (263,525) 1,589,295 12,500 90,961 4,928 (36,343) 2,703,021 4,100,853
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - Ma4 30242
Exchange differences related BN ERAEME 25
to foreign operations - - - - - - (22,716) - (22,716)
Total comprehensive income  FRZEMALE
for the year - - - - - - (22,716) 342,424 319,708
Final 2020 dividend paid BRNZE-EE
KBRS - - (154,668) - - - - - (154,668)
Fquity-settled share-based ~ BIEHEE LR
payment arrangement BERONTTH - - - - - 26,797 - - 26,797
Exercise of equity-settled share-  {7fEVEREE AR
based payment arrangement  AEHENFZH - 5,366 265 - - (4,727) - - 904
Repurchase of shares EERH - (83,286) - - - - - - (83,286
Transfer from retained profits ¥4 B R & &7 - - - - 19,570 - - (19,570) -
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F
+=A=1+-H 16 (341,445) 1,434,892 12,500 110,531 26,998 (59,059) 3,025,875 4,210,308

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 2
RMB4,551,737,000 (2020: RMB4,364,362,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021.

ZERERBER _ZE-_—F+_A=+— E m,ﬂf
B A5 AR R W A R #64,551,737,0000 (— T - T4
AER#4,364,362,0007T) B4R

AR -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Zr S e B B R
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE —E-—F+-A=1+—HILFE

[
Attributable to owners of the parent
SRR AR
Share-based  Exchange
Share Treasury Share Merger ~ Statutory payment  fluctuation Retained Total
capital shares  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* equity
SRR
EROAR  ERRD
BE  ERRhD  ROEE  AGEE ARk it e RERN PR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETR AREBTT ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARET:R
At 1 January 2020 RZE-Z5-A-H 16 (263,525) 1,822,221 12,500 89,965 - 24436 2,552,796 4,238,409
Profit for the year EREA = = = - - - - 15,21 151221
Exchange differences related  JBSNEBABMES 25
to foreign operations - - - - - - (60,779) - (60,779)
Total comprehensive income  FRZAYALE
for the year - - - - - - (60,779) 151,221 90,442
Final 2019 dividend paid BRNZZ-NE
RERS - - (232926) - - - - - (23296)
Fquity-settled share-based  BEHEE LR
payment arrangement BERANTTH - - - - - 4,928 - - 4928
Transfer from retained profits 8 BRERF = = = = 996 = = (996) =
At 31 December 2020 R-B-%F
+=A=1+-H 16 (263,525) 1,589,295 12,500 90,961 4,928 (36,343) 2,703,021 4,100,853
84 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT——F+-A=+—RHIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b ARMF T AREETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABRSHE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR A A A 450,990 200,058
Adjustments for: AT EIEH
Finance costs Hi5E A 6 60,073 39,556
Share of profits and losses of associates 5> {i B4 /A &3 i B fE5 18 (27,572) (26,653)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMERETE
equipment 13 124,700 119,938
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 14 268,555 279,820
Covid-19-related rent concessions from & 5 H 70 A B ERE T i A & 1B
lessors ERANESESR 14 (6,580) (38,836)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEEEE 14 9,980 12,096
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 24,281 1,724
Amortisation of other intangible assets ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁé?éfiﬁ% 16 9,319 12,286
Interest income from bank deposits T A B A 5 (60,906) (45,243)
Interest income from structured deposits ,\\u% M RN B A 5 (6,826) (15,706)
Interest income from other financial BAFEFABENE S
assets at FVTPL A ERF SWA 5 (39,148) (12,081)
Fair value (gain)/loss on structured BAFEFABTENEEET
deposits at FVTPL HEOATEWE),FE 5 (6,125) 1,626
Fair value loss/(gain) on other financial BAFEFABZNEMS R
assets at FVTPL BEEMNATFESER (W) 5 7,719 (8,291)
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative AR ES ZITETE
instruments — embedded derivative —BARITEHLD 2
component of convertible bonds NEEYE)EE 5 (14,474) 3,843
Fair value gain on derivative instruments  £74 T BB A F(EU
— transactions not qualifying as —PREEHEBRNZS
hedges 5 (2.330) (19,417)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of BEWME  BEX
property, plant and equipment FEER (W), BE 5 (48,796) 1,075
Gain on foreign exchange differences PE 5 =R 5 (14,396) (50,388)
Equity-settled share option expense AR BN 7 26,797 4,928
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 REWGRIA 2 RE 19 1,335 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o E T A B e 5 (31,340) =
Government grants BT 88N 30 (2,372) (2,304)
722,884 458,031
ARBERERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zr IR & RER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE —ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
ZB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b AR®T T ARETFT
(Increase)/decrease in cash in transit FERIREEM), R (1,024) 629
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W GRIAE N (8,656) (30,845)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTEIE - E b EUGRIE K
other receivables and other assets Hi&EER A (3EM) 13,317 (2,591)
Increase in rental deposits HEZRSIEM (4,122) (4,120)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOELMm) (66,746) 105,197
Decrease in trade payables B Z N FRIER D (8,460) (35,595)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H b e F0E &
and accruals FEETE R CRd) /1 (1,144) 128,344
Cash generated from operations KEELNIRS 646,049 619,050
Interest paid EATHLE (17,321) (22,127)
Income tax paid EATFTSH (88,894) (62,124)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING E& EZEIFTSRESHEFE
ACTIVITIES 539,834 534,799
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHFERESRE
ACTIVITIES
Receipt of government grants W ER IS #85 BY) 30 - 8,964
Proceeds from derivative instruments PTET BRS50E 21,747 -
Proceeds from disposal of other financial &R AFEFT AIBZA
instruments at FVTPL HEtem TARERIA 3,716,600 745,000
Proceeds from disposal of S A B I TF R R FTS 3R
structured deposits 673,830 1,811,646
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BEX
property, plant and equipment X TE B B PR1S R 67,281 30,152
Interest received from bank deposits BERTT R E A FI S 57,444 30,263
Interest income from structured deposits 451 M1 3 F B UL A 5 6,826 14,981
Interest income from other financial BAFERT ABIRA
instruments at FVTPL Efhe @ T AN EWA 5 39,148 12,081
Purchase of structured deposits IBEABETR (890,000) (1,283,890)
Purchase of other financial instruments B E 1A F(EsH A B2
at FVTPL Hihom T A (2,779,330) (2,464,507)
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BEKEBEEE
plant and equipment (187,223) (136,015)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BEFREEE (17,983) (41,009)
Additions to other intangible assets HihEmRE EERE (5,961) (6,514)
Contribution to investments in associates [A)3% & KB & N BlILE (267,515) -
Capital withdrawal from investments in an #EF &R AIEIR EBE
associate 15,000 -
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMEB AR 34 43,447 -
Increase in term deposits of maturity over A =1#& 8 A _+F|Hi&)
three months TE BT 5138 00 (550,940) (265,676)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING #& B ARERE T
ACTIVITIES (57,629) (1,544,524)

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zr8 IR RER
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE —ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
b AR®T T AREETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHRESRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 277 A #i% (& 5 FT 1S 28 - 1,304,480
Proceeds from Interest-bearing sHRIRITEZM TS FIE
bank borrowings 100,000 400,765
Repayments of interest-bearing EEFT BIRITIER
bank borrowings (450,765) -
Dividends paid IR E (154,668) (232,926)
Issuance cost in connection with BRI HARE A5 R BT TR
the convertible bond - (24,494)
Interest paid 2FE (13,765) (4,755)
Repurchases of the Company’s shares A ERAN/NET ) (83,286) -
Proceeds from award of shares under the 12% = [R #I|f& {5 &7 =t 2
restricted share unit scheme RO H TSI 13,659 2,437
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAEHS (265,358) (170,253)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEIFRITERORD(380)
deposits 384,066 (174,042)
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM  B&EE) (FTA), e
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReRRTHE (470,117) 1,101,212
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEYEMER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,088 91,487
Cash and cash equivalents FUNRE RS EEY
at beginning of year 271,401 190,306
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREEHFE F58
changes, net (11,996) (10,392)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNBEERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 271,493 271,401
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRRESEYFERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash at banks Re RBITEHTFR 24 271,493 271,401
ARBERERERAT
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AR AR MY RE

31 December 2021 R=E=—F+=-A=+—H

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 13 May 2015. The registered and correspondence office
of the Company is an office of Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman)
Limited, located at One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman
KY1-9005, Cayman Islands. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 November 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the business of casual braised duck-related
food production, marketing and sales (“Zhou Hei Ya Business”) in
the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the ultimate controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr. Zhou
Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang (together known as the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Healthy Origin Holdings Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

REMBLRZER
AARNEEMBARFEOT -

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage of
equity interest

and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ KA F R
MR, paid-in capital EFE B Principal
Name HMREEE S SBITRES Direct Indirect  activities
=L EEERER BHRANWEHE HiE B FBER
Mt R REmE AR AR PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Hubei Shiji Yuanjing Mainland China/ 10 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
("Hubei Shiji Yuanjing”)
Ittt E R E AR AT FE AR E R, AREE - 100 RmZTE
([HtttLmESs]) BRAH 108 &7T
WILERBR R TEE PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
BRAT] Mainland China/ 62.5 million manufacturing
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Foods Limited
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.
HMILAZBRMIEREGRAR  FE FEAH, AR¥E - 100 RmAE
BRAF 62.5H&ETT
At e EEREE AR AT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Shenzhen Shiji Development Mainland China/ 80 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
YTt ALEEREEERAR] B R B, AR - 100 BmTE
BRAT B0E&ETT
EERBRRARAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Shanghai Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 10 million manufacturing
Foods Co., Ltd. Limited
EERRBREMERAR] B AR E A, AR = 100 BMEE
BRAA 108 8T
BN EEFZEERRAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Guangzhou Fuxin Xianghe Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
BMNMEREZEEGRAR] R E R, AR - 100 BmTE
BRAF SEETT
BAEBERZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BEMBLARZER(#)

RRAFNEEMBARFENT : (&)

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name AMmReEEinl S SRITRGOS Direct Indirect activities
=1 EEERER BEARAWEHE HiE B FEER
LBRAREEEERAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Shanghai Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
FERAREEEERAR RE R E AN, AR - 100 BmEE
BRAR] SE&ETT
HEEEREEERAT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Hunan Quanfuyu Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
e ENEEaRAT RE R E AL, AR — 100 BmZTE
BRAT] SHEE&ETT
IR SEERR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Jiangxi Yuanjing Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
IEREREE AR AR R E R, AR - 100 RRTE
BRAF SEETT
I REAREEEERRQA] PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Beijing Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
R AREEEER AR B AR E AL, AR = 100 EmETE
BRAT] SE&ETT
WL EEER 2| EF RIS ER ARl PRC/ RMB = 100  Online business
Hubei Huanle Shike Mainland China/ 1 million
E-commerce Co., Ltd. Limited
WILBERAETEEARAR  REREANM AR - 100 MW EZEH
BRAF 1TB&T



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name MR ERE S ERTRES Direct Indirect  activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE =k B FEER
EEREEEERAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Henan Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
EEREEEERAR RE R E AN, AREE - 100 BmEE
BRAR] SE&ETT
EEREEXARAA PRC/ RMB - 100  Property holding
Shanghai Suo Lei Industrial Mainland China/ 20 million
Co., Ltd. Limited
EEREEXEFRAR RE R EARNE, AREE = 100 REER
BRAF 20687
BREREEEERAT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Guangdong Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
BREREEEERAT RE HRE RN, AREE - 100 RmZTE
BRAF SEETT
REFBEEHERR AR PRC/ RMB - 100 Food retailing
Tianjin Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 20.5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
REFRBKHEBERRQA] Bl B, AR - 100 BmZTE
BRAF 205EH&ETT

FERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15

31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name MR ERE S ERTRES Direct Indirect activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE =k B FEER
A LA REEEERAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Zhejiang Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 2.8 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
HLAREHERRAR hE RERN,S ARK28EET - 100 RMTE
BRAR]
TEHETRESBR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Jiangsu Dashike Mainland China/ 2.6 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
IEETEESBERAT REHERM, ARB26HET - 100 BmZE
BRAT]
EEREBEMARAA] PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Chongging Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 5 million
Foodstuff Co., Ltd. Limited
EEFARBRARERAR B RERM,S ARBSEST - 100 RRTE
BRAF
B RPN (F8) GRAA] Hong Kong/ HKD - 100  Investment
Zhou Hei Ya Holdings Limited 1 holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
ARSI (FE)ER AT B8,/ BRAA] 17T - 100 WEER
BAERIERAR AR British Virgin usb 100 - Investment
Zhou Hei Ya Holdings Islands/ 5,000 holding
Company Limited Limited
B BBRIERER AR RBRLER,/ 5,000% 7T 100 - REER
BRAT

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ PN &N
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name MR ERE S ERTRES Direct Indirect activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE HiE B FEER
WL E R EE AR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Investment
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 10 million holding
Management Co., Ltd. Limited
WA REEEERAT R AR E R, AREE - 100 WEER
BRAR] 10887
LA REEEERBR AR PRC/ RMB - 100  Investment
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Mainland China/ 150 million holding
Development Co., Ltd. Limited™**
LA R EERGRAT RE R E AL, AR = 100 HWEER
BRAT** 1508 & 7T
EREARBREmIZREAERAF  PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Guangdong Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 28.1 million manufacturing
Foods Industrial Limited
Park Co., Ltd.
ERERERGIXEARAR HE HEXNM AR - 100 RWMEE
BRAA] 28 1BH&ETT
ERHAAREREEARAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Ningbo Shiji Yuanjing Mainland China/ 0.3 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
ER R EER AT PE R E A, AR - 100 BmZE
BRAF 038HET
MIEREEEERAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Sichuan Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 0.3 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
M) EREEEER AR FE B R, AREE - 100 BRmZTE
BRAA 03B&ETT

FERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name AMmReEEinl S SRITRGOS Direct Indirect activities
=1 EEERER BEARAWEHE HiE B FEER
AR RMERAT PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Sichuan Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 25.8 million manufacturing
Foods Co., Ltd. Limited
IEAERBRLERAR R AR E R, AREE - 100 RmAEE
BRAR] 25.8B 8T
WAL AR AR A A PRC/ RMB - 100  Online business
Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 1 million
E-Commerce Co., Ltd. Limited
WAL E R EEm AR AT RE AR E R, AR = 100 MEEB
BRAT] 1TB8T
TEEERRREmIERAF PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Jiangsu Zhou Hei Ya Foods Mainland China/ 300 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd. Limited**
IEHARBRMIERAT RE HRE RN, AREE - 100 RmAEE
BRAT** 3008 &7T
AILARBRRTIXERRAR  PRU RMB - 100  Food
Hebei Zhouheiya Foods Mainland China/ 50 million manufacturing
Industrial Park Co., Ltd. Limited
Mt EARBRBIEXBEERAR B FERAM AR = 100 BmAEE
BRAF S0E& T
LT ERREHERR A PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Foshan Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ 0.31 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
LT ERENE AR AT RE HRE RN, AR - 100 BRmTE
BRAA 031HET
94 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name MR ERE S ERTRES Direct Indirect  activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE =k B FEER
B —RRmARAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food
Qianjiang Ju Yi Xia Mainland China/ 20 million manufacturing
Foods Co., Ltd. Limited
IR —IBRmERAT RE R E AN, AREE - 100 BmAEE
BRAR] 208&7T
it AR EE AR AT PRC/ RMB = 100  Property
Hubei Bo Yu Property Mainland China/ 0.01 million management
Management Co., Ltd. Limited
LAY EEEBR AR B, AR - 100 W¥EER
BRAF 0.01BE&ET
SEBEHEARERLBRAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Qingdao Peng Yu Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 5 million
Foods Co., Ltd. Limited
EEBHNERBRRERAR B RERM,S ARBSEST - 100 RRTE
BRAF
TR EREMEER AT PRC/ RMB - 100 Food retailing
Anhui Shiji Yuanjing Mainland China/ Nil*
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
TR ERREEARAT B R E A, ARBZ T = 100 EmETE
BRAT]

FERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15

31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration equity interest
and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name MR ERE S ERTRES Direct Indirect activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE HiE B FEER
EMNTAREEEERAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Huizhou Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 0.09 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
EMNTAREEREERAT R AR E R, AREE - 100 RmETE
BRAR] 0.09B&T
IR ERZEREERA A PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Shandong Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
IR ERIBHEER AT RE R E AL, AR - 100 BmZE
BRAT] SHEE&ETT
LA REEEERAT PRC/ RMB = 100  Food retailing
Hebei Zhouheiya Mainland China/ 5 million
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
LA REEEERAR RE BN, AREE - 100 RmTE
BRAF SEETT
WILRE BT EREBRAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Investment
Hubei Chu Si Fang Da Mainland China/ 0.1 million
Investment Co., Ltd. Limited
WML B T ERE AR AT B R E A, AR - 100 #®E
BRAF 0.1HETT
ErmEREEEERAR PRC/ RMB - 100  Food retailing
Xiamen Zhou Hei Ya Mainland China/ Nil*
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
ErmERREEER AR RE HRE R, ARBEZT* - 100 BRmTE
BRAF
96 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Information about subsidiaries (Contd)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

REMBLRZER (#)
AARMEEMBARFEOT : (&)

Percentage of
equity interest

and business/ Nominal attributable to
kind of legal value of the Company
entity issued shares/ AT EGEBRAE
atiys Ay paid-in capital EZEEAL  Principal
Name AMmReEEinl S SRITRGOS Direct Indirect activities
=L EEERER BEARAWEHE =k B FEER
REARBEEERRAR PRC/ = 100  Food retailing
Fujian Zhouheiya Mainland China/
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
RERARBEEERAR R AR E R, AREEZ T - 100 BmEE
BRAR]
AL EARERERERAR PRC/ - 100  Food retailing
Xi'an Zhouheiya Mainland China/
Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. Limited
AZEREEEERAR] RE R E AL, ARBZ T — 100 BmZTE
BRAT]

* These subsidiaries were at an early stage since their incorporation and
hence their respective authorised share capital had not been paid up
as of 31 December 2021, which is allowed under the regulation in the
subsidiaries’ articles of incorporation.

**  Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Enterprise Development Co., Ltd and Jiangsu Zhou
Hei Ya Foods Industrial Park Co., Ltd. are registered as wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

* BRAME R B RS A SREE F V) BB B
AUt EEBEERANBE_Z-_—F+_H
=t—BRAXN  FEZEMBRARLRER
HARIE

= It ERBEEBERARATDMIHEARERR
TXERRARBREFTBAREMAIEEE
-

EXZRRERMIARANBARNRIERLER
SEFAREABREEFEIZMOE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for structured deposits, other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and derivative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16
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The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had no interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") as at 31 December 2021.
The amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments did
not have any impact on the Group’s condensed consolidated
financial information.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021 and applied the practical expedient during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all rent concessions granted by
the lessors that affected only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. There was no impact on the opening balance of
equity as at 1 January 2021.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

REREW AR ZFEW IR EA T2 BMAE
REMHFE] RARER] B EMFIRE LR -

102

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

A WN -

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts®®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current? *
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s financial
statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

ARG EF 120 IERT 4R/ B RFERHIIN
BRMEE - EETBERNELRR A ERMK
RAIREREZENRS  HERRRE
F-Eilt BRARAZERFEENT R
ERERAREHAEENBRLERBARE - ZFE
IR -=F— BBz ERBNFERS
HAFRIAE R > FE PRI P 2 3R T L B AR B 4 iy £
HEMRRETARNRS - EAREFERER
REE A REENSE D (RER) B
RV - AN - ZFERTAEHEANEE
FRRARERINIR S - AFHREEA - ZFE
RITRH TSR AREENUBERRELTAEAT
-,

BB EAFIRMETELEBRYE -
B Bs KR A AN NER B EE B IR B TR E A A
£ FIRRE (B IE AL B BT ) BRRh E A 2t
EME - R - BERASHETFABEE WM
BHRBEERAT ARG - ZFEITE T _—F
—A—BARZEFRNFERRER  WEHE
BEXEREBEITNTBERRENNKFHRHE
RSS2 R AT E AR YE - = MaRiBIER
BYER - AFHRRRA - MEIREERTT e
REFENUBRREEFAEATE -

FERBEREZERERAR
2021 &4

105



106

Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial application
without restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The Group's investment in associates is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investments in structure deposits products,
private equity fund, wealth management products and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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Related parties

A party is c

onsidered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

or

(b) thep

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group;

arty is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group; and the sponsoring employers of
the post-employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

3.2% t0 33.3%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 31.7%
Operating tools 19.0% to 47.5%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
19.0% to 31.7%
Over the shorter

Buildings

Office equipment
Leasehold improvements
of the lease terms
and useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Software and patents

Purchased software and patents are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.
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Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Properties
Leasehold land

15 months to 7 years
50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Leases (Cont'd)
Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

(b)

©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of warehouse (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted
for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 30-90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

General approach (Cont’d)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and accruals, derivative financial instruments, lease liabilities,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits characteristics
of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative component of
the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. The Group chooses to allocate
all the transaction costs exclusively to the liability component in its
initial measurement.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

Inventories

Inventories comprising raw materials, work in progress, finished
goods and packaging materials, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
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Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(@) Sale of food
Revenue from the sale of food is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the food.

(b)  Franchise fees of retail stores
Revenue from franchise fees of retail stores is recognised over
the scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Some contracts for the sale of industrial products provide
customers with rights of return and volume rebates. The rights
of return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain customers
once the quantity of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset
against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume threshold
and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number
of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied and a
refund liability for the expected future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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Share-based payments

The Company operates a share incentive scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is computed based on the Company’s share
price on the grant date.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Share-based payments (Cont'd)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiary
operating in Mainland China is required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).
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Foreign currencies (Contd)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currency of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated to RMB at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has certain lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term
for leases of properties due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e.,
less than two years) and there will be a significant negative effect on
operation if a replacement is not readily available.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

EEERRUASEVBHREAKAFLEFER
@ X BERABNEZRSBRAREHMNE
AR EABERBERHIE - A5t RERR - BREZ
SRR LTI EE R R LB BARARRT
FENWAESARRAEFLEAE

el

RERASENSTRRBET - RS RMEE
S BB A THY B RET DR EE
BBEATENHE

EEREHRERNS OB E M E

AEERFETEEENERENEESH - K
SENHERBITRESNKZ ITHERERNE
FRFIE - AAKEERESHITREALKILHE
ERERNKEFANAERBER - RFEHBA
Hig - WEEBREZEHREANNEREFHE
RN MZEEREETER T TEEBRRL
IHEEENE N (PINEREEREHEEEE
REEXERL)  AIAKEEFFEES

HRZEEEHREENERN AEERAE
HEERMEHENHEM—&7n - ZFHERRE
RS AR (B EIAR) - BB ARE R
TREHR - AIESHRLERSERERTHE

o,
2



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions)
or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 December 2021 was RMB34,955,000 (2020: RMB40,710,000).
Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Certain of the Group's financial assets, including structured deposits
and wealth management products amounting to RMB1,237,308,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB1,899,277,000) are measured
at fair values with fair values being determined based on observable
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these
factors could affect the reported fair values of these instruments.
Further disclosures are detailed in note 41.

The fair value for the embedded derivatives in convertible bonds
are established by using valuation techniques. The valuation model
is sensitive to changes in certain key inputs including volatility of
share prices, risk-free rate and dividend yield that require significant
management estimates. Any changes in the estimates and
assumptions will affect the fair values of the embedded derivative in
convertible bonds. The carrying amount of embedded derivatives is
disclosed in note 26.

The fair value for the derivatives not qualifying as hedges are
established measured by using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations.
The models incorporate various market observable inputs including
the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amount of
derivatives in relation to foreign currency forward contract is
disclosed in note 22.

Information about geographical areas

Since all of the Group’s revenue was generated from the
production, marketing and retailing of casual braised duck-related
food in Mainland China and all of the Group’s non-current assets
were located in Mainland China, no geographical information in
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.

Information about major customers

Since none of the Group’s sales to a single customer accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, no information about
major customers in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is
presented.
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An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

Was - B ARG FEDMAT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-FF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers RERFA YRS 2,869,963 2,181,502
Revenue from contracts with customers REFEFEHNWE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) MoWEHER
2021 2020
—EB-—fF e 223
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Types of goods or service & RRREER
Modified-Atmosphere-Packaged products 5386 2 & 2,498,285 1,895,116
Vacuum-packaged products HERHEER 268,683 253,041
Franchise fees of retail stores TEIERRTER 27,601 5,120
Other products HMER 75,394 28,225
Total revenue from contracts with REBFE YNNG
customers 2,869,963 2,181,502
2021 2020
—B-—& —E_THF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Timing of revenue recognition e Bt
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—RFEEEES D 2,842,362 2,176,382
Service transferred over time B8 2 B R B R AR 7S 27,601 5,120
Total revenue from contracts with KERBFPAAIHW AT
customers 2,869,963 2,181,502
FERBEREZERERAR
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

RE TS AN IR ()

Disaggregated revenue information (Cont’d) () MPWBEH(EZ)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRATFAARE BRI ASREHIFA 4
in the current reporting period that were included in the BEMNEERKESEE
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included HARESHTS M BaEN
in contract liabilities at the beginning BRERUES
of the reporting period:
Sale of goods and installation services HEERNTERS 18,372 -
Franchise fee FETREE 5,322 672
23,694 672
Performance obligations (b) BWEME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of casual braised food

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally settled once the goods are
delivered, except for franchisees and distributors, where
payment in advance is normally required.

Franchise fees of retail stores

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and advances are normally required before rendering
the services. Generally, franchise fee contracts are for periods
of more than one year, and the franchise fees are billed
according to the contracts.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as
at 31 December are as follows:

BRASENEOETERBLIT :

HERE MR dn

JE%’U?EBE" LERAVETK - —RBER
T —BEXEASE i"i?x Ffﬁﬁ;ﬂn"ri‘“
B RS ARRS) - FENER -

FELITIRE

BB ERREHRIRERBEERREERX - M
RHURBIAEFZENTIIE - —RIBEN
T BHAREBESNONHRA—FNAE X
Rt EBIRBAWE -

Rt -A=+—HsEE#RTEOEECK
ERHE D RER) R ZERSEAT

2021 2020

—BE-—& —E-THF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETFT

Amounts expected to be recognised TEHRS TR AN SRS 5E ¢

as revenue:

Within one year —&FR 39,249 23,694

After one year SE 36,105 16,868

75,354 40,562
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont'd)

REEFEHNNWE#E)

2021 2020
B —F —Z=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
M 5 AR¥T T ARBTFT
Other income and gains, net E U A RS R 58
Interest income from bank deposits IRITEHF BUA 60,906 45,243
Interest income from structured TR
deposits FLEMKA 6,826 15,706
Interest income from other financial BAEFT ABEANEMWD
assets at FVTPL SREENFBKA 39,148 12,081
Fair value gain/(loss) on structured RAFERF ABR
deposits measured at FVTPL STEMEBIETRD
ANEERE(EE) 6,125 (1,626)
Fair value (loss)/gain on other BRAFERF AER
financial assets at FVTPL MEMEFEE
WAFEER) M (7.719) 8,291
Fair value gain/(loss) on ARRESFZ eI A
financial instruments —BARTERD 2
— embedded derivative ANEERE(EE)
component of convertible
bonds 26 14,474 (3,843)
Fair value gain on PTET A2 A EWE
derivative instruments — P REEHRER
— transactions 5
not qualifying as hedges 22 2,330 19,417
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items HEME - WEKL&E
of property, plant and 1B B Wes / (B518) 558
equipment, net 48,796 (1,075)
Loss on disposal of items of HEFAELEETEBEE
right-of-use assets 14 (9,980) (12,096)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 14 (24,281) (1,724)
Gain on foreign exchange differences  4NE Z= 58Uk 25 14,396 50,388
Government grants* BT Bh* 18,582 20,625
Donation expense BREMALZ - (12,591)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEH B AR 31,340 =
Others Hih 18,684 8,893
Total st 219,627 147,689
*  There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching * T S B0 TR T 8 B NI B A R S A {1 R LAt s
to the government grants that had been recognised. SREETF o
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MISBEBRONIT
2021 2020
B N0
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings FITEZ ZF B 921 10,924
Interest on convertible bonds AR E S 2 K8 41,831 6,505
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZME 17,321 22,127
Total BEt 60,073 39,556
ARBERERERAT
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The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBBRBADEF T, (GEA) AT &IAE

HERC
2021 2020
—B--F “ZOTE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
By 5 AR¥TR AREFT
Cost of inventories sold BEFENAE 977,049 764,609
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment RETE 13 124,700 119,938
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 14(a)/(c) 268,555 279,820
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hinmy EEdsE 16 9,319 12,286
Auditor's remuneration TZ AT BN 2,400 2,180
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEEETEN
measurement of lease liabilities HEMH 14(c) 60,840 56,240
Employee benefit expense EERAHX
(including directors' and chief (BREERER
executive’s remuneration) (note 8): THRABH M) (FiE8) -
Wages and salaries IERE® 390,745 335,955
Pension scheme contributions* RIRSFTEIHR* 56,982 27,554
Equity-settled share-based PER A B ARD
payment expense AEBONTES 32 26,797 4,928
Other welfare Hin a7l 33,350 30,330
507,874 398,767
Advertising and promotion expenses BEREREMAS 52,793 38,036
E-commerce and online ordering platform & &INE T A BBRES &
related service and delivery fees REE 196,093 166,247
Fuel cost TR E 17,680 15,633
Utility expenses KERY 41,798 39,456
Share of profits and losses of associates HIEEEE N ELEN EEE (27,572) (26,653)
Finance costs BEER 6 60,073 39,556
Transportation expenses By 86,696 56,452
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFIEWA 5 (60,906) (45,243)
Interest income from structured deposits BEREMEROFEBA 5 (6,826) (15,706)
Interest income from BAFEFTABRE
other financial assets at FVTPL Hih & REEMFEMA 5 (39,148) (12,081)
Fair value (gain¥loss on structured deposits AT AT ARG 2NEEET
measured at FVTPL HOATE(KzR) /BB 5 (6,125) 1,626
Fair value loss/(gain) on other financial BRATEF A BRENEM
assets at FVTPL SREBENATEESE, (%) 5 7,719 (8,291)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial instruments  A# % {E%5 2 & T A
— embedded derivative component of —BARTED D2
convertible bonds NEEMWE)/BE 5 (14,474) 3,843
Fair value gain on derivative instruments PTHET AR ATERE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges —TREEHAERORS 5 (2,330) (19,417)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYE - BFE k& EEE
property, plant and equipment (W), B5E 5 (48,796) 1,075
Loss on disposal of items of right-of-use assets 1 & A EE B Ei2 5 9,980 12,096
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEMAE 5 24,281 1,724
Impairment of trade receivables B S EWHIEZRE 1,335 =
Gain on foreign exchange differences 0B 5 =M s 5 (14,396) (50,388)
Government grants B #EEh 5 (18,582) (20,625)
Donation expense BEAX 5 - 12,591
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBA A 5 (31,340) =

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Directors' and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

BIEEMHRR - FEQAMEHIZE383(1)a) * (b) °
ORMOERAR(HEESFZER) BHE25
WEZFREENTSTRABFHHOT

as follows:
2021 2020
=B —F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Fees we 1,420 1,445
Other emoluments: Humis :
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ —#& « 2B K EWEF 7,060 7,147
— Performance related bonuses* —RIBABIEAL* 2,591 38
— Equity-settled share-based — DA A E AR
payment expense RERSNREX 6,127 1,990
— Pension scheme contributions — RIS EIfER 249 237
16,027 9,412
17,447 10,857
@ During the year, certain directors were granted restricted share units, e FA - BETESREBAARZZRHIRG B

in respect of their services to the Group, under the restricted share
unit scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such shares,
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors' and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

(@)

B F AR ERFIRSEREX R IR E
i - BRI — P BENMIERRMEI2 - %F
EREBHARBERER ZBRONAFETINE
HEMEFE - A AAFERBRRZSREH
ALiE SR RSITHABNHHBES -

BYFAITES
FAXMNTELIFATESHESWT ¢

2021 2020

—E-—fF —EB-FE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREETTT

Mr. Wu Chi Keung TR A 180 179
Mr. Chen Chen BRESAE 14 =
Mr. Chan Kam Ching PREFIZSEAE 166 179
Mr. Lu Weidong EREREE 166 179
526 587

On 10 December 2021, Mr. Chen Chen has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Group to fill the
vacancy of Mr. Wu Chi Keung.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil).

R-ZZE-_—F+-"A+H REXLEEZ
ERAKEBYIFNTES  DUEHR A
TIRF A ZERR

FATEEBMNBLIFDTESFNEOHS
(Z2=FF 8-

—=—=

FERBEREZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B #& 3R R MizE
31 December 2021 R=E=-—%F+=-A=+—8

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENBSITHAEHM =
REMUNERATION (Contd)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) FITES  IEHITEERESTH
the chief executive AE
| —
Salaries, Equity settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
NEREE
4 28R B3 Bfhé

g RIEN R WAHEX PRI e
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR AR®TR AR®Tx  AR®Tn  ARETR

2021 —EC-F
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Zhou Fuyu BRI 360 1,300 800 - 8 2583
Mr. Zhang Yuchen RFELE 166 4,554 1,791 5,103 83 11,697
Mr. Wen Yong NELE 360 1,206 - 1,024 83 2,673
886 7,060 2,591 6,127 249 16,913
Non-executive director: FHTES !
Mr. Pan Pan EREE 8 - - - - 8
894 7,060 2,591 6,127 249 16,921

1 38 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R Mz
31 December 2021 R=E=-—%F+=-A=+—8

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EENRBSITHAEHFMw)
REMUNERATION (Contd)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and (b) FITES  IEHITEERESTH
the chief executive (Cont'd) AE (&)
[ —
Salaries, Equity settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
NEREE
54 Bk FH ARG AER Bike

2k EniEh BT AORTARTR G kS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETR

2020 “BCBE
Executive directors: BTEE !
Mr. Zhou Fuyu AEEE 360 1,650 - - 79 2,089
Mr. Zhang Yuchen FEREL 179 4,793 - 1,657 79 6,708
Mr. Wen Yong NERE 360 704 38 333 79 1514
899 1,147 38 1,990 237 10,311
Non-executive director: *HTES:
Mr. Pan Pan i it 9 - - - - 9
908 7147 38 1,990 237 10,320
There were no arrangements under which a director or the FA - BEESFIHESTHAERENR
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration ERETF A -

during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors including the chief executive (2020: three directors
including the chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the remaining
two highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2021,
who are neither a director nor the chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

FRNRNRESFHNEERE-UE=(BERS
TBRAB)(ZZE=2F : =fUE% ' BiERET
BAB)  BEOMSFBEN EXHIES - &
B+ _A=+—HIEFEH MUK
B MES (WIERRRESRERTHAR)D
BB T

2021 2020

ZBE-—F —ETF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYEF 1,717 4,017

Performance related bonus FIRAERBTEAL 1,349 -
Equity-settled share-based payment expense LAME #5445 ARK D A ERER)

R 1,146 300

Pension scheme contributions BIAE TR 17 45

4,229 4,362

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

FMETIISEANIFER MFRHTHRARN
R=HOESNAZBNT

2021 2020

—E-—F ZTTF

Nil to HKD 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T - -
HKD 1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001 7c 2 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HKD 1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,0018 7C£2,000,000/% 7T 1 -
HKD2,000,001 to HKD4,000,000 2,000,001/ 7C%4,000,0007% 7T 1 1
2 2

In prior years, restricted share units were granted to a non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees' remuneration disclosures.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The major components of income tax expenses are as follows:

FEREXMEBARSBAHMT -

2021 2020

ZBE-—F —ETF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Current — PRC = — 97,238 35,240
Charge for the year FAZH

Underprovision in prior year BEFERETR - 654

97,238 35,894

Deferred tax (note 29) IEXERTE (FI5E29) 11,328 12,943

Total tax charge for the year FRFIEY LA 108,566 48,837

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The provision for current income tax in the PRC is based on a
statutory rate of 25% (2020: 25%) of the assessable profits of the
subsidiaries of the Group as determined in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law. Hubei Zhou Hei Ya Limited Foods
Industrial Park Co., Ltd. is accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise”, and therefore entitled to a preferential income tax rate
of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such qualifications
are subject to be reviewed by the relevant tax authority in the PRC
for every three years.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). No Hong Kong
profits tax on this subsidiary has been provided as there was no
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the year.

REEBRAEERE QA5 MR PR A
FREEFE S ST SR NIRE BEEYRAE
i o

REBMEN25% (ZT-FF : 25%)HEEH
E(REBEPECEMSIEET) HHINBARE
R FEHE T B AT RS o LB RS
RMIXREBRARMRATE @t ] -
AHREBE—Z-_—Ft+-_A=1+—HILFE=Z
BI5%MEBASHBEE - ZFEEHT B
BRGSHAT = FEE— R -

BATISETHIRIRF RIE B8 BEU (b5t FE RS
wmAH16.5%(ZF_FF 1 16.5% ) B EFHE -
EAREBH—FEMB AR ZRARABKFAM
THIFIEHHEFNENER - ZWBRAAIEE
2,000,000/ 7T (=Z = F 4 : 2,000,000/ 7T ) &
JEERT MR 8. 25% MBI KT (Z T =T F -
8.25% ) HL A FE R B vt ) BIl4216.5% BI AR R F B
(ZZ=ZTF 1 16.5%) - VERZMBARINE
BRIEREHEEE - RN FERITEESSEL
FERRBm A o
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31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax EARBRRADEFIZA AT REAXZEHH B AT
at the statutory rate for the country in which the Company and the PR H A E I R E AR B 5 7 Bl i AR
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the RGN IER Y HERMOT ¢

effective tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Profit before tax B T BT A 450,990 200,058
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 125% (ZE-TF : 25%)H
(2020: 25%) DA E T R B e i IR 112,748 50,014
Tax effect of tax rate difference between = FREIEGINEEE VTR ZRE
the PRC and overseas entities W E 2,990 (18,221)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BAHRE B A EEE (1,737) 829
Adjustments in respect of current tax of @1 HAM
previous periods BT A - 654
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or FEEA M E MR ATHLE B M A
enacted by local authority B = (21,192) =
Expenses not deductible for tax TREMERI TSR N AY & 15,757 9,816
Tax losses not recognised RIERIHIEE B - 6,245
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRASEERBEAENTIERS 108,566 48,837
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREETTT
Dividends declared BEEIRRE 238,314 160,075

1 42 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.12 (equivalent to RMBO0.10) (2020: HK$0.08 (equivalent to
RMBO0.07)) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing a total payment of approximately RMB238,314,000
(2020: RMB160,075,000) including RMB7,471,000 (2020:
RMB4,394,000) of a dividend attributable to the repurchased shares
held by the trustee of the Group for a future incentive scheme,
which is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,312,877,683 (2020: 2,317,728,500) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible bonds
(when applicable). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

EEeEERNEBE S = —F+=-A=+—
HIEFEIRMRBBREGRZER0I12E T
(HERARK0I0L)(ZE=ZFF : 0.085

T(HHERARYK007T))  HERIHEH
HANREE238314000L (ZE=FF : AR
#160,075,0007C ) (B IEAEEZ T AT AR K
BEHEEENEBERGEEREARE
7,471,000t (= —ZFF : AR ¥ 4,394,000
T0))  ERERAAR B AR R A FEJE AR R
BERS LH0E - TAJEER -

BREABANCERERNG AR LT BERNEE
Aﬁﬁ%ﬂ&i@a%”zmzm7w%ﬂ*%

T4 1 2,317,728,5000% ) I EAR M 39 BhET
EREERFSBIREF AR LT RAESFEA

EIEAFATE - KRBEURRAIRRESZ
B (fHER) - ﬁﬁ%%%%%@%%%ﬁﬁ%
IRt ESRERBN A RANFEADRITER
BB - ARBRERSTEMEREEE N
BARAERRNEERTHEERINETYS
2o
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The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

BREAREE RN ETIER |

on:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREETTT
Earnings )
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders PR st EGARE AR T~
of the parent used in the basic earnings BRRIEBESFEAA
per share calculation &5 A 342,424 151,221
Add: Interest on convertible bonds 0 AR ES 2 F S 41,831 6,505
Fair value (gain)/loss on the derivative AR ESHITES D 2
component of the convertible bonds ATHEME) BB (14,474) 3,843
Profit attributable to ordinary equity kAR ES 2
holders of the parent before interest FIB R AR E s
on convertible bonds A AELRF) 369,781* 161,569
Shares R
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EBRERRFZ
shares in issue during the year used in FREBITEER .
the basic earnings per share calculation INHEF 58 2,312,877,683 2,317,728,500
Effect of dilution — weighted average e E —TEk
number of ordinary shares: NS
Restricted share unit scheme PRI D BALEHE 5,018,686 1,615,620
Convertible bonds AR ES 149,038,462 22,866,175
2,466,934,831* 2,342,210,295
Earnings per share: BRREM
Basic (RMB) ER(ARETT) 0.15 0.07
Diluted (RMB) HE(ARKT) 0.15 0.07

* Because the diluted earnings per share amount is increased when
taking convertible bonds into account, the convertible bonds had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the year
and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.
Therefore, the diluted earnings per share amounts are based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB342,424,000, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,317,896,369 in issue during the year.

1 44 Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Plant and Operating Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery tools vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
BF  HREREE EETR HE HORE HE%E HEIR a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTz  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETx
31 December 2021 “E--E+-f=t-B
At1 January 2021: R-Z--F-f-H:
Cost i 802,517 mnan 89,730 16,762 47901 4 364,393 1:816,021
Acumulated deprecation ~ Z3HE (111978) (108250 (53,800) (12,974) (22,365) (99,008) - (408375)
Net carrying amount FHAE 690,539 264,021 35930 3,788 25,536 13,439 364,393 1,407,646
At 1 January 2021, net of N-E--&-f-R"
accumulated depreciation bl E i 690,539 264,01 35,930 3788 25,536 3439 364,393 1,407,646
Additions e 40,082 36,136 6,876 3,200 31 27,180 65,698 182,903
Depreciaton provided EiHRnE
during the year (40,468) (40,829) (12,258) (1,408) (8610) 121 - (124,700)
Disposals e (16,902) (6,589) (1,054) (230) (118) (885) - (25,778)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34)  HEMBAI(H:E34) - - - - - - (1,465) (1,465)
Transfers & 155,338 831 804 i 573 - (185,529) -
Transfers to intangible assets ~ EREEREE - - - - - - (@) (@)
At31 December 2021, netof ~ W=E=—-%+-f
accumulated depreciaion =t-R HREinE 828,589 281,11 30298 5,192 21,112 28,607 202,676 1,438,185
At 31 December 2021; R-E-—F+-F=1-R:
Cost A 952,002 424178 88,485 17,445 51,365 147,659 242,676 1,923,810
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (13413) (143,067) (58,187) (11,653) (30,253) (119,052) - (485,625)
Net camying amount EE5E 828,589 281111 30,298 5792 PARNY) 28,607 242,676 1,438,185
ARBERERERAT

2021 &4

145



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Plant and Operating Motor Offce Leasehold ~ Construction
Buldings machinery tools vehicles equipment  improvements In progress Total
BT  HERBE EEIE nE HARE e AL )

RVB000 RMB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB000 RVB'000 RVB000
ARET ARBTn ARMTR ARBTn ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARER

31 December 2020 “B-BET-A=t-A
At 1 January 2020: NZEZEE-A-R:
Cost A& 791,006 381472 95,328 18,580 45,709 107,152 285,363 1,724,610
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (86,075) (75,669) (49.238) (13,356) (14383) (76,539) - (315,220)
Net carrying amount BRSE 704931 305,803 46,090 5224 31,366 30613 285,363 1,409,390
At1 January 2020, net of RE-25-A-R-
accumulated depreciation MBEiTHE 704931 305,803 46,090 5,24 31,366 30613 285,363 1,409,390
Additions AE 3,016 33 5514 516 704 2119 102,188 134,400
Depreciaton provided ERGRAITE
during the year (32.159) (37.69) (13814) (1,840) (8436) (25,996) - (119,939)
Disposals e (3,166) (6,409) (1.878) (112) (251) (3.297) (52) (15,165
Transfers g 17917 1977 18 - 2153 - (22,085) -
Transfers to intangible assets ~ EREEFAE = = = - - - (1,041) (1,041)
At31 December 2020, netof ~ R-F-FE+-f
accumulated depreciation -0 fREHE 690,539 264,021 35930 3,788 25,536 23439 364,393 1,407,646
At 31 December 2020: RE-RET-A=-R:
Cost A 802,517 32N 89,730 16,762 47901 122,447 364,393 1,816,021
Acumuated Deprecision 2347 M99 00850 G380 (29 @3 (6909 S 3
Net carmying amount EEAE 690,539 264,01 35930 3,788 25,536 23439 364,393 1407646
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has yet to obtain property RZBZ—F+ZA=+—0 AEEWLHEZ
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net BREFEEEARK17531600L (=%
book value of RMB175,316,000 (2020: RMB356,843,000). The F : AR¥356,843,00070) & TEFRERE
Group is still in the process of applying for the property certificates. EFEHEE - AEBNERBEYHERS -
The current year additions of construction in progress included AEERAECRIEPEE S —FETHH
approximately RMB677,000, which was the amortisation of land r) i FH B RIREE S X A R 677,000 (=F
lease payments during the construction period in 2021 (2020: —ZF : AR¥1,233,0007T) ©
RMB1,233,000).
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The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of properties used in
its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 15
months and 7 years. Motor vehicles generally have lease terms of 12
months or less and/or are individually of low value. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There are certain lease contracts that include
extension and termination options and variable lease payments,
which are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

REBEREBEA
AEETAREEFERNZENENRESLD -
AEEDRAMEH AN FAME T RBEEE
T MHR50F - MREZE LB ERK
K BT ERESMEAIRIEA - MEAEHES
BENFISEAETE - AENBARBER12ME
ASAT R/ SERIBERE - —Ris - &%
BRI AAEEAIATERZ RO BHEEE °
BRIFIEE TESEMRK IR EEMTEHE
NHNEERLD  ARFEE—TwmALT

(@a) EAEEE
Gy - AR B R A A O R T
B

Leasehold land Properties Total
HELT LYES et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZTF—H—H 149,762 693,909 843,671
Additions NE 3,317 160,025 163,342
Depreciation charge wEER (3,335) (277,718) (281,053)
Reassessment of a lease term AT LR IRIEREFT
arising from a decision notto  EAMMEHIEH T
exercise the extension option - (49,713) (49,713)
Revision of a lease term arising A& HAR A AT HdE 2
from a change in the non- B8 i E 20 AE EA
cancellable period of a lease BE - (105,942) (105,942)
Impairment A = (1,724) (1,724)
As at 31 December 2020 and R -THF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—HRK
—Z-—%—H—H 149,744 418,837 568,581
Additions INE - 355,182 355,182
Disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AT (22,465) = (22,465)
Depreciation charge nEEH (3,255) (265,977) (269,232)
Reassessment of a lease term BT T R 2 T
arising from a decision notto ~ EEARIFAEAE #=1E
exercise the extension option - (11,280) (11,280)
Revision of a lease term arising A& AR AT &GS 2
from a change in the non- %) i 28 S0 FE ER
cancellable period of a lease BE - (115,479) (115,479)
Impairment A - (24,281) (24,281)
As at 31 December 2021 N_E-_—F+_H
=+—H 124,024 357,002 481,026
ARBERERERAT
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The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

The management of the Group concluded there were
indications for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of certain right-of-use
assets with carrying amounts of RMB42,778,000 due to the
continuous COVID-19. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount of RMB18,497,000 of the several cash generating units
("CGUs") of retail stores to which the asset belongs when it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
including allocation of corporate assets when reasonable and
consistent basis can be established.

The Group's leasehold land is located in Wuhan City of Hubei
Province, Dongguan City of Guangdong Province, Chengdu
City of Sichuan Province, Nantong City of Jiangsu Province,
Cangzhou City of Hebei Province and Qianjiang City of Hubei
Province, the PRC, with lease periods of 50 years.

During the year, RMB677,000 (2020: RMB1,233,000) of
amortisation of the prepaid land lease payments was capitalised
as part of the construction costs of the factory in Chengdu City
and Qianjiang City.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) AEBIEAEABAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FR - HESENERMENMESNOT :

during the year are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HRE®EEAE 425,719 656,034
New leases MEE 337,199 122,333
Accretion of interest recognised FARERH
during the year T 2. 3% g 17,321 22,127
Covid-19-related rent concessions R E HF AR R E A &S
from lessors HENHSER (6,580) (38,836)
Payments NES (282,679) (192,380)
Reassessment of a lease term arising AT B P E £ V7R
from a decision not to exercise the HEE TG
extension option (6,882) (47,324)
Revision of a lease term arising from A S HAfE
a change in the non-cancellable RIS 2
period of a lease i 28 B A A HR (109,897) (96,235)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+Z—RA=+—ArREE 374,201 425,719
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion VLR ba) 189,551 224,414
Non-current portion ERMENER S 184,650 201,305
374,201 425,719
As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group WSS TRRMIFE2. 2FT I EE - ANEBERF
has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied MR RN B S B EERE 1650 /S
the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted A WREHBAREHNMAESERESE
by the lessors for leases of certain properties during the year. BEAERERREEEE THWE -

FERBEREZERERAR
2021 %ﬁ% 149



150

Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) AEBIEAEABAE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to () MEZAEINHEEHEBEHENT :
leases are as follows:
2021 2020
- —E_FHF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 17,321 22,127
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {§ it & ERIHTE & B 268,555 279,820
Expense relating to short-term leases A E BB (GTA
(included in selling and distribution HE R HF S M EHERA)
expenses and cost of sales) 7,884 8,267
Expense relating to leases of low-value ~ BREIXBESEZE
assets (included in administrative HEMHALZ
expenses) (FFATTH ) - -
Variable lease payments not included EHEaERTES Y
in the measurement of lease liabilities Al ENEER K
(included in cost of sales and selling (GFASHER A K
and distribution expenses) HE D HEAX) 52,956 47,973
Covid-19-related rent concessions 2R B AR A B ELTTE B A
from lessors EENESES (6,580) (38,836)
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEENER 9,980 12,096
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 24,281 1,724
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FA1B2s NTERH 2S5 374,397 333,171

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15

31 December 2021 A =F ——

The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)
(d) Variable lease payments

(e)

F+=—A=+—H

The Group leased a number of the retail stores and premises
which contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on the Group’s turnover generated from the retail stores
and premises in the shopping malls. The following provides

AEBEREMEAE)

(d)

AREENK

AEFBHEZEATEERDE  EFEE
ERNAEERBENTEERNENER
BH A AR - TIXRHERA

.8 A R E K

AR BREEEE RN

information on the Group’s variable lease payments, including KA RBHBEE
the magnitude in relation to fixed payments:
Fixed Variable

payments payments Total

BEIE R AR #HEt

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

2021 b S-S AR®TT AR®TT AR®BT T

Fixed rent Eihakikn 239,455 - 239,455
Variable rent with AEHe 2

minimum payment IR 51,108 15,678 66,786

Variable rent only Al FE & - 37,278 37,278

Total 4aEt 290,563 52,956 343,519

Fixed Variable

payments payments Total

I 7E SR RIS R #aEt

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

2020 —FCFF AREFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT

Fixed rent Ehaitkn 160,954 - 160,954
Variable rent with EREz

minimum payment SR 39,693 13,378 53,071

Variable rent only EIE-vicka - 34,595 34,595

Total @t 200,647 47,973 248,620

A 10% (2020: 10%) increase in sales in the retail stores would
increase the total lease payments by 2% (2020: 2%).

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in
notes 35(c) and 38(b), respectively, to the financial statements.

(e)

TEEHEHEEMO%(ZBE-_FF :
10% ) S E B E M FABBIE 2% (ZF =

TAE %) o

HENRSREAENENRFIEEES

B R RIBE R
35(c) % 38(b)H 5 -

7RI B TS R M o

2021 2020

—E-——F —TTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Prepayments for purchase of equipment BB BRI TR RIA 35,030 15,328
Prepayments for purchase of other HBEHMEREENTENFIE

intangible assets 2,500 -

Total #BET 37,530 15,328

ARBERERERAT

2021 &4

151



152

Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Software Trademark Patents Total
¢S [5L =5 gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETIT ARETIT AREFT
31 December 2021 —E-—F
+=A=+-—H
Cost at 1 January 2021, netof WRZZT=—4F
accumulated amortisation —A—BRRE
iR R EESH 27,920 2,169 630 30,719
Additions during the year FARE 3,461 - - 3,461
Transfers from construction A
in progress EEIRE 421 - - 421
Amortisation provided FREHER
during the year B (9,219) - (100) (9,319)
At 31 December 2021 NZEZ—%F
+=-A=+—H 22,583 2,169 530 25,282
At 31 December 2021: NZE——&
+=ZA=+—8H:
Cost DN 66,802 2,169 1,434 70,405
Accumulated amortisation STy (44,219) - (904) (45,123)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,583 2,169 530 25,282
31 December 2020 —ECEE
+=A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2020, netof RZ-ZE-TF
accumulated amortisation —R—BHIBA
R Rt HE8H 32,560 2,169 721 35,450
Additions during the year FRNRE 6,455 - 59 6,514
Transfers from construction EEAEETRR
in progress 1,041 - - 1,041
Amortisation provided FRFHER
during the year B (12,136) - (150) (12,286)
At 31 December 2020 NZE-TF
+=-A=+—H 27,920 2,169 630 30,719
At 31 December 2020: NZE-TF
+=A=+—H
Cost D#N 62,920 2,169 1,434 66,523
Accumulated amortisation Sty (35,000) = (804) (35,804)
Net carrying amount BREFE 27,920 2,169 630 30,719

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The Group’s trademark is registered in the PRC and renewable
under local legislation. The Group intends to continuously renew
the trademark upon its expiry of registered duration of protection
and such renewal is expected to be at little cost. The trademark is
expected to continuously contribute to the net cash inflow of the
Group.

Impairment testing of other intangible asset —
trademark

The Group’s trademark has an indefinite useful life and is allocated
to the Group’s Zhou Hei Ya Business, which is treated as a cash-
generating unit for impairment testing:

Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Zhou Hei Ya Business cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 13% (2020: 13%) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
5% (2020: 5%), which is the same as the long term average growth
rate of the casual braised food industry.

The carrying amount of the trademark allocated to the cash-
generating unit of the operation of the Zhou Hei Ya Business was
RMB2,169,000 as of 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB2,169,000).

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the Zhou
Hei Ya Business cash-generating unit for 31 December 2021. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
trademark:

Budgeted income — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to income is the average income achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

REEEERFEAMITARBEMEREE -
SEAERNEENTMMRE AR AR EESE -
MEMEERRARFTIEER - MIEEEE
HAEENR SR FBIEL TR -

HiEPEE R ERNH - B%
FEENEEREEREAFY  THREAE
M ERBET - HRREHORER R PR
BEEEBA -

BARBERREEEEN
FRBEKREEAENA AU SFE T AFEA
BEEEZSREREEAMIERE A FHEN
VBEENRSRERAMEE - BRREER
EFAMBRER13%(ZT=FF : 13%) -
MAFHRENRESREFAS N (T _ZFF :
5% ) HYIG R EHNHE - BRAR DR B m 1T 8 K Hf
9 R EMER o

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H0 " 2REELE
FRREKRSELAEVARZEAEAAR
#2,169,000t( = —ZF : AR%2,169,000
JL) °

BEIDARZE = —F+= )E] ‘f‘ =YEENES
BIREEFEEUNEREETE - TXHIIER
ﬁLTT?ﬂ?/}x@/EUaﬁ{/ﬁﬁjfﬂiﬁmsﬁ_%ﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ1&
BHSIBEEREK

BHERA - RNEERABENEESNEETR
HENFEMESN TR - AR FAHRRER
#E LIRS R MG -

BRI R — Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂifﬁfﬁ RUATRAER R » W RAR
B AR E R E R
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Share of net assets DEEFE 569,271 277,069

Particulars of the Company’s material associates are as follows:

RABMERBZABFBEAT ¢

Percentage of
Placeof  Ownership Voting Profit
incorporation interest power sharing  Principal activity

Name £ SMRLLE  FEEER REEASM wASK  EEEHR

Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan Investment FmAERmREA B E PRC 25.00% 40.00% 25.00%  Investment fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (BRAE)([RYIHXER i RELES
("Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan") (Note a) &) (Fffzta)

Shanghai Zhi Yi Enterprise Development  FHES#MEERER AT PRC 49.90% 49.90% 4990%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Zhi Yi") (Note b) ([ 3885 ) (Fizth) i RERR

Changsha Tiantu Xingzhou Investment RO REEZEEIELEABL PRC 50.00% 25.00% 50.00%  Investment fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) ¥(ERAE) ([ RHXER i REES
("Changsha Tiantu Xingzhou") (Note ) /&) (izc)

Hubei Dweling Foods Co. Ltd. BERRERAR (ML PRC 20.00% 20.00% 20.00%  Food manufacturing
("Hubei Dwelling") (Note d) 8 1) (PizEd) H RBAEE

(@ In March 2018, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned @ R-ZZE—NEFE=A AEEEAEREEBASE

subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with Shenzhen Tiantu
Capital Management Centre (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Tiantu
Xing‘an Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership) to jointly form
Shenzhen Tiantu Xingnan, an investment fund, as a limited partner with
an initial capital commitment of RMB500,000,000, representing 50%
of the total capital commitment of RMB1,000,000,000 of this fund. As
of 31 December 2020, the actual capital paid by the Group in this fund
was RMB250,000,000, representing 29.46% of the total actual capital
paid of RMB848,500,000 of this fund.

As of 31 December 2021, total capital paid-up of this fund
was RMB100,000,000, being the additional capital injection of
RMB151,500,000 made by an independent third party institutional
investors minus the capital distribution to all investors of
RMB60,000,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s actual capital paid was
RMB235,000,000, representing 25.00% of the total actual capital paid
of this fund.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

(b) In April 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
entered into an agreement with Shanghai Bofu Business Service Office
(Limited Partnership) to jointly form Shanghai Zhi Yi, with an initial
subscription amount of RMB29,940,000, representing 49.90% of the
total initial subscription amount of this associate.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s paid-in contribution of
RMB17,515,000 represented 49.90% of the total paid-in capital of
Shanghai Zhi Yi.

(¢ In October 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a partnership agreement with Shenzhen Tiantu
Capital Management Centre (Limited Partnership) and Shenzhen Tiantu
Investment Management Co.,Ltd to jointly form Changsha Tiantu
Xingzhou, an investment fund, as a limited partner with an initial
subscription amount of RMB500,000,000, representing 50% of the
total initial subscription amount of this fund.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s paid-in contribution of
RMB250,000,000 represented 25.00% of the total paid-in capital of
Changsha Tiantu Xingzhou.

(d) In November 2021, the Group, through an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, disposed of 80% ownership of Hubei Dwelling, and the
remaining 20% of equity interest in Hubei Dwelling was accounted for
investment in an associate (note 34).

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of material associates adjusted for any differences in the
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

by R-T——FMNA AEESEBEMEE2EWNE
AR ESEERABREESM(BRE %)L
ez ERIK EEEE - VIRRBESEAAR
#£29,940,0007T * 1haZEF & A R BARIB AR
49.90% °

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEEMLE
FEEHHEARE17,515,0007T  HEHER
#AFER)49.90% °

(0 RZZEZ—F+A AEBEABREBAER
HEE2EAMB AR ERINKEEAREES O
(BRER)RAIMREREEERNERAA
RN A RS RRKYRDKEFEE(—RFEK
BEE %) ¥iERE LA ARK500,000,000
T hZES B RRBRTERS0% °

RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H AEEEEKY
X B EEE &L E AR 250,000,0007T © &
B A BRERY25.00% ©

d RZZ_—F+— 8 AEEEBEMEEE2E
B B8 2 B8 B 80% I BRI HI & - S8R T
20%E AR R BB FOBIAL 88 R - S ABR AR —
BRAIRE (HTFE34)

TRAFFHEABZRANFBERRE(E
P HORE REH AR Y RS MR AN
RE(EHER) -

Shenzhen Changsha
Tiantu Tiantu Shanghai Hubei
Xingnan Xingzhou ZhiYi Dwelling Total
il 230
REHEFE XEESE LA iR E @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2021 ZEZ-F+ZA=t-H ARWTR AR¥TR AR%TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Current assets MEEE 160,234 320,234 35,094 5,031 520,593
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,013,158 172,858 - 54,785 1,240,801
Current liabilities RBAaE (300) - - (116) (416)
Non-current liabilities FrBaE - - - - -
Net assets BEFE 1,173,092 493,092 35,094 59,700 1,760,978
Proportion of the Group's REENERELS
ownership 25% 50% 49.9% 20%
Carrying amount of the BFERENERE
investments 293,273 246,546 17,512 11,940 569,271
Revenue Wz - - - - -
Profit for the year FREF 141,219 (6,907) (6) (877) 133,429
Total comprehensive income FAZEMAESE
for the year 141,219 (6,907) (6) (877) 133,429
BAEBERZERERAR
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31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Shenzhen Tiantu

Xingnan

PN ]

RMB'000

31 December 2020 —E-TE+ - A=+—H ARBTT
Current assets MEAE 3,562
Non-current assets EMBEE 937,016
Current liabilities mEaR (206)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE -
Net assets BEFE 940,372
Proportion of the Group’s ownership & B R A RELL 29.46%
Carrying amount of the investments AR ENRAEE 277,069
Revenue e =
Profit for the year E3pivl 90,599
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHEWALLE 90,599
2021 2020

—E- ZETF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT

Raw materials R # 253,273 179,942
Work in progress RS 815 1,226
Finished goods BURY G 46,433 56,272
Packaging materials BEMR 21,416 17,751
321,937 255,191

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

2021 2020

—B-—-F —TTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade receivables Z 5 rEWEIE 74,906 66,250
Less: Impairment provision B RERE (1,335) -
73,571 66,250

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed

regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables related to various

diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables

are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

ARERE TSR R B FE MR IR A R BRAR AR ] - DA
BEREERRER - RRERETE RN BE
o BN EXATR R ANEEE 5 EUGRIRE 2 ([
TRAEPEENEE A BEXREFEAME
@ o ANEEE B H B 5 EUGRIA M RRES A (EA
ERmREMIBEREE - EHRUFRETE

RENRREZEHE S NE S RUGIA(EH
BREBREE) RROTT

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Within 3 months =@MAMA 57,554 65,840
3 to 12 months =Zz+—-fEA8 15,434 410
Over 1 year —F LA E 583 -
73,571 66,250

BEBERERERAE
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B SN FIR ZREBRREEE T

2021

B

RMB'000

ARBTFT

At beginning of year F4 -
Impairment losses (note 7) A ETE (FeE7) 1,335
At end of year FR 1,335

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed in HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group
overall considers the characteristics of the shared credit risk and
the days past due of the trade receivables to measure the expected
credit losses. Majority of the receivables were neither past due nor
impaired and relate to diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default and in general, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity. The Directors are of the opinion that the credit
risk was minimal in view of there has not been a significant change
in credit quality.

As at 31 December 2020, the expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivable is minimal for all the above bands of trade
receivables.

To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECLs

AEEFEAB LA EREE BT B RS LR FE
SRETHRETEEEEEIE - R ERIRFHERTE
2 5 RENGIER B (EFE NN B EREERE - K
SEEEERE FEBGIENEGEE BB
REHIH AT 2RHEEEE - BRAZHER
SIEBEARBER TN ARRE - B BT BN 4R 8 4008k
WEZTEEFPEM  m—Rms - B2EWIE
ﬁﬂtﬁﬁﬁiﬂfﬁﬂf\ﬁiﬂiiiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ’ AT A
s -  ENMEEEERTESAEE)  EER5AE
ERBREM

R-TB_FFE+_A=1+—8 s ELAKARN
BHRNFIAM S » NEEE 5 RUKIER AL
ERBERERLR -

S EBRMEREER  ESRUFIRERIEBAS
SERBRSHABMRBCETTOME - N TIRME

below also incorporate forward-looking information. The impairment EFEEEREBEER - BE-S - —F1+=
as of 31 December 2021 is determined as follows: RA=+—8  BREBIET :

2021
—E-——£F
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Expected credit loss rate TBREEEIRAXK 1.78%
Gross carrying amount RIRE SR 74,906
Impairment BB 1,335

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021
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31 December 2021 A-ZE—-—%F+-fF=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS

20. AAARIE - EttERRER A tEE

EEET
2021 2020
—E=—F —ETF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Prepaid property rents ERYEES 23,333 23,668
Advances to employees BT EEMNE IR 1,730 2,169
Advances to suppliers i T EER AR 37,014 39,298
Deductible input VAT AIHIRE TR E R 62,034 73,455
Interest receivable FEUHIE 26,608 23,146
Other receivables for disposal of property & %2 1) H A & Y F0E 7,293 -
Others Hib 14,848 13,724
172,860 175,460

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial

assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which

there was no recent history of default.

21. STRUCTURED DEPOSITED AND OTHER

P EEMEBISRE - St A LM AERH SR

BE ST H R SR M EIGRIA B R -

21. ERMNERRRAFEFARENE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL fEmEE
[ =
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BiaE AR¥T T AREFIT
Current: BNES
Structured deposits HEBIEER
Other unlisted investments, HtIE EmiRE
at amortised cost (IREE SRR A) (i) - 60,725
Other unlisted investments, HAIE ETIRE
at fair value (RAFERTA) (i) 454,499 171,479
454,499 232,204
Other financial assets RAFER ABR
at FVTPL — Wealth management MEMEREE
products — BB E @ (ii) 662,809 1,607,798
Non-current: FERNHR
Other financial assets BATER B
at FVTPL — Private equity fund HEe&EE
_AEREES (ii) 120,000 120,000
1,237,308 1,960,002
FERBEREZERERAR
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Notes:

(i) The above unlisted investments were structured deposits products
issued by banks in Mainland China. As at 31 December 2021, n
structured deposits with contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at amortised cost
(2020: RMB60,725,000). As at 31 December 2021, structured deposits
of RMB454,499,000 (2020: RMB171,479,000) were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as these structured
deposits are with expected rates of return (not guaranteed) at floating
rates ranging from 1.00% to 4.05% (2020: 1.00% to 3.75%), linked
to foreign exchange rate.

(i) At 31 December 2021, the wealth management products of
RMB662,809,000 (2020: RMB1,607,798,000) were issued by licensed
banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. They were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.
The underlying investments of the financial assets were primarily short-
term sovereign bonds, financial bonds and central bank bills, and
other investment products issued by commercial banks in the inter-
bank market in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which were very
liquid with a relatively short-term maturity. The products have maturity
within 90-365 days and the expected but not guaranteed returns are at
3.40%-6.80% (2020: 3.40%-8.49%) per annum. None of the wealth
management products are past due.

(iiiy At 31 December 2021, the financial assets of RMB120,000,000 (2020:
RMB120,000,000) represented a private equity fund, of which the
Group is a limited partner. They were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. The private
equity fund is managed by an independent professional fund manager
approved by Asset Management Association of China for a period of 5

(ii)

(iii)

I EERE AR B AR TRITRAE MR
RER R_ZE-_—F+-A=+—0  IE&EA
HWESREBEINASRFENEBETR(Z
T-TF AEM@J%Q%%&BE%%&$
SDEREHE R-_T-_—F+-_A=+—Q1"
BMFRAREA54,499,00070 (=T — T4 ¢ A
R¥171,479,00070) # 7 B AIE AT E ABm
NemMEE  RAAZSABETS Eﬁ;ﬁﬁ}%@ﬁ
R(EFER) RN T1.00%E4.05% (T =F
F 1 1.00% £3.75% ) B ELHNE [ = H 60 4)F B)
FIEFE o

E’é:%:—i-&-—ﬂ *-I-—EI AR
662,809,000 T (Z T =T F : AR ¥
1,607,798,000%)9@}?&%%@5EPIMﬂ&%
ERIRTTET - RSB ERERN OB AR
AFEAABSENSREE  FRARSENAY
BERBWIHELINEASRFE - EHESHEE
WIRE X B REEHEE mﬂfﬁ&qﬂ%iﬁﬁm
BRI BUARE R B SR TR 5 2 R IT8
TREMITEER - ZEEMRBMR © EnH
FREE o % EE @M E MR N FI0E365K -
HEHETRENFEEHREA3.40%%6.80%
(ZZ-FTF : 340%%E8.49%) - X FIEUER
g o

RZEZ—F+=—A=+—H AR%
120,000000 T (ZE = F : AR ¥
120,000,0007T) &R EEALEREES + &
SEAEERAEBA - ZFEYEMWEHDLE
BEATEFABZNEREE REAAKEMN
= u’]fﬁi/m%j]igﬂﬁiﬁ—fz’gi&ﬂ E\ ﬂ\%ﬂnﬁé
EchTBBFAREECEHERENBYEE

years. HeLBER - BHSE -
2021 2020
—B-—& —E_THF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Foreign currency forward contracts SN IREA S 4 - 19,417

The Group entered into several foreign currency forward contracts
with banks in order to manage the Group’s foreign currency
exposure in relation to USD against RMB. The foreign currency
forward contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Restricted cash SRFIIRE - 384,066

As at 31 December 2020, restricted cash of RMB4,000,000
represented deposits for letters of credit, which are non-interest-
bearing cash deposits paid to a commercial bank for purchasing
equipment and are returned upon the completion of such activities.

As at 31 December 2020, restricted cash of RMB380,066,000
represented deposits for letters of guarantee, which are cash
deposits paid to a commercial bank for loans and will be returned
upon the repayment of the loan. The details are disclosed in note 25
to the financial statements.

All of the restricted cash of the Group was denominated in RMB as
of 31 December 2021 and 2020.

R-E_ZTF+_A=+—
#4,000,0007C151= B

TERRIERE ©

R-ZE-ZTF+-A=+—8  ZRHREAR
#380,066,000 TTIEIER KL S
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂaﬁfﬁi%ﬁ% '

B XREREAR
BRE - WAKRE
XN FRERRTHTHA BRRERSITNEBED

W HMEE B FIRR

& o BRI MRM 255 EE -

R-TF—_—FRk=

Z_ZF+_A=t—H &

EEMEZRHIREAAREEE -

Bigi]

SRR E T

2021 2020

—E=—F —TTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARBTFT

Cash in transit S K 1,092 68

The cash in transit represents the sales proceeds settled by debit
cards or credit cards at the year end, which have yet to be credited
by the banks to the Group.

ERBREERFRABLRHERREEBRT

HARFT AR KRB HEMSHOR
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREETTT

Cash and cash in bank B4 BRI EEATER 271,493 271,401
Time deposits THIFER 1,829,760 1,312,360
2,101,253 1,583,761

Less: Time deposits with maturity over o =@ A LA EEIEf

three months TE BT R (1,829,760) (1,312,360)

Cash and cash equivalents BENEEEEY 271,493 271,401

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB788,836,000 (2020: RMB1,143,250,000).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15

31 December 2021 A= -—%+—-F=+—H

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
Z8--%t=B=t-R “ECTETZA=T-H

Effective Effective

interest interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
M ERRE%) ERHR  ARMTR  ERAE%) ERER  ARETR
Bank borrowings - quaranteed  $F{THE R — DR (i 24 2022 50,000 381 2021 30,000
Bank borrowings - secured RiTEH - BER (i - - - 2.06-3.02 2021 370,765
50,000 400,765

Notes: IsE

The Group's bank borrowings are secured or guaranteed by the following:

() A subsidiary of the Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's

REBRIRITEFA THITT AR
() WN|EHR A2FAN—RMBRAREREAE

bank borrowings up to RMB50,000,000 (2020: RMB30,000,000) as at B RITETIREER  BREEAARE
the end of the reporting period. 50,000,00070 (= F =4 : ARK#¥30,000,000
JT) ©

(i) Certain of the Group's time deposits were pledged with amount of
RMB380,066,000 in 2020.

On 5 November 2020, the Company issued convertible bonds due
2025 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,550,000,000.
There was no movement in the number of these convertible bonds
during the year. The bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into ordinary shares on 16 December 2020 on the
basis of the initial conversion price of HK$10.40. The bonds are
redeemable at the option of the bondholders on 5 November
2023 at 103.86% of their principal amount together with accrued
but unpaid interest. Any convertible notes not converted will be
redeemed on 19 November 2025 at 106.58% of its principal
amount together with accrued but unpaid interest. The bonds carry
interest at a rate of 1% per annum, which is payable half-yearly in
arrears on 5 May and 5 November.

(iy RZTZZTF AEEETEHFERER &8
A AREE380,066,0007T °

RZZEZFF+—AHHB ' AR BT
“ERFHHNATBRERES $% 5B A
15womom%no¢W?iT%h@ﬁm@
BYEEs N_T_ZTF+_A+XH EF
%ﬁAa&&mimwaom&n%%ﬁ@ﬁ
BEER - EFREEAREBN T =_=F+—A
L BRARE #)103.86% & [F EEHE R 2 FL&
EEES o ERRELROATRBREEEN=F
ZHFT+—ATNRZREREA106.58%E[F
FEET A ZFIBHERE o EHIE1%HERN KRS
BB EASEFRAEARBR+—ARAX
i e
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The convertible bonds comprise two components:

(@ The debt component was initially measured at fair
value amounting to HK$1,494,938,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,258,139,000). It is subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method after considering the

effect of the transaction costs.

(b) The derivative component comprises conversion options and
early redemption options (not closely related to the debt
component), which were initially measured at fair value with
an amount of HK$55,062,000 (equivalent to RMB46,341,000).

The total transaction costs of HK$29,104,000 (equivalent to
RMB24,494,000) that are related to the issue of the convertible
bonds were allocated to the debt component exclusively in its initial
measurement, and were included in the carrying amount of the debt
component and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds

using the effective interest method.

FHRBE S H R B AR

(a)

(b)

BRI D 3 AT 1E1,494,938,00078 7T
(FENARE1,258,139,0007T )51 & - K&
BEABRMNEELHRER KN AN E
BRI AGT 2 o

’ji%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬂx@é&}miﬁ“@%(I%
B {5 7% 26 ﬁ T ML RAFE
55,062,000/ 7T (FHE R AR #46,341,000
JO)RTE °

HBETIABREFEAARI KN ETE
29,104,000/ T (FHE N A R#24,494,0007T) 2

RE

YIIRETER 2 A

DEEEHHD - RETA

ESER D AREE » J(E A B IRFIFER AR
BZFR BRI R AET THESH o

Embedded
Debt derivative
component component Total
BB BAXCTER D st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Nominal value of convertible ~ —ZF T4 #770] A
bonds issued in 2020 MEFEE 1,258,139 46,341 1,304,480
Direct transaction costs BRI D EINEE
attributable to the debt RS
component (24,494) - (24,494)
Interest expense 7HJ S\ 6,505 = 6,505
Loss arising on change of NP EEFELE 2 EE
fair value - 3,843 3,843
As at 31 December 2020 RZZT=FF+=AH
=+—H 1,240,150 50,184 1,290,334
Interest expense F BRI 41,831 - 41,831
Interest paid BEAFLE (12,844) (12,844)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A= (35,784) (1,432) (37,216)
Gain arising on change of NEEEBES W
fair value - (14,474) (14,474)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=A
=+—H 1,233,353 34,278 1,267,631

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The ageing analysis of the outstanding trade payables as at the end RS IR EZHHE DA E S RN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRSO ITIT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Within 3 months =EARA 69,719 66,371
3 to 6 months =Z=~EA 6,779 18,387
6 to 12 months NETZEA 742 1,514
Over 12 months + @A L 693 121
77,933 86,393
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. B P ENRIBETE o
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Current B
Refundable advances from customers ] FREMEPFERR 52,982 53,497
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE  HEKRED
plant and equipment i ARE /Sl 55,013 40,308
Payables for operating leases KR HE RN IR 1,750 2,819
Payroll and welfare payable B TE RAEF 161,211 155,255
Other tax payables H e IE 15,422 17,517
Deposits received from suppliers B ERE AR S 82,079 66,705
Freight EE 14,290 13,100
Contract liabilities AHAaE 39,249 23,694
Advance for disposal of property, HEME - BE KRB
plant and equipment AN - 30,152
Other payables HibE e 44,436 56,306
466,432 459,353
Non-current FERED
Contract liabilities AHAaE 36,105 16,868
502,537 476,221

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable

on demand.

H\ﬂﬂfﬁ IR REER - TR B AEERERE

FN
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

2021 2020
- —E T4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT
Short-term advances received from & F WE R SR B
customers
Sale of goods HEEm 25,380 18,372
Franchise services TR 13,869 5,322
Total contract liabilities, current AREEERE - e 39,249 23,694
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver products and AR BERERE MR IRS AT IR R A 2
franchise services. The increase in contract liabilities was mainly due e BHBENEMEEZRNNERHEETER
to the increase in sales orders and provision of franchise services at RIS & RGN o
the end of year.
The movements in deferred tax assets and tax liabilities during the FRELEHIAEERTIEEENEEAT :
year are as follows:
Deferred tax assets ELEBIEEE
Accumulated Expenses  Government
losses accrued grants Others Total
2itER FESTB BE#B ity @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB*000
ARBTFT  AR®TT ARBTRT  AR®TRT  AR%ETR

At 31 December 2020 and R-E-TF+-A=1—
at 1 January 2021 Ak=—Z-_—%—-F—H 40,710 16,700 14,040 9,430 80,880

Deferred tax (charged)/credited o~ ENE B (IR ) /HEH)

profit or loss for the year (note 10) R IE(KIzE10) (5,500) - (396) 9,415 3,519
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR (254) - - - (254)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F

+-A=+-H 34,956 16,700 13,644 18,845 84,145

Accumulated Expenses  Government
losses accrued grants Others Total
Z5tEE JEATHIX T8 Ht, st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBEFT ARBFT ARETT

At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NF+-A=1—

at 1 January 2020 AR=Z-ZTF—-H—H 30,270 16,700 12,396 11,082 70,448

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to FREBRR), /B

profit or loss for the year (note 10)  ¥EZRIA(FIE10) 10,455 - 1,644 (1,652) 10,447
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAT (15) - - - (15)
At 31 December 2020 i

R A g 40,710 16,700 14,040 9,430 80,880
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

Deferred tax liabilities FEIEHIEEE

Depreciation

allowance in Fair value Share of
excess of  adjustments profit
related of financial attributable to
depreciation instruments associates Total
i
HETEN EMIAZ EEBEAR
wERE DNEERE g #st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—H (30,482) (3,313) (6,767) (40,562)
Deferred tax charged to profit or FAEEZMBRA
loss during the year (note 10) FIEFIE(KIEE10) (6,091) (251) (8,505) (14,847)
At 31 December 2021 NZE——%F
+=ZA=1+—8H (36,573) (3,564) (15,272) (55,409)
Depreciation
allowance in Fair value Share of
excess of adjustments profit
related of financial  attributable to
depreciation instruments associates Total
B
HETER ERMIAY [EHEERR
mERE NHEFHE il st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-ZTF—-HA—H (15,707) (1,465) - (17,172)
Deferred tax charged to profit or FREERINRE
loss during the year (note 10) ELERIE(M13E10) (14,775) (1,848) (6,767) (23,390)
At 31 December 2020 NZE-ETF
+=A=+—8H (30,482) (3,313) (6,767) (40,562)

FERBEREZERERAR
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31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

Deferred tax liabilities (Cont'd)

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB19,828,000 (2020: RMB27,906,000) available for offsetting
against future taxable profits in respect of certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China, for which no deferred tax assets have been
recognised. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised. The available period of the unused tax losses will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributable by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. Under the current organisation
and operation structure, the Group’s applicable rate is 10% (2020:
10%). The aggregate amounts of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised amounted to
approximately RMB3,190,903,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB2,701,859,000).

As of 31 December 2021, no deferred tax liability has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China (2020: Nil). In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not considered probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings to foreign entities in the foreseeable future.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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EEMIEEEE)
HE-_Z-——F+-"A=+—80 A£EAHAH
K EE T o B P 3 B B 2 R R 2R R RR A i 1) Y
FEAHIEEIB AR 19,828,000 (ZE =%
F: AR¥27,906,0007T) * Bt I 4 B 1L FE R
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HIBEE FRELEEHMEEEZETHEAR
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i ) AR SH AR TE S 18 o BEHE S5 AR 2RI SR B b A1
ERARBARBEEBNAERHERER —ERF
[ o
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Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

2021 2020

—E=-—F —ECTF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFT

Non-current IEmED 51,298 53,670

Current & 2,372 2,372

53,670 56,042

The movements in government grants during the year are as follows: FRBATFEZE T

Non-current Current Total

155 B st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT T AREFT AREFT

At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZTF—H—H 47,918 1,464 49,382

Received during the year FRUER 8,964 - 8,964

Released to current portion B REE D (3,212) 3,212 =

Released to profit or loss BEian - (2,304) (2,304)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZTF

+=-—A=+—H 53,670 2,372 56,042

At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——F—HF—H 53,670 2,372 56,042

Released to current portion BB D (2,372) 2,372 -

Released to profit or loss BEiass - (2,372) (2,372)
At 31 December 2021 RN-TE——%F

+=-—A=+—H 51,298 2,372 53,670

FERBEREZERERAR
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
et —ETF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREETIT
Authorised: JERE ¢
50,000,000,000 shares of USD0.000001 50,000,000,000/% &R A&
each (2020: 50,000,000,000 shares of 0.000001 3 TTHIAZ 1
USD0.000001 each) (ZZ=Z4 : 50,000,000,000
% &A% 150.000001 FE TTHY
BE15) 306 306
Issued and fully paid: BETRART :
2,383,140,500 shares of USD0.000001 2,383,140,500/% FA% FE &
each (2020: 2,383,140,500 shares of 0.000001Z TR I (5
USD0.000001 each) (== =4 : 2,383,140,500
A% & A EI{E0.000001 3 TTHY
A%45) 16 16

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

AARIH A BB BN T -

Numbers of
shares in issue Share capital Treasury shares
BITROEE &S EFRG
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETTT
At 1 January 2020, RZZ-ZTF—-—H—-R-
31 December 2020 and —ETF
1 January 2021 +TZA=+—HK
—T-—4%—H—H 2,383,140,500 16 (263,525)
Repurchased of shares EEAEIE r) - - (83,286)
Exercise of equity-settled TTE AR R A B AR D
share-based payment BEMON LB
arrangement - - 5,366
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—4F
+=A=+—H 2,383,140,500 16 (341,445)
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31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The Company operates a restricted share unit scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 25 July 2018 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company's directors and senior management. The Scheme
became effective on 25 July 2018 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

During the period from 30 August 2018 to 24 October 2018, the
Company purchased 65,412,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total cash consideration of HK$299,998,000,
equivalent to RMB263,525,000. The purchased shares will be
used as awards for the participants in the Scheme. In 2021, the
Company purchased 10,633,000 of its shares on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange for a total cash consideration of HK$99,975,000,
equivalent to RMB83,286,000. As at 31 December 2021,
74,713,043 (2020: 65,412,000) ordinary shares of the Company
were held by the trustee of the Scheme.

(a) 20 April 2020

On 20 April 2020, the restricted share units (the “RSUs") of
the Company representing 4,580,900 ordinary shares with par
value of US$0.000001 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
were approved to be granted to 24 selected persons including
2 directors under the Scheme. The grantees of the RSUs are
required to pay for the grant of any RSUs under the RSU
Scheme based on 20% of the average closing share price in
March 2020, which amounted to HK$0.83 per RSU.

On 25 March 2021, the RSUs of the Company representing
1,065,575 Shares were approved to be further granted to
the selected persons mentioned above under the Scheme.
The grantees of the RSUs are required to pay for the grant
of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme based on 20% of the
average closing share price in March 2020, which amounted to
HK$0.83 per RSU.

ARRR—E—N\FLA-TABRBXRHIK
T""“uﬁiﬂ(f?&"l';lj) AR B2 B2 /5 7N SR 18
EBRINELERNAER2EE - Lt EINA
Tn//\%@}§$ RAEERSREEE - ZatE
RIBE-N\FLAZTHBEN - RIESITEUH
HiEFT - BRIBZ ARG RI0%F -

REZZE—NFNA=Z+HE=_Z—N\F+A
:er El MEEA AR EBBATE
B 65,412,000 A 2R MK - RESREA
299,998,000 7% 7t (18 & 7 A R # 263,525,000
L) o BEEERMKEAE B2 EE N EE -
NRZZE=Z—F  ARRAREBHIMEER
10,633,000 [k AR A EIfE 1D - LIRS RE A
99,975,000/ 7t (1B E M AR #83,286,0007T) °
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 74,713,043
(ZE =T : 65,412,0000% ) AN A A E B A
BIZEAFA °

() —ZE2=EFWMA=1+H
RZZE_TFNA=—1H  REZTE
NN B 5 BR HI % (7 B AL ([ 32 BR I iR 7 B8
7 ) RFAR R ZIEEA0.0000013E T
I A% 4,580,900% 880 ([ B2 N EE T
0BBFEANL(BIERES) - XRHIIKHD
Eu%&AmﬁﬁfxﬁﬂhP“uﬁﬂ
BEOEMZRERMDBEMIE-T -TF
= AT BE20% (BNE IR I/ &
£70.83% 7T ) TS 5/IA -

RZZEZ—F=A=+HHB ' BREZ:
&+ RARZR B0 EA1,065,5758% 8%
MEBEE—PRTFLEIBEAL - R
1l B 10 BE R AR A ZE AR IR 2R 1 AR D B
M ETEIRE M ERZR IR D EMIE=F
ZEF= AFHRMER20% (B X R
1% 7 BE410.83%8 70 ) LA HIA ©
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(b) 25 March 2021

On 25 March 2021, the RSUs of the Company representing
10,206,295 Shares were approved to be granted to 160
selected persons including 2 directors under the Scheme.
The grantees of the RSUs are required to pay for the grant
of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme based on 20% of the
average closing share price in March 2021, which amounted to
HK$1.23 per RSU.

As of 31 December 2021, the aggregate shares concerned
represented 0.66% of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2021.

The granted RSUs shall vest, subject to the performance of the
individual grantee and the Company, as follows:

(i) as to 25% of the RSUs on the date ending 12 months

after the date of grant of the RSUs;

(i) as to an additional 25% of the RSUs on the date ending
24 months after the date of grant of the RSUs;

(iii) as to an additional 25% of the RSUs on the date ending
36 months after the date of grant of the RSUs; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the RSUs on the date ending
48 months after the date of grant of the RSUs.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

(b) —ZE=—fF=FA=+HAH

RZE-_—F=A=+58A BEZ
&l ARREREIKMDEMRE
10,206,295 B B 1% F 160G B F A L
(BIE2RESR) - XRHIRGEMFERZRAZ
PARIE SR HIRR (3 BB AL ET IR B A=
RAIRMEMIZ-_T=—F= AFHKM
E820% (BNE 2R FIAR (B hr1.2387T)
SAARE -

Eti_;:—i‘f—*ﬂ =+t—H FA¥k
Bh@EBERARAR T _—F+_A
:+*E|E?§‘TTHX1§}E’UO.66% o

13 SR A 1) B8 i 0 5 B (AR -1 A
BRARERARRRBRME) AT

() 25% PR Il A% 15 BEAL 5 5 52 BR w1 AR 1D
BURTHHEENREALEREHE
=

(i) FBI25% 2 BR bl 31D BAL G 2R
DB T BEEFE24EAERE
HERE

(i) FHIM25% R A7 B8 S 50 2 B
ity BALHR T H B2 553618 A &R E
¢EJ; 0 &

(iv)  BRT25% 32 R AR 7 B8 2 i 70 2 PR
Mefn AL T B HATR £ 481E A AR E
mﬁ%"



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=ZZE=—%+=-A=+—H

The following shares were outstanding under the scheme during the

HAFRI A - ARIBRZAT B B B A TR (R AR 37T

period:
Number of shares
RH#E
Share price Granted Vested Forfeited
as at the Exercse  Asat1Jan during during during  Asat31 Dec
Date of grant date of grant price 2021 the year the year the year 2021 Vesting period
RETFAH R=B=-F R-Z=-F
R¥AH HRE fi%8 -B-B EREEE EFAEHEE  FAERW t-A=t-R  HEH
HK$ HKS
B BT
20 April 2020 473 083 4,580,900 - (1,331,958) (363,132) 2,885,810 *20 April 2020-25 March 2024
ZZCEF WIZZZENA-ZTAZE
MA=TH ZZCME=R-+IA
25 March 2021 7.90 0.83 - 1,065,575 - - 1,065,575 25 March 2021-25 March 2024
ZTZ-F R_E_—$=A_+HAZ
=A=tHH ZZCME=AZ+EA
25 March 2021 7.90 123 - 10,206,295 = (299,858) 9,906,456 25 March 2021-25 March 2025
:g:_i :;:_E H +£E|j:
=A=t&A S s =
4580900 11,271,870 (1,331,958) (662,990) 13,857,841

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised an
equity-settled share-based payment expense of RMB26,797,000

(2020: RMB4,928,000).

The fair value of the restricted share under the Scheme as at the date
of grant was determined based on the closing price of Company’s

share as at the date of grant.

* The end of vesting period has been changed from 20 April 2024 to 25

March 2024.

2T -_—F+-_A=+—H8BLFE &
Elﬁ%%ﬂ*%ﬁ%%@iﬁﬁiAE%
26,797,000t (=T == 4F : AR %4,928,000
JC) ©

Zt IR THEREIBORE T BHNAFETD
RBARBNET BN KEEMETE

G HEREAEH S _NFNA_+HEE A
T-NFE=A=+FHH -
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The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 83 to 84 of the financial
statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value.
Details of the movements in the share premium are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the reserve arose from
reorganisation in previous years.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, certain subsidiaries
of the Group which are domestic enterprises are required to
allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%) of their profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the relevant PRC accounting
standards, to their respective statutory surplus reserves until the
reserves reach 50% of their respective registered capital. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC, part
of the statutory surplus reserve may be converted to increase share
capital, provided that the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
the foreign subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares
awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2021

REERAFELBEFENFESEREED
T BRKRFIEEESAENTERBZ KR
SEE

MRADEE
ANEE P B e A R B P S5 B SRIBER

EENES o B RENBBHERA A S
CDER

SOt
AEENSHHEBERNBEFREEHELNE
o

BE R

RES(FERRNER) » AREE TEAEREAK
BARARDEBRBREMNNE T (TR
10%) (RBAEFETBE ST EAEE)INALZE
WEERMRATES  EEABSEIEZ BN
BARM50% © (PR RDE) TS E TREIE
BRT - BORERBATRS A EBIEEAN - 7
REBMMENBTERTFLONEMERN
25%

BE 725 Eh i s
b 1R B A AR AL SR BB SN B R RIB 53R
RELHERZHE -

URAD B ER ARG

AR AR RERE RN SR E B R R R B RER
MAFE - B EIRKRM E2. 40 ARD RE
ARG T BOR T E — HRRE -



Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

2021
—EBE-—F
Notes RMB’000
s AR¥T R
Net assets disposed of: HEEETE
Cash and bank balances ] RRITERER 5,014
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 13 1,465
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 22,465
Deferred tax assets RIERIB S E 29 254
Prepayments and other receivables FRTRRIA M EAth e U R IA 38
29,236
Proportion of the Group’s ownership in AEER-_Z-—F+—AK
November 2021 ARG 100%
Proportion of the net assets attributable to the ~ AREBER —Z——F+— AL
Group in November 2021 & EFELA 29,236
Fair value gain of the equity interests retained R-E-—F+—ARERN
in Hubei Dwelling in November 2021 WILIRE 2 IR Az R A T E R (12,115)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HERHB A mdES 31,340
48,461
Satisfied by: AT AR AT
Cash B& 48,461
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect ERLHE—RHNBAR R RBESZEBMRA
of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: FEZANAT
2021
—E-—=F
RMB’'000
AR¥T R
Cash consideration BeNRE 48,461
Cash and bank balances disposed of B ER® RIRTTFEREER (5,014)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—FMBARICRE MRS EEY
in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary MAFRE 43,447

FERBEREZERERAR
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(@) Major non-cash transactions (a) FEBHRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to RAFE  mYERELTHENE ' A58
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB355,182,000 FRAEEERHEAENIERESAED R
(2020: RMB160,025,000) and RMB337,199,000 (2020: B ANER#355,182,000 T ( ZE-FF : A
RMB122,333,000) respectively, in respect of lease R#160,025,0007T) K& A R#337,199,000
arrangements for properties. TT(ZEZFF : AKR%122,333,0007T) ©
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EXBRETEBNERFE
activities
2021 —E-—fF
Convertible
bond and
related
Interest- derivative
bearing bank financial Lease
borrowings instruments liabilities
AR ES
2 RAERASTE
SRITEN SRITHE HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-——4F—HF—H 400,765 1,290,334 425,719
Changes from financing cash flows @&REREEF (350,765) (12,844) (265,358)
Embedded derivative component R AR LTA B
New leases g - - 337,199
Covid-19-related rent concessions 3 [ HF0 A B ERETE A6 A
from lessors EiEERNEeES - - (6,580)

Reassessment of a lease term arising A /N{T{ AL B f2 2 Py

from a decision not to exercise the ~ EA4-HFREAEH 114

extension option - - (6,882)
Revision of a lease term arising from [E7H & HAR o] &dE <2

a change in the non-cancellable SH)imEE L

period of a lease - - (109,897)
Interest expense FEFAX - 41,831 17,321
Fair value gain on embedded BARNTE DI

derivative component N AW - (14,474) -
Interest paid classified as operating D EAKLIRESTREN

cash flows 2R - - (17,321)
Foreign exchange effects INE S EE - (37,216) -
At 31 December 2021 RZE——4F

FEe==—H 50,000 1,267,631 374,201
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31 December 2021 A-ZE—-—%F+-fF=+—H

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Contd)

ci %Afﬁﬁumiﬁ Bﬁ'ﬁ: )

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EXEBEREZEBNAEEEEZ)
activities (Cont’d)
2020 —
[ B
Convertible
bond and
related
Interest- derivative
bearing bank financial Lease
borrowings instruments liabilities
ABRES
FHERTT RAREESTHE
ES TRTA HEAE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREETTT ARETT AREETFTT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-TF—HF—H = = 656,034
Changes from financing cash flows F&ER&RER 399,364 1,233,645 (170,253)
Embedded derivative component R ARETAEH - 46,341
New leases HE - - 122,333
Covid-19-related rent R B A A A BLETE A A
concessions from lessors EERENHSESR - - (38,836)
Reassessment of a lease term arising [E /N7 T3 iE HA352 2 4 F
from a decision not to exercise EEMRBETE
the extension option - - (47,324)
Revision of a lease term arising from R0 & HAR AN AT s 2
a change in the non-cancellable B H)mEAE L
period of a lease - - (96,235)
Interest expense FEFZ — 6,505 22,127
Fair value loss on embedded BRARSTERL DB
derivative component NEEEE = 3,843 -
Interest paid classified as operating D iBAKLZR S REM
cash flows EARFE = = (22,127)
Foreign exchange effects YNE S22 1,401 = =
At 31 December 2020 i
+=-—A=+—H 400,765 1,290,334 425,719
ARBERERERAT
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. S4B 4 hE8xMT 2
CASH FLOWS (Contd)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEBRSARHERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated HHAGERERERNEER S nEERE
statement of cash flows is as follows: NN
|
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within financing activities 23R mE EE S (265,358) (170,253)
Within operating activities ZR & EE T (78,161) (39,531)
36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. HAEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant REMEHR - AEBWRERSNAEE o

contingent liabilities.

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EEEKH
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the Group’s interest- BEAUERAE B SRITERZANERE
bearing bank borrowings are included in notes 23 and 25, ENFED RIS I HRERM 23 %25 °

respectively, to the financial statements.
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(@ The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

(a)

RBEIR - NREBEA THIEARAE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Contracted, but not provided for: BR LR
Buildings BgF 121,324 134,889
Plant and machinery S MBS 7,734 18,440
129,058 153,329
In addition, the Group's undrawn capital meaning an associate gtoh - AEBFAEE AR RENES
is as follows: N
2021 2020
—E- —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Capital contributions payable RS AREE
to associates 255,000 250,000

(b) The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 December 2021. The future lease
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are
RMB204,951,000 (2020: RMB242,647,000) due within one
year, RMB212,958,000 (2020: RMB230,566,000) due in the
second to fifth years.

(b)

AEEEEETR -_E-_—&5+_-A
=+—HARHABHHEEEL - ZZETAHE
HHEASNNARBEENRAE—FREH
AR ¥204,951,000C(ZE_ZFF : A
K#242,647,0007T) ~ E_FEERFH
ARM212,958,000L( ZZT=_FF : AR
#230,566,0007T) °
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AR5 Y B R M B R

(a) Designation and relationship of related parties (a)

Related parties for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2021 were as follows:

BE T TZFR-_ZT-—%+=-A
=+—HIEFEMNBE AT

Name Relationship

wE LB e

Mr. Zhou Fuyu and Ms. Tang Jianfang Ultimate controlling shareholder
AEmEERERS XL B R

Zhou Hei Ya Foods Joint Stock Limited
Company (“ZHY Foods")
AREBRREOBERAT(TAERBER])

(b) Financing arrangements

The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

Pursuant to the agreements between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders, Hubei Shiji Yuanjing leased five stores
(2020: five stores) for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
the Controlling Shareholders for its operation with periods of
approximately 2 years (2020: 2 years). The lease terms were
mutually agreed between the parties.

The leases for those five stores were recognised under HKFRS
16. The amount of rent payable by the Group under the
leases was approximately RMB249,000 per month (2020:
RMB237,000 per month) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PERR AR SR PR B0 P B 2 B

(b)

Subsidiary controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

& 2B
IR RITIA TR S

il

\

IRAR AN 55 (B B R AR AR 3R 2 R A #p e - SRl
R E—_E_—F+-_A=1t—8
LHFE - AERRRAERMPIE(ZE=
TF  AEME) AREAMFE(ZT=
TF : W) BRAES - MEKKBEFTLH
FHRBHLE °

ZARPIENHEE IR EESM SRS £
A 16HER BHE_T-_—F+_A
=t+—RLLEE  BEZBEHE  ~A5H
ENHEE L AT ALHARE249,0007T
(ZZ2=ZF : §AARM237,0007T) °

2021 2020

- —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREETTT

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,41 3,232
Interest expense FMERAX 154 243
Payment for lease liabilities SRNHERE 1,975 1,986

The related party transactions in respect of the items related
to the leases above also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Zhou Hei Ya International Holdings Company Limited
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() Compensation of key management personnel of

(0 XEBTEEEASHHMH

the Group:

2021 2020
—E——f T T4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREETTT
Short-term employee benefits R BT 14,154 9,260
Post-employee benefits BRI R A 500 476

Equity-settled share-based payment AR S A E AR () AR R
expense MRFE 7,969 2,398
22,623 12,134

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s

EERRSTHRABMENE —FHIEHR

emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements. REFTERERMITES ©
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIERR - SEEBITANERENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2021 —EB-—F
Financial assets SREE
Mandatorily
designated as Financial
financial assets assets at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
REIEES R
RAFEEEA MR A BRHY
BRze@MEE SREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
Trade receivables B S EWEIE - 73,571 73,571
Financial assets included T ATERRUE - Bt
in prepayments, other FEWI R IE K Eoqth &
receivables and other assets MeREE - 36,901 36,901
Rental deposits HEZS - 94,575 94,575
Structured deposits EEIETTR 454,499 - 454,499
Other financial assets at FVTPL 32 A FEzH ABZEH
Hth o mEE 782,809 - 782,809
Cash in transit TEBrEE - 1,092 1,092
Cash and bank balances BE MIRTTIERER - 2,102,253 2,102,253
1,237,308 2,308,392 3,545,700
ARBERERERAT
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIPEHIR - RESHTEMNEmELNT : (&)
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Cont’d)
2021 (Cont’d) —EB-—E(E)
Financial liabilities =L
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
RAFETTA RS A
BazemasE ARNEREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T AR¥T T
Trade payables B SR FRIE - 77,933 77,933
Financial liabilities included in 5t AE fib lE 03B &%
other payables and accruals EErERANSREE - 197,568 197,568
Convertible bonds AR E S - 1,233,353 1,233,353
Interest-bearing bank AT ERITIERR  RED
borrowings, current - 50,000 50,000
Derivative financial instruments $74 &g T A 34,278 - 34,278
Lease liabilities HEaE - 374,200 374,200
34,278 1,933,054 1,967,332
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B

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIPEHIR - RESHTEMNEmELNT : (&)
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Cont’d)
2020 —ECEHF
Financial assets SREE
Mandatorily
designated as Financial
financial assets assets at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
RHHEE R REEH
A HEFAB=mZ AR ABRHY
CREE TREE #st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBT T AREFT
Trade receivables Z G EE - 66,250 66,250
Financial assets included FTATER IR « HAER
in prepayments, other FIB R E M EER
receivables and other assets TRUEE - 26,146 26,146
Rental deposits HEZS - 90,453 90,453
Structured deposits EBMETER 171,479 60,725 232,204
Other financial assets RAFEFABZR
at FVTPL Hih &R EE 1,727,798 - 1,727,798
Derivative financial instruments $74 &gt TR 19,417 = 19,417
Restricted cash ZRHIRE - 384,066 384,066
Cash in transit 5B 4 - 68 68
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITIE AR = 1,583,761 1,583,761
1,918,694 2,211,469 4,130,163
ARBERERERAT

2021 &4

183



184

Notes to Financial Statements B # R R 15
31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(Cont’d)

RBmERAR - BRERTS

EEREENT © (&)

2020 (Cont’d) —EBEEE(E)
Financial liabilities =
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
BRAFERTA bire: 3z [BWIN
BmzefBE ARNERABE #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARETT
Trade payables B SR FRIE = 86,393 86,393
Financial liabilities included in 5t AE fib lE 03B &%
other payables and accruals EErERANSREE - 232,735 232,735
Convertible bonds AR ES = 1,240,150 1,240,150
Interest-bearing bank AT ERITIERR  RED
borrowings, current - 400,765 400,765
Derivative financial instruments $74 &gt T A 50,184 - 50,184
Lease liabilities HE&aE - 425,719 425,719
50,184 2,385,762 2,435,946
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial ANEFESBMTAERMELRALE(BEmERD
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably EEBRERTERINIT ¢
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Financial assets Carrying amount Fair value
TREE BREE AEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF —E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T ARETT ARMET T

Structured deposits measured A F(EEEH

at fair value BT 454,499 171,479 454,499 171,479
Other financial assets at FVTPL 1ZA (BT AB&mA
Hth o mE=E 782,809 1,727,798 782,809 1,727,798
Derivative financial instruments $74 & g T & - 19,417 - 19,417
1,237,308 1,918,694 1,237,308 1,918,694
Financial liabilities Carrying Amount Fair value
cRIBE REE AFE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF —E-—F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T ARETT ARBETTT
Convertible Bonds A] AR E 2 1,233,353 1,240,150 1,233,353 1,240,150
Derivative financial instruments $74 & g T & 34,278 50,184 34,278 50,184
1,267,631 1,290,334 1,267,631 1,290,334
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank ERED MRS MIRITERAERR - ERRE
balances, cash in transit, restricted cash, structured deposits ZRHIIRE - REER AT E o AENEER M
measured at amortised cost, rental deposits, trade receivables, B BHEWGIE - sTATERFIE « EfbfE
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and WA R EMEEN @RS E R ERITER
other assets, interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade payables B RMNFRIBRTAEMENRERETERRN
and financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SREENATELREERMENRS  TEHRZ
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term ST EERHTHE -

maturities of these instruments.
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The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The Group invests in structured deposits and wealth management
products, which were issued by banks in Mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group has estimated the fair value of these structured
deposits and wealth management products measured at fair value
by using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the AAA
rating bond yield and the implied liquidity spread as at the issue
date.

The Group invests in a private equity fund, which is managed by an
independent professional fund manager. The Group has estimated
the fair value of private equity fund by using recent trading price
approach based on the recent observed price.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with a
financial institution. Derivative financial instruments of foreign
currency swaps are measured using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations.
The models incorporate various market observable inputs including
the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts, foreign currency swaps and interest rate
swaps are the same as their fair values.
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31 December 2021 R=FE=—F+=_A=+—H

The Group issued convertible bonds in 2021. The Group has
estimated the fair value of the derivative component of the
convertible bonds by using the binominal option pricing model with
the expected volatilities and risk-free rate as key inputs.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

AEER T —FFTAEERES - ARED
BRA IR HIRE R B AR AL (PATE R IR I e
MEBT R ABE) At T BRESITERD

WAFE -

TXEHIWRAZEZ—FR_FT_TF+-A
=t HeRITAMENETERRESNZEKXN

THESRBAZEME

Significant Sensitivity of fair
Valuation technique unobservable input Rate  value to the input
fRAE R ERTUEERABE kx  LAVEEBARBHHRE
Derivative financial instruments Binominal option pricing  Expected volatility 44.40% 5% (2020: 5%) increase/
— derivative component of the ~ —JAHIEE(E TE R 8 (2020: decrease in multiple would
convertible bonds 44.40%) result in increase/decrease
fTESRTA in fair value by RMB3,297,000
— AR ERITAER D (2020: RMB3,140,000)
EEUEI, RS %(ZTZ2F ¢
5%) EHRA AL, HDA
R 3,297,000 (ZE=Z4F
AR¥3,140,0007T)
Fair value hierarchy NHEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021

TRETEESRIANATEAEER

BRAVEENEE

R-B-—H+-A=+—H

Fair value
measurement
using
AFEHRRA
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
BERAEEHA
HE(EZR)
RMB’'000
ARET T

Structured deposits measured at fair value
Other financial assets at FVTPL

BAHEFERERIEFR

BAFEFABSNEMEREE

454,499
782,809
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Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
Liabilities measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021

NHERBRE)
BAFEFENERS

R-B-_—$+-A=t+—H

Fair value
measurement
using
AFEHRRA
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 3)
ERTEEHA
BB (E=R)
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Derivative financial instruments PTEemMT A

34,278

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2020

BRAVEENEE

R-ZB-ZEHF+-A=1+—H

Fair value
measurement
using
AFEHERA
Significant
observable
inputs

(Level 2)
EAAEREA
HR(EZR)
RMB’'000
ARETFT

Structured deposits measured at fair value %
Other financial assets at FVTPL 1%
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA

N
N

FEFFENEBIETR 171,479
FEFABENEMSMEE 1,727,798

19,417
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Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd) NHERBRE)
Liabilities measured at fair value (Cont’d) BAFETTENEEE)
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZBE+=-_A=+—H
Fair value
measurement
using
A ERERA
Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 3)
BARAERRGA
HIR(E=R)
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Derivative financial instruments TESMTIA 50,184
During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value RIERME - F—RIEEMISHRE)EHEZ
measurements between Level 1 — quoted price in active markets and B(ERAEREAZIR) AT EE 2 MRS
Level 2 — significant observable inputs and no transfers into or out of % B=M(EBRTABRHASR) IMEE A
Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs. EH o
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the FRE=ZRANAFEFEZBWOT :
year are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZTTF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA
At 1 January n—A—H 50,184 -
Addition = - 46,341
(Loss)/gain arising on change of fair value NHEEBEEN(BIE), S (14,474) 3,843
Exchange realignment PE 3% (1,432) =
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 34,278 50,184
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The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
had cash at banks denominated in foreign currencies, and was
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from some currency
exposures, primarily with respect to USD. Foreign exchange risk
arises from short-term deposits in USD.

Details of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 are disclosed in note 24.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its convertible
bonds. The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD and
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax due to changes in the retranslated value of
monetary assets:

AEEN ST AESN T ERMRAINERE
f;% &/}lu@ﬁiﬂ 2R E%”@%V&ﬁ%i%ﬁ
BERIBZFRRAOIE - SZMNT o

SN [ Pz

BE TR ZFZF+_A=+—HIt
FE - AEEBUINEFTENRITRS - WEER
AEEKRBELNINERR  TERXTH
7 o SMERRIK B IAKTTEHER R BER

BT —FR-FT_FF+-_A=1+—H"
L\AAE%aﬂﬁé‘ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁE%ﬁIaﬁéﬁfﬁa}
241K FE -

eSS ZK'*@ITLWE%WEE&T%HI‘“ N
S H B AT ESNE SRR CEEEER
ZONE R - ﬁﬂ%ﬁéﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ/qﬂikﬁ\w
B o

TRIFRBREHRB TR ARBERSERRE
FERTAEERRAENOS2E (B EMmE
EHEFIE)

Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
the HKD (decrease) in

exchange rate  profit before tax

BREELEA S BRBAEREM

(F&) OGR4
% RMB’000
% ARET R
31 December 2021 T —%+_-H=1—H
If RMB weakens against HKD EAREHBTRE (5) (4,572)
If RMB strengthens against HKD AR ETTHE 5 4,572
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Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties equal to the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19.

All the Group’s bank balances, restricted cash and structured
deposits are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, which do not have a recent history of
default. The credit risks on bank balances, restricted cash and
structured deposits are limited.

The Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of cash, cash in transit, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The Directors believe that there are no
significant increases in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the loss allowance of cash, cash in transit, financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
was immaterial under 12-months ECL calculations being classified as
stage 1.

4_4%
El/‘

$%ll%ﬁ?7‘ﬂi EEITREMR IR
A EERREENGAMBRNKAIIEEE
EREMEENREE °

AEEERERREEEENE =T MBS
X5 ARENBERRABERERERGRRZ S
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end

REBE S Ek

AEBHAEEERDESRET
EERER o ZITAZEERIeMTI AR

AERHEES

%mﬂé%

(W8 S RYGRIR) 2 2| H A R EB 2 RIRER

Eo

REENHRERARIZD AT ARMR N REEAE

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted ZEmasEIEAmT
payments, is as follows:
Group NEE
2021
—E-—-F
Less than
On demand 12 months 1to 5 years Total
ZER  LSRT=EAR —ZhHF #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®TT ARETT AR¥ETR
Trade payables H HEMNFIE 8,214 69,719 - 77,933
Lease liabilities MEAE - 204,951 212,957 417,908
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B R1T{& 2k - 50,000 - 50,000
Convertible bonds AR &5 - 12,673 1,305,298 1,317,971
Derivative financial instruments ~ $7T4&E T H - 34,278 - 34,278
Financial liabilities included in T AE AL ERFIE R
other payables and accruals B ERANERAE 197,568 - - 197,568
205,782 371,621 1,518,255 2,095,658
2020
e Sk 223
Less than
On demand 12 months 1to 5 years Total
wEk PR+ ZER —EhfF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Trade payables B S ENTIAE 20,022 66,371 - 86,393
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 242,647 230,566 473,213
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t £ 4R1TfE - 401,821 = 401,821
Convertible bonds AR ES - 13,045 1,442,494 1,455,539
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4T A - 50,184 - 50,184
Financial liabilities included in T AR IER TR R
other payables and accruals EArERNERAs 232,735 - - 232,735
252,757 774,068 1,673,060 2,699,885
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42.

43.

F+=—A=1+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Group uses the gearing ratio (gearing ratio = total liabilities/total
assets) to monitor its capital structure. As of 31 December 2021,
the Group'’s gearing ratio decreased to 36.5% from 40.7% as of 31
December 2020, which was primarily due to the decrease in total
liabilities due to bank borrowings and the issue of convertible bonds
in 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, no material
events were undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December
2021.

42. cREREEEEREE

43.
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FE  AEEEREENBE - BBREREHRE
ESCIE-Z| A
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Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AARRRERARNABARRAREROT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HENBARMNKEE 146,806 146,806
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 146,806 146,806
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other financial assets at fair value through & A {EzF A B 2R 0E A
profit or loss, current CREE B 311,304 1,089,507
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA K EoAth e Us R IR 8,691 8,320
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - 19,417
Cash and bank balances IR & MIRTTIE AR 1,307,457 1,091,992
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE ) 691,609 377,043
Total current assets REEERE 2,319,061 2,586,279
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERH B AT FRIA 223 29
Derivative financial instruments TESHBTA 34,278 50,184
Other payables and accruals EL e ROR N fERT B A 14,11 5,808
Total current liabilities REAEEE 48,612 56,021
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 2,270,449 2,530,258
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #&ERRE A & 2,417,255 2,677,064
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR E S 1,233,353 1,240,150
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEE 1,233,353 1,240,150
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,183,902 1,436,914
EQUITY xS
Share capital ¥ 16 16
Treasury shares EFRAD (341,445) (263,525)
Reserves (note) B (MisE) 1,525,331 1,700,423
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,183,902 1,436,914
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. PR BMRR T2
COMPANY (Cont'd)
Note: PIeE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARATEEB R T
|
Share-based Exchange
Share payment fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
URGRER B %R E
IR AR RE ZARGRE =10 REBER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZZT-TF—H—H
EOFE 2 1,822,221 - 15,324 90,767 1,928,312
Total comprehensive income FNZEBALSR
for the year - - - 75,786 75,786
Final 2019 dividend paid BIRNZZ—NF
KREARR 8, (232,926) - - - (232,926)
Translation from functional currency FINEEEEHRE A
to presentation currency 25|EK - - (75,677) - (75,677)
Equity-settled share-based payment AP #E &5 & LAR D
arrangement REREZ - 4,928 = - 4,928
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZTEF
+=-A=+—H 1,589,295 4,928 (60,353) 166,553 1,700,423
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-—Z-_—%—H—H
MR 1,589,295 4,928 (60,353) 166,553 1,700,423
Total comprehensive expense FRNEERXEHE
for the year - - - (13,408) (13,408)
Final 2020 dividend paid ERN-_T-_TF
REAAR B (154,668) - - - (154,668)
Translation from functional currency HZhaL &S EEHHE A
to presentation currency 2H|EH - - (29,351) - (29,351)
Equity-settled share-based payment LA RS 45 2 LARZ
arrangement REREZ - 26,797 - - 26,797
Exercise of equity-settled share- 1T AR A B UARR D
based payment arrangement REREZ (I 265 (4,727) - - (4,462)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—%+=A
== 1,434,892 26,998 (89,704) 153,145 1,525,331
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. #t/EM B ERK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by MBHRERN T F=A=+RAEESgiE
the board of directors on 30 March 2022. BT o
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For the year ended December 31,

BEt-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E—§ —_T-THF —NF —\F —tF
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETIT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Revenue & 2,869,963 2,181,502 3,186,040 3,211,521 3,248,943
Gross profit EF 1,658,393 1,210,156 1,801,400 1,847,432 1,979,723
Profit before tax BB BT A 450,990 200,058 545,210 726,971 999,414
Profit for the year attributable ViN/NETEZ Z =N
to owners of the Company FEIE T R A 342,424 151,221 407,448 540,093 761,628
As at December 31,
R+=A=+-—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B-—F ZT-FF ZTNF ZF)/\F ZT+F
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,850,014 2,590,676 2,716,671 1,776,078 1,100,614
Current assets MENEE 3,788,021 4,324,215 2,762,245 2,880,027 3,471,820
Total assets BEE 6,638,035 6,914,891 5478916 4,656,105 4,572,434
Total equity R 4,210,308 4,100,853 4,238,409 4,125,707 4,000,673
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities ETEAE 1,560,815 1,552,555 501,638 48,177 41,014
Current liabilities mEAE 866,912 1,261,483 738,869 482,221 530,747
Total liabilities aERE 2,427,727 2,814,038 1,240,507 530,398 571,761
Net current assets RENVEE TR 2,921,109 3,062,732 2,023,376 2,397,806 2,941,073
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 5,771,123 5,653,408 4,740,047 4,173,884 4,041,687
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